651 Commerce Drive
A PUBLIC AGENCY Roseville, CA 95678

F A phone  (916) 781-3636

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY fax (916) 783-7693

web www.ncpa.com

Minutes - DRAFT

Date: July 23, 2020
To: NCPA Commission
From: Cary A. Padgett, Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Subject: NCPA Commission Meeting / Teleconference Minutes

1. Call Meeting to Order and Introductions

Chair Roger Frith called the meeting to order at 9:36 am at Murphys Suites, 134 Highway 4,

Murphys, CA. Introductions and roll call were made. Those in attendance are shown on the attached
attendance list.

2. Approve Minutes of the June 25, 2020, Regular Commission Meeting

Motion: A motion was made by Mark Chandler, and seconded by Jerry Serventi to approve the Minutes
of the June 25, 2020, Regular Commission Meeting. The motion carried by a majority on a roll call vote
of those members present. San Francisco BART, Gridley, Port of Oakland, Truckee Donner, and Ukiah
were absent.

Mel Grandi, Ukiah, joined the call at 9:45 am.

PUBLIC FORUM

No comments from the public addressed the Commission.

REPORTS AND COMMITTEE UPDATES

3. General Manager’s Business Progress Report and Update

General Manager Randy Howard reported:

— Provided an update on COVID-19 cases in Placer County. Reinstated a voluntary telecommuting
process for the HQ employees, and will continue to monitor the childcare issue through the end of
the year for those employees impacted. A few employee’s children tested positive for COVID-1 9,
which required the employee to self-isolate for 14 days. Due to a new employee testing positive
for COVID-19, all new employees will be required to take a COVID-19 test prior to employment to
ensure the safety of the employees already working at the facilities. In addition, implemented a
temporary hiring freeze due to an increase in COVID-19 cases in the area. Employees have
been asked to continue to follow health and safety protocols such as physical distancing and
wearing a face mask when moving through all Agency facilities.

— Inthe process of procuring more N95 masks for the plants and members.



— All Agency events, including in-person meetings, are cancelled through the end of the year.

— NCPA staff is working with the Resort at Squaw to move the 2020 Annual Conference deposit to
2022.

— Provided a draft outline of the proposed Strategic Plan to the Executive Committee for their
review.

— Meeting with the new General Manager of Truckee Donner PUD next month.

— The Transmission Agency of Northern California (TANC) Board is in the process of hiring an
interim General Manager for at least six months to fill in until the Board is able to hire a full-time
General Manager. Asked for support to have NCPA hire individual and loan them to TANC with
cost recovery.

- PG&E is considering increasing transmission rates by 31%.

4. Executive Committee

Committee Chair Frith reported the Executive Committee met once, via teleconference, since the last
Commission meeting. The Committee heard reports from the General Manager and General Counsel,
and discussed the FY 2020 performance evaluation schedule/process for the General Manager and
General Counsel.

5. Facilities Committee

Assistant General Manager Tony Zimmer reported the Committee met once, via teleconference,
since the last Commission meeting. The Committee met and discussed Consent items 13 and 14 on
today’s agenda. A quorum of the Committee was established. The Committee did recommend
Commission approval of both items.

6. Finance Committee

Finance Committee Chair Greg Scharff reported the Committee did not meet since the last Commission
meeting. The next Committee meeting is scheduled for August 11, 2020.

7. Legal Committee

General Counsel Jane Luckhardt reported the Committee met once, via teleconference, since the
last Commission meeting. The Committee met in Closed Session and discussed items 16 and 17 on
today’s agenda. No reportable action taken on those items. The next meeting is scheduled for
September 3, 2020.

8. Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee

L&R Committee Chair Mark Chandler reported the Committee did not meet since the last
Commission meeting. The L&R Committee and members participated in the Agency’s ongoing L&R
Committee Speakers’ Series where members meet, via Zoom, with key policymakers. This month
Members heard from Western Area Power Administration Administrator Mark Gabriel, and
Congressman Jared Huffman. Agency Members also held virtual meetings with each respective
congressional delegation, including both Senators, to urge for the provision of direct aid to utilities
and a lifting of the moratorium on advance refunding to help provide relief to pubic power systems
affected by the revenue impacts of COVID-19. The next meeting is scheduled for August 26, 2020.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes
July 23, 2020



9. Members’ Announcements & Meeting Reporting

No member announcements or reports.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners were polled to determine
if any member wished to pull an item or abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar.

Staff pulled item 12 from the Agenda due to a lack of a unanimous vote of the Pool Participants - this
item will be agenized at the August meeting for consideration and approval. ftem 14 was pulled from the
Agenda due to an insufficient amount of bids submitted on this project.

Motion: A motion was made by Teresa O’Neill, and seconded by Mel Grandi to approve the Consent
Calendar consisting of ltems 10, 11, and 13. The motion carried by a majority of those members present
on a roll call vote with no abstentions.

San Francisco BART, Gridley, Port of Oakland, and Truckee Donner were absent.

10. NCPA'’s Financials for the Month Ended June 30, 2020 — approval by all members.
11. Treasurer’s Report for the Month Ended June 30, 2020 — accept by all members.

12. PULLED AND TABLED FOR THE AUGUST MEETING -- Resolution 20-50, Approval of
Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 (O&M Funding Agreement) — adopt resolution by all
members approving Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110, and authorize the General Manager
of NCPA to execute Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110, on behalf of NCPA, including any
non-substantive modifications to Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 approved by NCPA’s
General Counsel.

Fiscal Impact: NCPA'’s administrative costs for processing Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-
00110 will be allocated to Members in accordance with approved cost allocation methodologies as
described in the NCPA annual budget.

Resolution, 20-55, Peterson Power Systems, Inc. — First Amendment to Five Year Multi-Task
General Services Agreement; Applicable to the following projects: All Northern California
Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power Authority
(SCPPA), and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General
Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services
Agreement with Peterson Power Systems, Inc., with any non-substantial changes as recommended
and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, increasing the not to exceed amount from $215,000 to
$1,000,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or
by SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact. Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over the
existing five year term through March 8, 2024, to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services
are rendered. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued
following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

13. ITEM PULLED FROM THE AGENDA -- Resolution, 20-56, NCPA Geothermal Plant 1 Fire
System Modernization Project; Applicable to the following projects: NCPA Geothermal
Facility — adopt resolution all members authorizing the NCPA Geothermal Plant 1 Fire System
Modernization Project and delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee to award
bids, execute agreements, and to issue purchase orders for the project in accordance with NCPA
purchasing policies and procedures, without further approval by the Commission, for a forecasted

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 3
July 23, 2020



amount not to exceed $1,200,000, including approval of $320,000 for the project contingency from
the Maintenance Reserve fund.

Fiscal Impact: The Plant 1 Fire System Modernization Project forecasted cost is approximately
$1,200,000. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of any agreements executed for
work related to this project will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS

14. Resolution 20-54, Nomination of the FY 2020-21 Slate of Officers and At-Large Executive
Committee Members — adopt resolution by all members approving the election of the FY 2020-21
Slate of Officers for the positions of Chair and Vice Chair, and five Commissioners as at-large
Executive Committee Members. The FY2020-21 Slate of Officers are Teresa O’Neill as Chair and
David Hagele as Vice Chair, and Mark Chandler, Pauline Roccucci, Greg Scharff, Kristen Schreder
and Jerry Serventi as Executive Committee Members.

Fiscal Impact: No monetary impact to the Agency is expected to result from this action.

Chair Frith reported the NCPA Nominating Committee, consisting of Roger Frith, John Allard, Dan
Beans, and Greg Scharff, met and recommended Commission approval of the FY 20-21 Slate of
Officers and at-large representatives. Chair Frith opened the floor for nominations. No other
nominations were given. Officers and at-large representatives will take office at the regular scheduled
meeting of the Commission on September 25, 2020.

Motion: A motion was made by Mark Chandler, and seconded by John Allard to adopt resolution
approving the election of the FY 2020-21 Slate of Officers for the positions of Chair and Vice Chair, and
five Commissioners as at-large Executive Committee Members. The FY2020-21 Slate of Officers are
Teresa O'Neill as Chair and David Hagele as Vice Chair, and Mark Chandler, Pauline Roccucci, Greg
Scharff, Kristen Schreder, and Jerry Serventi as Executive Committee Members. Motion carried by a
majority of those members present. San Francisco BART, Gridley, Port of Oakland, and Truckee Donner
were absent.

Non-essential Members and NCPA staff left the call/meeting for Closed Session discussion. The
Commissioners and essential staff called into Closed Session using a separate call-in line.

CLOSED SESSION

15. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - Existing litigation pursuant to Government Code Section
54956.9(d)(1). Name of case: Northern California Power Agency, City of Redding, City of Roseville,
and City of Santa Clara v. the United States, Court of Federal Claims No. 14-817C.

16. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - Existing litigation pursuant to Government Code Section
54956.9(d)(1): Name of case: In Re PG&E Corporation and Pacific Gas and Electric Company,
Debtors; United States Bankruptcy Court, Northern District of California, Case Nos. 19-30088 (Lead
Case) and 19-30089 DM.

RECONVENED TO OPEN SESSION

All meeting attendees rejoined the original call/meeting.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 4
July 23, 2020



REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

Closed Session Disclosure: General Counsel Jane Luckhardt stated there was no reportable action
taken in Closed Session.

NEW BUSINESS
Chair Frith announced that it has been a pleasure serving as Chair of the Commission for the last two

years and on the Commission for the past 15 years, but he is planning to step down from the
Commission following the meeting in September.

ADJOURNMENT

The July 23, 2020, Commission meeting was adjourned at 10:30 am.

Respectfully submitted, Prepared by,

ROGER FRITH CARY A. PADGETT

Commission Chair Assistant Secretary to the Commission
Attachments

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes
July 23, 2020



Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting / Teleconference
July 23, 2020

COMMISSIONER
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER NAME
1 - ALAMEDA Jerry Serventi
2 - BIGGS Chair Roger Frith
3 - GRIDLEY
4 - HEALDSBURG David Hagele
5. LODI Mark Chandler
6 - LOMPOC Jenelle Osborne
7 - PALO ALTO Greg Scharff
8 - PORT OF OAKLAND
9 - PLUMAS-SIERRA REC Mike Brozo
10 - REDDING Kirsten Schreder
11 - ROSEVILLE John Allard
12 - SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID
TRANSIT DISTRICT
13 - SANTA CLARA Teresa O’Neill
14 - SHASTA LAKE James Takehara
15 - TRUCKEE DONNER
16 - UKIAH Mel Grandi




Northern California Power Agency

Commission Meeting / Teleconference

July 23, 2020
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the

public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
Nico Procos Alameda
Bo Sheppard Biggs
Jeff Berkheimer Lodi
Michelle Bertolino Roseville
Pauline Roccucci Roseville
Basil Wong Santa Clara
Randy Howard NCPA
Jane Luckhardt NCPA
Jane Cirrincione NCPA
Monty Hanks NCPA
Joel Ledesma NCPA
Cary Padgett NCPA
Tony Zimmer NCPA
Elizabeth Gonzalez NCPA




A PUBLIC ABENCY

PA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

CONSENT CALENDAR

All items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be approved without
discussion by a single-roll call vote. Any Commissioner or member of the public may remove
any item from the Consent Calendar. If an item is removed, it will be discussed separately
following approval of the remainder of the Consent Calendar.

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners will be polled to
determine if any Member wishes to abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar.

CONSENT CALENDAR ROLL-CALL APPROVAL

Commission Meeting Date: July 23, 2020

Consent Items Listed on the Agenda: # \D to# \L\

Consent Items Removed from the Agenda and Approved Separately:

i A A

ROLL-CALL VOTE BY MEMBER\SW \ U&)le\/\

Member

Item Numbers Abstained

Absent

Alameda

San Francisco BART

X

Biggs

r

Gridley

X

Healdsburg

Lodi

| Lompoc

|

| Palo Alto

uv4

Port of Oakland

i

Redding

A

Roseville

Santa Clara

b4

Shasta Lake

Truckee Donner

14

Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra

ATTEST:

Ca ry\A«F/adge‘{t

Assistant Secretary to the Commission

v



Northern California Power Agency
ROLL CALL VOTE

Topic: \J\{VY\’&’Q W\m WS

VOTE ABSTAIN ABSENT
Alameda
BART __._X
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Plumas-Sierra
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville

Santa Clara

Shasta Lake

FEFELE TR El T

Truckee Donner )<
Ukiah ><

Passed and adopted this 23 day of July 2020, by the above vote on roll call.

ATTEST:

ROGER FRITH CARY A. PADGETT
Commission Chair Assistant Secretary



Northern California Power Agency
ROLL CALL VOTE

Topic: I\ LR I QO — sS4

VOTE ABSTAIN ABSENT
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Plumas-Sierra
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake R
Truckee Donner )/

Ukiah

asasinasaninee

Passed and adopted this 23" day of July 2020, by the above vote on roll call.

ATTEST:

ROGER FRITH CARY A. PADGETT
Commission Chair Assistant Secretary



PUD

General Manager, General Counsel & Board
President NTE $250,000

Member Name Designated Representatives Confirmation | Date
NTE Amount | Approved

Alameda - AMP General Manager & AMP General Counsel $ 75,000 06/08/16

BART

Biggs Utility Director & City Attorney $ 125,000 08/09/16

Gridley

Healdsburg City Manager & City Attorney S 50,000 05/06/19

Lodi Utility Director & City Attorney NTE $15,000; $ 20,000 09/07/16

City Manager & City Attorney NTE $20,000

Lompoc Utility Director & City Attorney $ 125,000 11/15/16

Palo Alto City Manager & City Attorney $ 85,000 06/05/17

Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland Executive Director & Deputy Port Attorney $ 150,000 04/14/16

Redding Utility Director & City Attorney $ 125,000 04/19/16

Roseville Electric Utility Director & City Attorney $ 50,000 10/05/15

Santa Clara City Manager & City Attorney $ 150,000 05/24/16

Shasta Lake City Manager & General Counsel $ 75,000 07/02/19

Truckee Donner General Manager & General Counsel NTE $15,000; | $ 250,000 11/02/16

Ukiah

No. Member Name Date

Amount NTE

Vendor Name & Short Description

Power

0179 | Alameda Municipal

7/28/20 | $67,500.00

Cooperative Response Center; Overflow
telephone solution during after-hours or
outage situations FY21.

8/20/2020 las




No.

Member Name

Date

Amount NTE

Vendor Name & Short Description

0177

Port of Oakland

8/14/20

$ 15,465.00

Trimark Associates, Inc. ; Create portal
managed by Trimark for the Port to access
meter data remotely. Dashboard to include
meters Culbertson, Davis, $S-1, and SS-1a.

0176

City of Santa Clara

7/24/20

$14,318.25

Unique Scaffold; Scaffolding services for
valve inspections at Cogen facility.

0175

City of Roseville

6/15/20

$47,500.00

Energy & Resource Solutions; energy
efficiency and electrification services in
Fy21.

0174

City of Roseville

6/4/20

$ 25,027.60

Gannett Fleming, Inc.; structural
engineering services for the design of two
pad foundations and two pier foundations
for Fiddyment substation transformer
addition project.

0173

City of Roseville

6/3/20

$20,198.50

Gannett Fleming, Inc.; civil engineering
design services for Industrial Substation Bay
2 switchgear foundation.

0172

City of Lompoc

5/11/20

$ 25,590.00

Navigant Consulting/Guidehouse;
independent review of Wildfire Mitigation
Plan.

0169

City of Healdsburg

4/14/20

$ 8,920.00

HOT/SHOT Infrared Inspections, Inc.; for
ground infrared inspections of substation
and 12kv circuits in Healdsburg WUI area.

0168

City of Santa Clara

5/4/20

$24,118.72

Performance Mechanical, Inc.; maintenance
to address Quench Tee Leak at DVR facility.

0167

City of Santa Clara

6/4/20

$111,015.00

Unique Scaffold; for scaffolding services at
DVR facility for outages in 2020 as
requested.

0166

City of Palo Alto

7/1/20

$73,325.00

Energy & Research Solutions; energy
efficiency consulting services including
energy savings calculation review, rebate
application review, business energy audits
and technical advice.

0165

Alameda Municipal
Power

4/10/20

$ 50,878.00

Cadmus Group LLC; EM&YV study for two
programs: Residential Online Rebate Portal
and the Self-Install Commercial Rebate
Program.

0164

City of Palo Alto

6/16/20

$51,015.00

IEC Corporation; engineering services to
develop technical bid packages for electrical
circuit breaker replacements at various
substation sites within the City of Palo Alto.

8/20/2020 las




No.

Member Name

Date

Amount NTE

Vendor Name & Short Description

0162

City of Redding

4/13/20

S 8,569.60

Hometown Connections; to provide
Leadership Development Workshop.

0160

Amd.

City of Santa Clara

5/4/20;

Amd.
8/4/20

$73,115.00

HRST, Inc.; for preparation of feasibility
study to address failures which have
occurred on two Allison 501 combustion
turbines in the finned portion of the boiler
plates; additional services to investigate
stack lean issue & review chemistry
program.

0159

Alameda Municipal
Power

3/18/20

$ 23,670.00

Navigant Consulting, Inc.; Independent
review and assessment services for AMP’s
Wildfire Mitigation Plan.

0157

City of Lodi

7/2/20

$154,480.00

Cooperative Response Center; after hours
Customer Care answering services and
Energy Dispatch services.

0154

Port of Oakland

1/31/20

$25,945.00

Navigant Consulting, Inc.; Independent
evaluation services for Wildfire Mitigation
Plan.

0153

City of Santa Clara

4/3/2020

$34,510.00

Aspen Environmental; consulting services
rata analysis as requested by SVP.

0152

City of Santa Clara

1/22/20

$96,510.00

Aspen Environmental; consulting services re
meter data analysis and related work as
requested by SVP

0151

City of Healdsburg

2/1/20

$ 50,000.00

IEC Corporation; services related to the
development of a power purchase
agreement and review/consulting on the
proposed design and materials for a floating
solar project.

0148

City of Santa Clara

11/1/19

$149,01500

Flynn Resource Consultants, Inc.; support
for regulatory and/or contractual issues and
analysis related to CAISO, CRRs, PG&E
transmission system analysis support, NERC
and WECC compliance standards, and other
support as requested.

0146

City of Palo Alto

5/26/20

$ 3,770.00

Lakeshore Global; perform Member
compliance audit, Green-e Process Audit
verification protocol in effect for RY19 and
issue report.

0145

City of Palo Alto

5/26/20

$ 2,740.00

Lakeshore Global; perform Member
compliance audit, SVP Standard 2018 and
SVP Residential 2018, for CEC’s Amended
Power Source Disclosure Program
Regulations.

8/20/2020 las




No.

Member Name

Date

Amount NTE

Vendor Name & Short Description

0139

City of Santa Clara

2/19/20

$3,944.90

Nor-Cal Battery Company; Maintenance of
plant battery chargers at DVR facility.

0137

City of Healdsburg

10/24/19

$ 35,350.00

Navigant Consulting Inc.; Independent
assessment of Healdsburg’s Wildfire
Mitigation Plan.

0136

City of Healdsburg

10/1/19

$ 15,000.00

NCPA,; provide graphic design services on an
as-needed basis.

0133

City of Santa Clara

12/23/19

$47,195.00

Fossil Energy Research Corp; review NOx
monitor system and data to assist with
values and recommendations for
correction; AlG tuning as requested.

0117

City of Lodi

8/22/19

$236,740.00

Burns & McDonnell; engineering design and
environmental analysis for the PG&E
Northern San Joaquin 230 kV Transmission
Project to be incorporated into PG&E’s PEA.

0114

City of Santa Clara

7/1/19

$ 65,180.00

Cadmus Group, LLC; provide consulting
services to conduct evaluation for SVP’s
Small Business Exterior Lighting Program.

0110

No.

City of Santa Clara

NCPA or SCPPA
Member

6/20/19

Date

$48,775.00

Amount

Cameron-Cole LLC; annual CARB
greenhouse gas emissions and mandatory
compliance reporting of greenhouse gas
emissions; years 2018-2020.

Vendor Name & Short Description

0178

City of Roseville

7/14/20

$ 35,005.00

RKS Research & Consulting; conduct CMUA
2020 Statewide Residential Research and
additional oversampling among Residential
customers.

0171

City of Redding

7/13/20

$125,000.00

Alternative Energy Systems, Inc. —
continued energy efficiency and
engineering support services in FY21.

0149

City of Lodi

3/18/20

$53,325.00

Efficiency Services Group, LLO; provide
“Keep Your Cool” Commercial Refrigeration
Program through FY21.

0144

City of Santa Clara

12/3/19

$814,813.97

Efficiency Services Group, LLC; provide
“Keep Your Cool” Commercial Refrigeration
Program during FY20 and FY21.

8/20/2020 las



A PUBLIC AGENCY

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916) 781-3636
fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

Commission Staff Report AGENDA ITEM NO.: O

Date: August 27, 2020
To: NCPA Commission
Subject: August 5, 2020 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

The attached Draft Minutes are being provided for information and to augment the oral

Committee report.



651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

A PUBLIC AGENCY
phone (916) 781-3636
N ( : PA fax  (916)783-7693
NO

RTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY web www.ncpa.com

Minutes — Draft

Date: August 17, 2020
To: NCPA Facilities Committee
From: Carrie Pollo

Subject:  August 5, 2020, Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

1. Call Meeting to Order & Roll Call — The meeting was called to order by Committee Chair Brian
Schinstock (Roseville) at 9:03 am. A sign-in sheet was passed around. Attending via
teleconference and/or on-line presentation were Johnstone Kipyator (Alameda), Mark Sorensen
(Biggs), Paul Eckert (Gridley), Jiayo Chiang (Lodi), Tikan Singh (Lompoc) Shiva Swaminathan
(Palo Alto), Nick Rossow (Redding), Basil Wong, and Steve Hance (Santa Clara), and Willie
Manual, and Owen Goldstrom (TID). Those attending in person are listed on the attached
Attendee Sign-in Sheet. Committee Representatives from BART, Healdsburg, Plumas-Sierra,
Port of Oakland, and Ukiah were absent. A quorum of the Committee was established.

PUBLIC FORUM
No public comment.
OPEN SESSION

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS

2. Approval of Minutes — Approve minutes from the July 1, 2020 Facilities Committee meeting.

Motion: A motion was made by Brian Schinstock and seconded by Tikan Singh recommending
approval of the July 1, 2020, Facilities Committee meeting minutes. A vote was taken by roll
call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Redding, Roseville, Santa Clara
and TID. The motion passed.

3. All NCPA Facilities, Members, SCPPA — NorCal Power Services, LLC MTGSA — Staff
presented background information and was seeking a recommendation for Commission
approval of a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with NorCal Power Services, LLC, for
electrical maintenance related services, with a not to exceed amount of $500,000, for use at all
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All
purchase orders will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

This is a new agreement with a new vendor. It is an enabling agreement with no commitment of
funds. NorCal Power Services, LLC, was the low bidder on a recent project, but due to timing,
staff had to move forward with the next low bidder in which NCPA already had an agreement



with. NCPA desires to enter into a multi-task enabling agreement with NorCal Power Services,
LLC, so established terms and conditions are in place should this vendor be the successful
bidder on future projects. Execution of this agreement will also increase the pool of qualified and
proven vendors for these types of services. NCPA currently has agreements in place with
Electrical Maintenance Consultants, and Hart High Voltage for similar services. A draft
Commission Staff Report and draft agreement were available for review. It is recommended to
place this item on the consent calendar.

Motion: A motion was made by Steve Hance and seconded by Jiayo Chiang recommending
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-
Task General Services Agreement with NorCal Power Services, LLC, for electrical maintenance
related services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned
and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members. A vote was
taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Redding, Roseville,
Santa Clara and TID. The motion passed.

4. All NCPA Facilities, Members, SCPPA - Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC First
Amendment to MTGSA — Staff presented background information and was seeking a
recommendation for Commission approval of a First Amendment to the Multi-Task General
Services Agreement, extending the agreement expiration date from September 1, 2020 to
November 1, 2020, with no change to the not to exceed amount, for continued use at all
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All
purchase orders will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

NCPA entered into a five year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Evoqua Water
Technologies, LLC, effective September 1, 2015. This agreement is expiring on September 1,
2020. NCPA requested competitive bids specifically for the water treatment services required for
the CT facilities. Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC, was the winning bidder. The negotiation
process for the new agreement is taking more time than anticipated. This First Amendment will
extend the expiration date from September 1, 2020 to November 1, 2020 which will allow for
finalizing negotiations. There is no change to the not to exceed amount. This Agreement is still
available for use at any facility owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, SCPPA, and
SCPPA Members. A draft Commission Staff Report and draft First Amendment along with the
original agreement were available for review. It is recommended to place this item on the
consent calendar.

Motion: A motion was made by Tikan Singh and seconded by Brian Schinstock recommending
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First
Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Evoqua Water Technologies,
LLC for water treatment related services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, extending the expiration date from September 1, 2020
to November 1, 2020, with no change to the not to exceed amount or other contract terms, for
continued use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or
by SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi,
Lompoc, Palo Alto, Redding, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed.

5. All NCPA Facilities, Members, SCPPA - First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC
MTGSA - Staff presented background information and was seeking a recommendation for
Commission approval of a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with First Global Gear
Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC, for turbo machinery maintenance services, with a not to exceed
amount of $500,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members,
SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All purchase orders will be issued following NCPA procurement
policies and procedures.

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 2
August 5, 2020



NCPA had a previous agreement in place with First Global Gear Services, LLC, dba FGGS,
LLC, which expired. This is an enabling agreement with no commitment of funds. Staff has
utilized this vendor in the past, and has a good working relationship with the vendor. NCPA
desires to enter into a multi-task enabling agreement with First Global Gear Services, LLC, dba
FGGS, LLC, so established terms and conditions are in place should this vendor be the
successful bidder on future projects. Execution of this enabling agreement will also increase the
pool of qualified and proven vendors for these types of services. NCPA does not currently have
any agreements in place with similar vendors at this time. A draft Commission Staff Report and
draft agreement were available for review. It is recommended to place this item on the consent
calendar.

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Basil Wong recommending
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-
Task General Services Agreement with First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC, for
turbo machinery related services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for
use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA
Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo
Alto, Redding, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed.

6. CY 2021 NCPA Capacity Pool Rates — Staff presented background information and was
seeking a recommendation for approval of the Resource Adequacy capacity rates, to be used in
the NCPA Capacity Pool during calendar year 2021. Each Pool Member has established a
Resource Adequacy Program that works in conjunction with the CAISO Resource Adequacy
Program. To enable efficient transfers of Resource Adequacy Capacity between the Pool
Members, NCPA developed the Capacity Pool that is fully described in Pooling Agreement
Schedule 4. Pursuant to Section 3.8 of Pooling Agreement Schedule 4, capacity pricing for both
system and local area capacity will be developed annually, and will be established pursuant to
Commission adoption and approval. Prices may be developed by one of the following methods,
or a combination of these including, a negotiated price, a market price survey, or the CAISO
backstop procurement proxy value.

Motion: A motion was made by Basil Wong and seconded by Tikan Singh recommending
Commission approval, subject to an alternative recommendation as may be provided by the
NCPA Pooling Committee, establishing the following as the Resource Adequacy Capacity rates
to be used in the CY 2021 NCPA Capacity Pool:

e Local Capacity = $6.00 / kW-Month (May 2021 — September 2021); and,

$5.50 / kW-Month (January 2021 — April 2021 and October 2021 — December 2021)
e System Capacity = $5.50 / kW-Month (May 2021 — September 2021); and,

$5.00 / kW-Month (January 2021 — April 2021 and October 2021 — December 2021)
» Flexible Capacity Attribute = $0.50 / kW-Month

A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Redding,
and Santa Clara. ABSTAIN = Roseville. The motion passed.

7. NCPA Hydroelectric Facility — Hydro Wildfire Risk Mitigation Project — Staff presented
background information and was seeking a recommendation for Commission approval to
increase the not to exceed amount of the Hydroelectric Wildfire Risk Mitigation Project from
$3,000,000 to $3,250,000, including approval for the additional funds to be paid from the Hydro
Maintenance Reserve fund.

Design and construction of the first circuit of the Collierville-Bellota 230 kV line was completed in
1988. The second circuit was added around 1991. Both circuits utilized first-generation EPDM

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 3
August 5, 2020



polymer insulators. When the Collierville-Bellota 230 kV line was put into service, manufacturers
did not typically recommend corona rings on 230 kV lines, as this was a practice normally
reserved for extra high voltage (345 kV and above). Since then, operational experience, EPRI
testing, and advanced product research laboratory testing has indicated a need for corona rings
at the line end of 230 kV polymer insulators.

In September 2019, NCPA contracted with Power Engineers to prepare a Wildfire Risk
Mitigation Report and Recommendations. Part of the Collierville-Bellota 230 kV line crosses
through CAL FIRE Tier Il Fire Hazard Severity Zone. In consideration of the age of the
insulators, observed failures, and changing design standards, Power Engineers recommended
that the approximately 30 year old EPDM polymer-type insulators be replaced with new silicon
polymer insulators with corona rings, along with other hardware modifications.

In February 2020, the NCPA Commission approved Resolution 20-18 authorizing the
Hydroelectric Wildfire Mitigation Project, and delegating $3,000,000 authority to the General
Manager. After competitive bidding, a contract was awarded to Wilson Construction for
$2,654,877.39, with construction starting in July 2020. Subsequent on-tower observations and
design engineer recommendations have resulted in NCPA increasing the scope of work and
issuing several corresponding change orders. As of July 28, 2020, a total of $2,948,294.52 has
been committed for the project, leaving authorized funds of $51,705.48 as remaining
contingency. The change orders do include estimated costs for the remainder of the project,
scheduled to be completed the last week of August.

Motion: A motion was made by Brian Schinstock and seconded by Basil Wong recommending
Commission approval of an Amendment to Resolution 20-18 authorizing additional funds for the
NCPA Hydroelectric Wildfire Mitigation Project, increasing the total not to exceed amount of this
project from $3,000,000 to $3,250,000, delegating authority to the General Manager or his
designee to award bids, execute agreements, and to issue purchase orders for the updated
project amount, authorizing use of up to $250,000 from the Hydroelectric Maintenance Reserve
Fund, and acknowledging that the Hydro Maintenance Reserve Fund will need to be
replenished in future budget years. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs,
Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Roseville, and Santa Clara. ABSTAIN = Redding. The motion
passed.

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

8. New Business Opportunities — Staff presented an update regarding new business
opportunities.

Sonoma Clean Power (SCP) is currently reviewing an updated draft of the NCPA Power
Management Services Agreement. Staff conducted a page turn review session of the draft
agreement with SCP. A few outstanding items are being discussed between the two parties.
Pending feedback, the agreement will be reviewed at the next Facilities Committee meeting. An
All Resources Bill (ARB) review session is scheduled for August 7, 2020. The projected start
date for services is January 1, 2021.

South Feather Water and Power Agency (SFWPA) contacted NCPA last week with a request to
schedule a review session for the PPA within the next few weeks. SFWPA'’s counsel has
completed their initial review of the draft PPA. Staff will provide an update to the Committee
after that meeting.

MSR Public Power Agency recently contacted NCPA inquiring about scheduling services.
Members include Modesto Irrigation District (MID), Silicon Valley Power (SVP), and Redding.
Staff is working to provide a Statement of Qualifications to MSR for consideration. Pending

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 4
August 5, 2020



MSR’s interest in discussing NCPA'’s ability to provide scheduling services, staff will discuss
options further with MSR and Members.

9. NCPA Generation Services Plant Updates — Plant Staff provided the Committee with an
informational update on current plant activities and conditions.

Geo - There were no safety recordables in July. However, a couple of near misses occurred
with a slip on a turbine deck, and a pressurized steam line. No injuries occurred. A mountain
lion, and bear were also seen during July near the plant. Average generation for July was 91.6
MW, which is up from 90.5 MW in June. The FY 2020 YTD generation is 419.9 GWh, 1.6%
above forecast. Vegetation management continues, with firebreaks completed. Improvements
for steam production continues to fix idle wells. The plan is to re-establish 10 underperforming
wells, and convert into MWs. Staff continue to examine plant operations to maximize
generation.

CTs — All CT Units continue to run. During the month of June, CT1 had 12 actual starts, out of
71 forecasted, with 4 ghost starts, and 8 in real time. The YTD total is 16. CT2 had 7 actual
starts of 5 forecasted, bringing the YTD total to 7. CT2 was in a forced outage due to the
hydraulic starter. There were no planned outages.

Hydro — Things are operating as “normal” for this time of year, given the hydrologic conditions.
New Spicer Meadow storage is declining, and Collierville is operating at 11% capacity.
Recreational facilities have been very busy this year. August priorities include Union Dam
masonry repairs, Lake Alpine low level outlet gate and trash rack modifications, as well as
continuation of the 230 kV insulator replacement.

10. Planning and Operations Update — Staff provided an update on issues related to planning and
operations.

- NCPA Renewables RFP — Staff is seeking Member feedback regarding interest in
projects. Current projects in which Members have expressed interest include: Glover
Solar, Avangrid Stagecoach, Calpine Geysers, ORMAT Geo, and OCID. Review of
additional proposals is also underway.

- STAR Process Update — An initial Star Process meeting is scheduled for August 4, 2020.
NCPA has identified a number of projects in which it appears PG&E has incorrectly
recovered the project cost via TAC, which may result in savings. Staff is coordinating its
review with the CPUC, BAMx, and other stakeholders. The CPUC identified a $500 million
mistake. The TOZ20 rate case may be revisited.

- COVID-19 Update — Dual operations continue for the NCPA dispatch and scheduling
functions.

11. Next Meeting — The next Facilities Committee meeting is scheduled for September 2, 2020.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 10:17 am.

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 5
August 5, 2020



Teleconference call only due to Covid19.

Northern California Power Agency

August 5, 2020 Facilities Committee Meeting

Attendance List

NCPA Facilities Committee Members are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER NAME
ALAMEDA e
BART
BIGGS v
GRIDLEY -
HEALDSBURG
LODI -
LOMPOC -
PALO ALTO -
PLUMAS-SIERRA REC
PORT OF OAKLAND
REDDING -
ROSEVILLE -
SANTA CLARA -
TID S

UKIAH




Northern California Power Agency
August 5, 2020 Facilities Committee Meeting
Attendance List

NCPA Facilities Committee Members, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by
members of the public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
Corrie Wulo VIO PA
Vowtu HewuAs vLLPA
Toel Peclomts vUCP A

Sounes W leow s VIO YA




NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

August 19, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

August 27, 2020

SUBJECT: July 31, 2020 Financial Report (Unaudited)

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

10

if other, please specify

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth METHOD OF SELECTION:
Treasurer-Controller N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department: Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members X City of Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [
San Franci;t;;il?ja_ryr:;:ia; I City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC [1
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland []
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD [
City of Healdsburg [J City of Santa Clara [ Other [

SR: 184:20



July 31, 2020 Financial Report (Unaudited)
August 19, 2020

Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members

NOTICE:

The disbursements of the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) for the month reported
herein, will be approved at the August 27, 2020 meeting of the NCPA Commission. The
following page is a summary of those disbursements.

Prior to the Chairman’s call to order, the Assistant Secretary to the Commission will, upon
request, make available for review the detailed listing of those disbursements.

The report of budget vs. actual costs and the unaudited July 31, 2020 financial reports are also
included.

FISCAL IMPACT.:

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
The financial report would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 of the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

spectfully submitted,

,,,_A\&Nr*/l

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: (1)

SR: 184:20



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Disbursements

(Unaudited)

For the Month of July 2020

Operations:
Geothermal
Hydroelectric
CT#1 Combustion Turbines
CT#2 STIG
Lodi Energy Center
NCPA Operating

Total

$ 1,665,013
4,233,191
137,662
2,568,253
10,859,297
28,327,871

$ 47,791,287




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 2020 8%
This Actual Year FY 2021
Month To-Date Budget % Used
GENERATION RESOURCES
NCPA Plants

Hydroelectric

Other Plant Cost $ 1,667,749 $ 1,667,748 $ 20,872,106 8%

Debt Service (Net) 2,782,355 2,782,355 33,388,263 8%
Annual Budget Cost 4,350,104 4,350,104 54,260,369 8%
Geothermal

Other Plant Cost 1,705,371 1,705,371 30,610,931 6%

Debt Service (Net) 412,538 412,538 4,950,461 8%
Annual Budget Cost 2,117,909 2,117,909 35,661,392 6%
Combustion Turbine No. 1 475,299 475,299 7,883,578 6%
Combustion Turbine No. 2 (Stig)

Fuel and Pipeline Transport Charges 97,438 97,438 910,006 11%

Other Plant Cost 237,448 237,448 2,252,911 11%

Debt Service (Net) 402,180 402,180 4,826,162 8%
Annual Budget Cost 737,066 737,066 7,989,079 9%

Lodi Energy Center

Fuel 1,373,297 1,373,297 32,955,703 4%
Other Plant Cost 1,633,608 1,633,608 33,571,562 5%
Debt Service (Net) 2,168,653 2,168,653 26,023,835 8%
Annual Budget Cost 5,175,558 5,175,558 92,551,100 6%
Member Resources - Energy 6,788,260 6,788,260 60,055,852 11%
Member Resources - Natural Gas 345,298 345,298 2,442,174 14% (a)
Western Resources 2,624,680 2,624,680 29,869,636 9%
Market Power Purchases 2,788,479 2,788,479 27,422,650 10%
Load Aggregation Costs - CAISO 25,214,663 25,214,663 250,995,102 10%
Net GHG Obligations - - - N/A
50,617,316 50,617,316 569,030,932 9%
TRANSMISSION
Independent System Operator
Grid Management Charge 643,396 643,396 2,674,231 24% (b)
Wheeling Access Charge 8,067,827 8,067,827 112,666,513 7%
Ancillary Services 668,779 668,779 3,750,031 18% (c)
Other ISO Charges/(Credits) (4,350,686) (4,350,686) 935,326 -465% (d)
5,029,316 5,029,316 120,026,101 4%
MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Legislative & Regulatory
Legislative Representation 115,596 115,596 2,180,121 5%
Regulatory Representation 54,283 54,283 715,280 8%
Western Representation 36,994 36,994 716,059 5%
Customer Programs 20,586 20,586 476,652 4%
Judicial Action - - 460,000 0%
Power Management
System Control & Load Dispatch 488,400 488,400 6,765,755 7%
Forecasting, Planning, Prescheduling & Trading 219,765 219,765 2,934,342 7%
Industry Restructuring & Regulatory Affairs 25,724 25,724 425,152 6%
Contract Admin, Interconnection Svcs & External Affairs 79,625 79,625 999,897 8%
Gas Purchase Program 4,670 4,670 81,738 6%
Market Purchase Project 7,461 7,461 117,239 6%

Management Services continued on next page



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 2020 8%
This Actual Year FY 2021
Month To-Date Budget % Used
Energy Risk Management 20,795 20,795 229,845 9%
Settlements 58,449 58,449 923,646 8%
Integrated Systems Support 51,967 51,967 266,055 20% (e)
Participant Pass Through Costs 61,616 61,616 1,690,641 4%
Support Services 5,438 5,438 - N/A
1,251,369 1,251,369 18,882,422 7%
TOTAL ANNUAL BUDGET COST 56,898,001 56,898,001 707,939,455 8%
LESS: THIRD PARTY REVENUE
Plant ISO Energy Sales 6,037,605 6,037,605 105,258,271 6%
Member Resource ISO Energy Sales 2,154,624 2,154,624 26,421,509 8%
Member Owned Generation ISO Energy Sales 5,895,676 5,895,676 69,679,260 8%
Customer Owned Generation SO Energy Sales 12,617 12,617 n
NCPA Contracts ISO Energy Sales 1,278,880 1,278,880 18,914,977 7%
Western Resource Energy Sales 2,521,101 2,521,101 17,480,649 14% f
Load Aggregation Energy Sales 14,757,466 14,757,466 - N/A
Ancillary Services Sales 309,025 308,025 3,988,092 8%
Transmission Sales 9,198 9,198 110,376 8%
Western Credits, Interest and Other Income (1,587,545) (1.587,545) 34,901,791 -5%
31,388,647 31,388,647 276,754,925 11%
NET ANNUAL BUDGET COST TO PARTICIPANTS $ 25,509,354 § 25,509,354 $ 431,184,530 6%

(a) Variance caused by greater than anticipated natural gas for Lodi, Healdsburg, and Ukiah.
(b) Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy.

(c) Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy.

(d) Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy.

(e) Variance caused by FY21 software maintenance contract costs paid in-full during July. Variance will decrease throughout the year.

(f) Increase due primarily to higher than anticipated Western O&M revenue credits and member contract sales.




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Participants
Other
Interest receivable
Inventory and supplies
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable
TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

ELECTRIC PLANT
Electric plant in service
Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction work-in-progress
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT

OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets
Preliminary survey and investigation costs
Investment in associated company

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt
Pension deferrals
Deferred Outflows - ARO
TOTAL DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

July 31,

2020 2019

(in thousands)

25,886 $ 46,386
45,246 52,446
1,481 3,310
10,589 2,491
411 479
5,924 8,891
1,366 1,186
90,903 115,189
62,817 38,432
144,497 159,654
484 535
207,798 198,621
1,494,177 1,506,614
(1,021,402) (1,006,654)
472,775 499,960
- 182
472,775 500,142
224,899 223,012
- 553
265 265
996,640 1,037,782
21,478 32,414
16,936 17,055
61,985 62,101
100,399 111,570

1,097,039 § 1,149,352




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED
July 31,
2020 2019
LIABILITIES (in thousands)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 33,587 § 45,236
Accounts and retentions payable - restricted for construction - 10
Member advances 993 1,424
Operating reserves 19,809 22,001
Current portion of long-term debt 42,240 42,250
Accrued interest payable 3,851 4,716
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 100,480 115,637
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension and OPEB liability 63,003 66,126
Operating reserves and other deposits 133,932 130,470
Interest rate swap liability 18,968 14,613
Asset Retirement Obligations 66,754 65,155
Long-term debt, net 573,908 621,707
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 856,565 898,071
TOTAL LIABILITIES 957,045 1,013,708
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Regulatory credits 88,300 84,542
Pension and OPEB deferrals 4,737 5,802
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 93,037 90,344
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (12,181) (23,931)
Restricted 37,241 40,226
Unrestricted 21,897 29,005
TOTAL NET POSITION 46,957 45,300

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $ 1,097,039 § 1,149,352




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED
For the One Month Ended July 31, 2020
2020 2019
(in thousands)
OPERATING REVENUES
Participants $ 33,659 $ 41,290
Other Third-Party 5,864 21,533
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 39,523 62,823
OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power 10,158 23,076
Operations 4,898 5,221
Transmission 7,748 18,844
Depreciation 2,534 2,586
Maintenance 1,057 1,719
Administrative and general 621 835
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 27,016 52,281
NET OPERATING REVENUES 12,507 10,543
NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Interest expense (2,742) (2,965)
Interest income 3,757) (900)
Other 187 494
TOTAL NON OPERATING EXPENSES (6,312) (3,371
FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS (989) (692)
REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS 1,479 444
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 6,685 6,924
NET POSITION, Beginning of year 40,272 38,376

NET POSITION, Period ended $ 46,957 $ 45,300




6£0°L60°1 P1TH91 96F'L 06899 = $ [91°68¢ §  060°S 8SE'ST $  85790¢ §  zofeel S
66001 9€6'91 - - - $99°1 - 191 LEG'ST [0L29
$86°19 : 4 £ - €81 - 191 - 919
9£6'91 9€6°91 = o = - g - = -
8LY1T i . - - 18%°1 - - LE6'8I 090°1
0v9°966 8LT'Lb1 96Y°L 06899 - L6t'L8E 060°S L61°ST 1€5°182 199°69
9z $9z - 2 - E = 2 -
6687 790°5S - = = 910°67 - £L0°L S8 1€l £€88°1
SLL'TLY 8Tr'T 662 : S6LELE 600°C 16811 P ELL 601°6Z
SLLTLY 8TY'T 667 - - S6L'ELE 600'C 168°11 YrZ'ELL 60167
(Zoy120°1) foL’e) (565) = {9€L°L) (550°96) (z68'vE) 196'25) (816°187) (c16%eps)
LLU'P6Y'T 851°9 68 - 9ELL 05860 106°9€ 758'%9 791°56€ $T9TLS
86L'L0T 91518 - 0£0°0€ - 12€°67 = TET'E £969¢ 9€1°LT
78y 98T - - = 1€ - - 8 3]
iaddt £66'7S - $98'81 . Ly1°0T - 554 STI'LT zi'ee
L18°T9 LET'IT - S91°11 - 3253 2 LLET 95€°6 6£6°C
£06°06 L00'8 L61°L 098°9€ - S9ECI 180°€ 100°E 658°S €ES°LT
- {£91°99) 80LL 86L°EE - $TT9 €89°C SOLT 688°€ SSL'6
99¢'1 0S€ - - g L8T St £ L8E 99
¥26'S = - - - yITT (443 v9zT £86°1 st
434 9LT 1 PEL E - - - = .
685°01 L1T1 - £78°C F 6759 = - - -
18¢°1 €LE'T € sot - - 7 E - -
9WTSH oMT'Sy - - - - - E - -
988°5C 80L'ST $8 - - $ 06 $ 1 [ § - $ 1 $
pauiquioly ASuaiy FERIINET [IESTINTCIY 3uQ ON 191u3)) Aaloug aup oN SOII[IOR] JUI0IR0IPAY [eULI3YI0RD)
13410 IaqUIRIAL % Jamod UOISSIWSURLY, 1po 1D rende)
Pa1EI00sSsY paseyaing odujnpy
$IOANOSTA NOISSTASNVYL % ONLLYVIINID
0707 ‘1€ Alnp

UOTIBUIQWOY) Ul PITRUIWF ,

SIUNOSTY 40 SMOTALNO GHIIIHA ANV SLASSY TVLOL

SAYNOSTY JO SMOTILNO ATAHIIA TV.LOL
suoneSqQ WIWAINIY 1985y
S[eLI9JOP HHJO PUe S[eLI9jop UOISuD
1qap JO SUIpUIYaI UO 1500 SSIINY
SHOMNOSHY 40 SMOTILN0 AIYATIEA

SLASSY TV.LOL
Auedwioo pajer u 1
s1osse Aorenday
SLASSY ¥4dHLO
LNV1d Ord10d7d TV.IOL

ssa1fo1d-ur-y10m uondNLISUO)

uonerraldep pajejnunode $53°]
ao1a10s Ul Jue(d dLIOA[Y
INVT1d ORLOATd

SLESSV A9LONLSTY TVLOL
9]qEAIS091 159191U]
SIUGWIISIAU]
sjuapeambs yseo pue yse)
SLASSY A4LONILSTH

SLASSY INIHIND TV.LOL
R wsurexSoud 1ay1o pue Aousfy woy ang
sasuadxa predarg
sarpddns pue A1ojusauy
9[qeAI9091 152191U]

Eate]

syredionred
9[QRAIDAI SIUNOOY
SIUBLUISIAUY
siua[eamba ysed pue ysel

SLASSY INTHAND

SLASSY

(pantwo $,000)
SNOILLVIOJHO0D YAMOd AALVIDOSSY ANV
ADNADV HAMOd VINIOIITVD NUTHLION

NOILLISOd LAN A0 INIWILVLS ONINIIINOD

NOILVINJOANI TVIONVNIA 4dHLO



6£0°L60°t S pITHo1 96¥°L 06899 s - $  191°68€ 060°S 8SE'ST 89°90€ 79€°TEL
L56'9y 106'y S61°S S98°11 - 968'6 (531 0S¢ 5009 0068
L68'1T §19°C 968'% §98°11 “ 920'€ ¥91°2) 60€°T 020°T) 0LET
1¥T'LE (ev1) - - - st - L19°T $8E9L 6T
(astzy 6T¥°T 66T - (1.5°8) 600°C (9L5'€) {65€'8) 885°€
LEO'ES YEL'L 667 - = 00¥°0F 061°C S8l 695°€ 099°LE
LELY LELY - ¥ B - - - = -
00€°88 L66°T 66T 2 . 00t 0t 061°T s8It 695°€ 099°LE
SPO'LS6 6LS71S1 200T $T0'SS s S98'REE $S0'c €28'€T $68°96T 70858
$95958 8IS Tl €8L°1 Pip1E - 058°90€ - 96661 6LTELT STLBL
806'€LS - : 2 SE5'90€ - SE861 £TL°9€T SI8°01
¥$L°99 : - - - €81 191 - 0I¥'99
896'81 ‘ - E c - - 2 896'81 -
TE6'EEI S1S18 £8L'1 [4Eats = 431 - - 885°L1 0081
£00°€9 £00°€9 - - - - £ = - -
08r'001 1902 61T 119°€C . S10°2€ $50°E LT8E SI9°€T LLOL
158°¢ - - * - &'T - s19 0L6 £
ovT'y - - - S1S°TL z SLS'T 0sL'1z 00b's
608°61 T - 2 - 6TES1 810°¢ L19 0sT 65
£66 - 20T = - - = - - 6L
L8S€E $ 190°L L1 [19°cz $ - $ 86t LE 174 $v9 892
pauIquIo)y AJUITY EERITSEN 18T L 1SSH 1L 191w Adseus auQ ON sauoe] J11193[00IPAH [BULISYI00)
felele] Joquiapy 7 1amog 1po] 10 Ede)
paieIdossy paseyaing NN
SADINOSTI NOISSINSNV YL % ONILVHEANED
0707 ‘1€ Aing

NOILISOd 1IN ANV S40d9N0STd 40
SMOTANI INYAI8d "SALLITEVIT TVIOL
NOILISOd LHN TV.LOL
paRLIsoIuN)
pawuIssy
s1asse [edeo ul JusunsaAul BN
NOILISOd L3N

SHOUNOSTY 40 SMOTINI AT Add TV.LOL
S[e3Jop gHJO PUB UOISUSJ
supa1o Atore[nday
SIYNOSTY 40 SMOTINI ATEHAHA

SALLITIEVIT TV.LIOL

SAILITIEVIT INTHEND"NON TV.LOL

10U “1qop wia3-uo|

suoneSigQ JUSWAINY 19SSy

Aupiqey] dems o181 Isaeuf

susodap 1ay1o pue saarssar SuneradQ

Aupqeq gadO pue uoisued 1N
STLLITIEVIT INTINO-NON

SHILITEVIT INTHRIND TV.LOL

ajqeAed jsaratut parosy

1q0p uel-guof Jo uorod waLNY

saasasar Suneredp

SIOUBAPE JAQUIAN

sasuadxa parudoe pue sjqeAed sjuncooy
SALLITIEVI'T INTHEND

SHILITIEVIT

(pan1wo 5,000}
SNOLLVIOJYO0D YAMOd dALVIDOSSV ANV
ADINADV YIMOd VINHOIITVD NUAHLION

NOLLISOd LAN 4O INFWIALVLS ONINIFINOD

NOILVINIOANI TVIONVNIA HIHLO



LS6'9Y $ 106% § s6l's § <9811 § 9686 (ss1) 0s€ § <009 0068
LTV S6L'Y sy 9£1°01 099°S (o1L) 10t 9L6°9 897'8
$89°9 901 344 6TL°1 1544 195 (19) (1L6) 79
6LY'T 0Z0°'1 (09) LTS - i G611) i (610
(686) B - - (339} (s61) (s8t) (v61)
(z1£'91 (59£T) [2 (30t) (107°1) € 09 (€p6°'1) (Zop)
L81 L - - L01 - €L = -
(ese'e) @Le'D) 4 (80t) (8s1) € S w1t (L1v)
(zvLD) - - - os1°D) - @81) (6251 (sv)
LOSTH 1sp°1 66t 0191 58S Ly €02 89°1 LOET
910°LT (Svy'T) 6£T°1 8Y8°LL 978°¢ Y6 675 8LET LT
= - (3] - [37 9 L T (gs)
179 (SLy°1) 85t - S6€ 4] €5 €79 Sor
LSOl - 9 - 44 182 144 143 851
PEST 0 8 - 8L1°1 81 81 018 90€
SYL'L = - LLY'L €€ € - - 43
8687 - TLL She [20¥4 L8 6L1 69T TET'l
851°0L - - 9786 6€1 L1 9 A ¥
£25°6€ 9 8€L1 8st'6l 8LE'6 116 TEL 9v8'€ PSPE
$98°S # 081 (sLp) 06LT LEL LEL pSE'l A0
659°€€E $ 9 $ 85t $  €£6'61 $ 8859 vLL <65 § ev'T €1L1
paulquioy >ocum< SIJNAIRG uoIsst 11 11 1UR) Anlsuy U ON Saue OUII3[30IPAH [eULIRR020)
ayi0 Joquiay 2 Jomod 1po 10 fende)
PaIRIDOSSY paseyding u_n_u—_‘_z

SHOMNOSTY NOISSINSNVEL % ONILVIANTO

1207 ‘0€ AInp papug YIuoy[ duUQ 3y} 104

UORUIQUIO) Ul PAPUIIT

Papua porad ‘NOILISOd LAN
1eaf jo BuuiBag ‘NOLLISOd LAN

NOILISOd LAN NI (ESVITEOEQ) ASYIUONI
SINVAIDILYVd OL SaONNATY

SINNOWYV FTEVIIAODTE TANLOAL

STNNAATE (SISNHIXH) HNILYVYId0 NON TV1OL
12410
woou! 353193u]
asuadxa 1s3191u]

SANNIATY (STSNILXH) ONILYIEJIO NON

SHNNIATY ONLLY A0 LIN

SASNFIXHT ONLLYIEdO TV.IOL
L 1ou ‘saseyoind (sayes) Aueduiooisiug
[e10uad pue sAnBHSIIIPY
20URUSIUIRIN
uonewadaq
UOISSIUSURL],
suoesdQ
Jomod paseyoing
SHSNHIXT ONLLYIIdO

SINNIATYE ONILVEEdO TVLOL
Ared-pay) B0
sjuedionieg

SHANIATE ONILYYIJO

(payrwo s,000)
SNOILLVIOJY0D HAMOd AALVIDOSSY ANV
AONTAOV JAMOd VINIOAITVD NYIAHLION

NOILISOd LAN NI STONVHD ANV SASNAIXT ‘SAINIATYH 40 INTWALV.LS ONINIGINOD

NOILVINYOANI TVIONVNIA YdHLO



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY & ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
AGED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

July 31, 2020
Status Participant / Customer Description Amount

CURRENT $ 11,337,011
PAST DUE:
1-30 Calpine Geysers Effluent 732,963
31-60
61-90
91 -120
Over 120 Days

PARTICIPANT and OTHER RECEIVABLES (net) $ 12,069,974

NOTE: All amounts invoiced or credited to members and others are project/program specific.
NCPA does not apply any credits issued to outstanding invoices unless directed.

AR FY 2021Jul Rpt 2020



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

August 19, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

August 27, 2020

SUBJECT: Treasurer's Report for Month Ended July 31, 2020

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

If other, please specify

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth i\’),&uu METHOD OF SELECTION:
Treasurer-Controller N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department: Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members Cityof Lodi [J City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [
San F’a""i;‘;:i':aTyr:n’:; O  CityofPaloAlto [  Plumas-Sierra REC []
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [J Truckee Donner PUD []
City of Healdsburg [0  City of Santa Clara Other O .

SR: 185:20

\



Treasurer's Report for Month Ended July 31, 2020
August 19, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:
Approval by all members.

BACKGROUND:

In compliance with Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) policy and State of California
Government Code Sections 53601 and 53646(b), the following monthly report is submitted for
your information and acceptance.

Cash — At month end cash totaled $9,900,565 of which approximately $1,595,054 was applicable
to Special and Reserve Fund Deposits, $3,747 to Debt Service and $8,301,764 to Operations and
other.

The cash balance held at U.S. Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This
cash balance is invested nightly in a fully collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase
agreement.

Investments — The carrying value of NCPA'’s investment portfolio totaled $268,477,498 at month
end. The current market value of the portfolio totaled $272,770,398.

The overall portfolio had a combined weighted average interest rate of 1.590% with a bond
equivalent yield (yield to maturity) of 1.612%. Investments with a maturity greater than one year
totaled $149,339,000. July maturities totaled $62 million and monthly receipts totaled

$41 million. During the month $40 million was invested.

Funds not required to meet annual cash flow are reinvested and separately reported as they
occur.

Interest Rates — During the month, rates on 90-day T-Bills decreased 5 basis points (from 0.15%
to 0.10%) and rates on one year T-Bills decreased 4 basis points (from 0.17% to 0.13%).

To the best of my knowledge and belief, all securities held by NCPA as of July 31, 2020 are in
compliance with NCPA'’s investment policy. There are adequate cash flow and investment
maturities to meet next month’s cash requirements.

FISCAL IMPACT:
This report has no direct budget impact to NCPA.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

3 &

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Fstpectfully submitted,

Attachment

SR: 185:20



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

TREASURER'S REPORT
JULY 31, 2020
TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE
CASH & INVESTMENT BALANCE 1
CASH ACTIVITY SUMMARY 2
INVESTMENT ACTIVITY SUMMARY 3
INTEREST RATE/YIELD ANALYSIS 4
INVESTMENT MATURITIES ANALYSIS 5

DETAIL REPORT OF INVESTMENTS APPENDIX



NCPA FUNDS
Operating

Special Deposits

Construction
Debt Service

Special & Reserve

Portfolio Investments at Market Value

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

Northern California Power Agency

Treasurer's Report

Cash & Investment Balance

July 31,2020
CASH INVESTMENTS TOTAL PERCENT
2,536,008 $ 97,335,837 99,871,845 35.88%
1,328,201 - 1,328,201 0.49%
4,437,555 708,917 5,146,472 1.85%
3,747 16,496,187 16,499,934 5.93%
1,595,054 153,936,557 155,531,611 55.87%
9,900,565 $ 268,477,498 278,378,063 100.00%
272,770,398



Northern California Power Agency

Treasurer's Report

Cash Activity Summary
July 31,2020
RECEIPTS EXPENDITURES CASH
INTEREST INVESTMENTS INVESTMENTS INTER-COMPANY/ INCREASE/
OPS/CONSTR  (NOTE B) (NOTE A) OPS/CONSTR (NOTE B) FUND TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 40,328,203 $ 217,832 $ 18,777,154 $ (24,592,056) $ (10,731,074) $ (23,542,392) $ 457,667
Special Deposits 176,842 - - (14,905,864) - 14,728,933 (89)
Construction - - 5,145,000 - (708,911) - 4,436,089
Debt Service - 1 22,710,000 (29,662,692)  (12,337,724) 8,260,085 (11,030,330)
Special & Reserve - 272,724 15,271,200 - (16,243,544) 553,374 (146,246)
$ 40,505,045 $ 490,557 $ 61,903,354 $ (69,160,612) $ (40,021,253) § - $ (6,282,909)

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

NOTE B -Net of accrued interest purchased on investments.



Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report
Investment Activity Summary

July 31, 2020
(NON-CASH) (NON-CASH) INVESTMENTS
SOLD OR DISC/(PREM)  GAIN/(LOSS) INCREASE /
PURCHASED MATURED AMORT ON SALE TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 10,731,074 $ (18,777,154} $ 13,330 § - $ - $ (8,032,750)
Special Deposits - - - - - -
Construction 708,911 (5,145,000) 1,250 - - (4,434,839)
Debt Service 12,337,724 (22,710,000) 836 - - (10,371,440)
Special & Reserve 16,243,544 (15,271,200) (12,215) - - 960,129
$ 40,021,253 $ (61,903,354) $ 3,201 § - $ - $ (21,878,900)
Less Non- Cash Activity
Disc/(Prem) Amortization & Gain/(Loss) on Sale (3,201)
Net Change in Investment --Before Non-Cash Activity $ (21,882,101)

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value,



Northern California Power Agency
Interest Rate/Yield Analysis

July 31,2020
WEIGHTED
AVERAGE BOND
INTEREST EQUIVALENT
RATE YIELD
OVERALL COMBINED 1.590% 1.612%
OPERATING FUNDS: 1.779% 1.773%
PROJECTS:
Geothermal 1.910% 1.862%
Capital Facilities 0.666% 0.668%
Hydroelectric 1.448% 1.447%
Lodi Energy Center 0.840% 0.679%
INTEREST RATES
1.76
150 {
—_— .
KEY INTEREST RATES 1.25
PRIOR 1.00
CURRENT  YEAR 0.78
0.50 -
Fed Fds (Overnight) 0.09% 2.41% 0.25
T-Bills (90da.) 0.10% 2.09% 0.00
Agency Disc (90da.) 0.16% 1.98%
T-Bills (1yr.) 0.13% 1.98%
Agency Dise (1yr.) 0.18% 1.76% ——— —
T-Notes (3yr.) 0.15% 1.80% -~ T-Bills (90 days) -—#— FED FUNDS
e T-Bills (1 y1) e T-Notes (3 yr)




Northern California Power Agency

Total Portfolio
Investment Maturities Analysis
July 31, 2020
0-7 8-90 91180 181-270 271-365 1-5 6-10
Type Days Days Days Days Days Years Years Total Percent

US Government Agencies $ 327 $ 4604 $9,368 $ 5122 $ 2602 $ 64324 $ - $ 86,347 31.92%
Corporate Bonds (MTN) - - 1,500 3,000 2,000 68,255 - 74,755 27.63%
Municipal Bonds - - - 1,000 - 15,260 - 16,260 6.01%
US Bank Trust Money Market 6,107 - - - - - - 6,107 2.26%
Commercial Paper 5,297 - - - - - - 5,297 1.97%
Investment Trusts (LAIF) 53,278 - - - - - - 53,278 19.69%
Investment Trusts (CAMP) 1 - - - - - - 1 0.01%
U.S.Treasury Market Acct, * 15,921 - - - - - - 15,921 5.88%
U.S.Treasury Bill/Note - 66 10,851 146 - - - 11,063 4.09%
Certificates of Deposit - 10 - - - 1,500 - 1,510 0.56%
Total Dollars $ 80,931 $4,680 $21,719 $9,268 $4,602 $149,339 $0 $ 270,539 100.00%
Total Percents 29.90% 1.73% 8.03% 3.43% 1.70% 55.20% 0.00% 100.00%

Investments are shown at Face Value, in thousands.

* The cash balance held at US Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This cash balance is invested nightly in a fully

collateralized (U.S. Government Sccurities) repurchase agrecment. Cash held by Union Bank of California is invested nightly in fully

collateralized U.S. Treasury Securities.



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Detail Report Of Investments

APPENDIX

Note: This appendix has been prepared to comply with

Government Code section 53646.



wd 55:¢ 0Z02/50/80

ovp'L96 2,992 9089816¥6S  056'8¥0'L zLe 20L'L £207/80/80  0SE'LY6 8102/0Z/60 000 000°000'L 208N *dioQ YosoolN
000°000't 97992 LANHLEE06 08€'880't 66€°€ 180°L €20TVT/L0 000'000'+ 810Z/S0/80  OOV'E 000°000°L 208n sueg sn
000005 620.2 y8J4Z8GLS  §1Z'00S 2050 ¥90't €202/10/L0 00000 0Z02/60/20  80S°0 000'00G 008n SSEI JO UllESMUOWW)
042106 51992 1Zv998.2y SES'BES 9ez’e L10°) €20Z/SL/S0  GTL'E0S 8LOZ/ZL/90  GLEE 000°00$ oo08an Auedwo) AeysieH
002'00§ 20992 ZOVMI0Y30  0SE'LYS erre 000°L €20Z/8TIV0  S9T'LOG 8L0Z/GL/G0  00S'E 000'00S 208n 00 UOJiBI AN o ueg
0vL'605 8v892 €HAZYLLIES $50'9CS yoL'T €86 £Z0Z/LLY0  0.8'20§ 6102/1€/L0  0SS'T 000°00S 208n "oU] "Hewiem
850'06% 12992 IMETIELLE  D£E'9ZS 80€'€ €16 €202/L0/P0  0ZL'E8Y 810Z/12/60  00S'T 000'00S ooan alnBS [e01Ed PBIUN
628'06% 00992 IMEZLELLE  DEE'9TS 74 €26 €20TLOM0  GZZ'esy 810Z/GHS0  00ST 000'00§ oo0an SIS [90UBd PRIIUN
8€6'G6Y 5592 2Md0/9V80 G06'6ZS 980°€ 956 £TOTUSLIED  08TTOY 8L0Z/LZE0  0SLT 000'005 208N | kemeyjeH aaysiieg
ladadid £1992 YOLATIFYT 09V LES vaze 1v6 £20T/90/E0  §.8'68Y 8L0Z/THY0 0082 000008 008N O lende) 9199 uyor
68L'166 87992 £UVOLEZOE 068'950'L 890°€ 443 €Z02/L0/E0  0SV'G88 8L0Z/£0/80  92LT 000'000°% oo8n jes0dioD) yigow uoxxa
181'¢6Y 96692 GHEXB8ERY  §/6'9CS ysie 828 £€202/51/20  0L0'88Y 8102/L2/E0  GT9T 000'00S 204n "diog 9peIo
028'16Y £099¢2 SNDL088Z8  064'0ZS yov'e (443 €20T/L0/Z0  G8S'v8Y 8L0T/GLS0  0SL'T 000'005 208n dnasg Auedold uowns
101'986 S¥992 613196268 0BE'ZS0'L SLee £68 €20Z/LLILO  09L'V.6 BLOZ/ED/S0  00LT 000°000'L o080 P21 JOJOW EJoAOL
Tr0'L6€ 19992 90V09Cee6  9EL'ZTY GEL'E go8 T20CUVVITL  28GVBE 810Z/€0/80 008 000'00% oo8n ‘oU] BSIA
S06'26Y 6559¢C 98Vr9.99L  §25°0TS 800°€ 9s8 7202/S0/21  09L°G8Y 8l0T/LZ/E0  SSET 000005 oo0an *diod uosneyd
720'v6Y 71992 LYOMG99Z0  016'22S 1S1E 1€8 Z20ZI9MLL  0§S'88Y 810Z/THY0  009CT 000'00§ 208n UeUl BPUOH UBOLOWY
191'22L'L $T592 1OOEEBLED  LLE'LOL'L [r4¥4 8v9 TTOTULLISO  ©96'1TLL 8L0Z/LO/Z0  00ET 1e'eTL'} oo8n "au] ajddy
£Ob'v6 16592 TLasyyell S8E'LLS y26'C 6€9 2202120/50  00'/8% 810Z/LT/E0 02T 000°00S oo08an ‘auj 0Dlsded
16V 16V 10992 9IVAYEZL8 SLV'6LS SLEE 809 TTOT/LOMO  SBE'EHY 8L0T/GLISD  0S6T 000'00 208n spesjuawy gL
020'686 12992 $a009LeLy OrL'iE0t 286 615 ZT0ZIEO/E0  OYL'9L6 8102/02/60  0STZ 000°000°} o08an uosuyor g uosuyor
ov1'686 €992 TAQ8LLZYL 016'1€0°L 090°€ ¥5S 2702/90/20°  0L2'S16 810Z/02/60  00€T 000'000°} 208N sjquies) g Joj00id
508'666 61992 QvaAB.Ge8 082°220'} 8L0'e 80V L202/7LI60  0BY'666 8102/12/60  000'€ 000°000'L oo08n Auedwo)d e
£18'786 69992 SOEMSI9Z0  0Z5'EL0'L (4% voy 120T/60/60  0ZT'696 8102/02/60  00L'} 000°000°4 oo8n Ueul4 BPUOH UBoLIRWY
19%'409'T G9P9 GUSHIEELE G16'LPIT 029'L 65€ LT0T9TIL0  ¥BL'LLS'T 1102/82/80  0ZL'L 000°209'C o08an JpaID uued esepa-
1Le'96v 21992 8XalsoLLL 0SH'20S 8682 s0¢ 1Z02/20/90  0EL'L8Y 8L0Z/ZLIS0  0S6°L 000005 008n au Jezlid
819'066 04992 OMYOYL8Sy OLV'LLO'L 616 162 1Z02/61/S0  096'896 8107/02/60  00L'} 000°000'L Q08n diod 1)
y1E'L6Y 85592 §189/0L6V  01Z'60S 98T (324 L20Z/L0/P0  008'L8Y 810Z/L2/E0  000C 000'00S Q08n ‘auj jodeq aWoH
£PP'205 1y892 6Y3HEYLED §95'80G 960°T 744 LZOZISLIED  0LE'90S 6102/1€//0 00672 000'00% o08an LN TWENY TYNOLLYN
19.'G66 19992 £aays 2L 0LLZ00°0 6962 [1%4 12028220 020286 8107/02/60  00TZ 000°000'} 208N ouf sweshg 0ast)
815'86v 97992 7zl3zeyve 0TS'v0Ss 1S0°€ [18 1202/80/L0  SBL'Z6Y 8L0Z/12/B0  0SET 000°005 o08n O feydeD a103Q uyor
109'966 2992 LVITPLIES 096°G00°L 2v8e o€l 0Z02/5L/ZL  085'6.6 8102/0Z/60  006'L 000'000'L Q04an “2U| ‘Hewiem
150’814 80692 £€0£878CI6  EVS'8LL 8651 901 0Z0Z/SHLL  ¥BL'SLL 6L0Z/1E/0L  0SL'H 000'8H4 o08an Linseall SN
00001 zTe0e ZTEOESAS 000°01 0500 19 0zZ0z/L0/0k  000'0L 0Z0T/L0/Z0 0500 000°0L asn ueg SN
0 02002 0/00LSAS 0 0290 1 0 8L0Z/6L0L 0190 0 dWO WB Jessy eloled
86Y'2.2'S 9500 9G00ZSAS B6V'2LC'S 0100 3 867'2LT'G £102w2/80 0100 66Y'2L2'S asn Aueg SN
800°985'2 05002 0S00LSAS 800'9ES'Z 1000 3 800'9ES'Z £102/06/90 1000 800'965'C asn sued sn
865'196'€ #1002 YL00LSAS 865'196'E z00°0 I 865'196'€ €10Z/L0/L0 2000 865196'¢ Q08n oped 10 yueg uolun
9LL'LL6'EL 00002 0000LSAS 92116} $SEL 3 9LL'LLE'EL €L0Z/L0/0  ¥SE'L 9LL'LLB'EL Elial wisanuj Aousby [eo0]
000'SC 10102 LOLOLSAS ©000'ST 0500 3 00062 pL0Z/9e/LL 0500 000'Z asn N Hjueg Sn
anjep Suidired # Judlysanu] dISND  dnjeA yoiel PIBIA Aunen °jeq eoud ojeq e anjep plels uelpojsny / 9ISl Jenss|

Amnbg oysheq  Aumep paseyoangd 3 |
Jpuog
Bupesadp

| abed

020Z/1€/20
Jodoy sJainseal]
Aouaby 1omod eiulojijed UIdLyLOoN

Shaty ke e 1 b

VdON ./



¥90'96Y

66592

wd sg:¢ 0Z0Z/50/20

£MVOLEZOE SPY'8TS S50°€ e €Z0Z/\0/E0  0L9'TBY 8L07/60/S0  92LT 000°005 208N jes0diod GOy uoxx3
[4¥A>4 $299¢ L38YGLTLL  §2S'LLS oLL'e 34 £202/82/20 §59'28Y 8102/22/90 009°C 000°00S 208n "ou| SWeIsAg 0081D
££9'TVS 26592 141dEE5Z68  €ZV'LLS £0TE 768 £20T/0LL0  YBT'9ES 8L0°/60/50 529 000055 oo8n 1pa1D) Jojo BokoL
£26'56Y 52992 ZNVOPL8SY §29'L2S 0L0°¢ 998 ze0zISYZL  00E'ZBY 8L02/22/90  00LT 000'00S 208n dioQ ey
19€'8V2 z€997 90VO0Z8T6 01Z'Y9T 960'¢ so8 ZT0TUVLTL  GLB'9VE 8L0ZPTL0  008T 000052 008N "ou] ESIA
y2z'zey £2592 savaosyy. $.0'0TS Lok'e SLL 2202151160 SOL'E8Y 8LOZWOYO  0L€2 000'008 208N abeio)s Aldnd
£8Y'L6Y zi892 9989/0/8y 021125 816 699 T20Z/L0/90  06Z'v6¥ 8LOZWOIYO  5Z9T 000'006 008n "ou} Jodeq ouloH
7£8'86Y 12592 9IVAGEZ/8 SLV'BLS 00b'E 809 2202/10/Y0  00T'2BY 8LOZ/EOHD 06T 000005 204n apejuawy gL
66 v6Y 0£992 90AdeIYST  0£6'VLS 98L'e 085 TTOTPOIED  02TG'L8Y 8L0ZWT/L0  OSYT 000'005 o08n JKuedwog Asusiq 1AM
1¥6'96% 71592 LVE8LEYES SPE'SLS 86L°C 095 2Z02/ChT0  S6T'TeV 8L0TWOIV0  SLET 000008 208n "d100 YOSOINN
195'66Y ¥5692 YONgIZieyL 9ELZLS 08L¢C €€ 1202/60/180 €16V 0Z0T/92/€0 00L'L 000'60S 208N enueuld Jejidisied
565'06% 02692 68Vd90¥90  $68'G0S 000°€ sit L20T/IE0/50  GOL'98Y 8L0Z/EOM0 050 000008 008N 0D UOJJRIN AN J0 ueg
12V yEL92 LINH0DSELE  ¥BO'PSL'L 219 06 0Z02/0€/0L  B9E'BZL'L 8L0z/0Z/ZL  0EY'L 000054} 208N By |euoneN fesepad
€00'05L 11192 GSNOLECLE €8L'ZSL 0.8 iy 0Z0Z/L1/60  GP0'0SL 8L0ZILTLL G187 000052 oo8an eg UBCT BWOH [eleped
1£0'9 £200L €ZOOLSAS LEO'Q 2000 I 1€0'9 €L0Z/L0/L0 20070 1£0'0 oo8n oyjed Jo Yueg uon
11£298'6 2200L TZODLSAS L1E'288'6 ySEL 3 11£'288'6 SLOZNOIL0  pSETL 11£'788'6 4 wiseAu| fousby 2207
juno2dy Bupouejeg vdoS

piv'se $ vry'ss $ e L prv'se - $ 5L viv'se $ abeioAy PUE [ejoL pund
vry'ee SP00L SPOOLSAS bhY'se $GEL I rrr's8 SLOZLOIL0  ¥SETL 7hy's8 wysanu| fouaby (g0
320y uolldny SHO ddiNt
IsL'eve'ol  $ Ls'opeeL  $ SLLL 199 yoL'veL'oL § 609°L gLooLL'iL § abeleAy pue Jejo) pung
666'000°} Pv0LT 52avD9Ele  0ZZ'000'H 62570 €z8') $202/6Z/0  000'100°% 0Z0Z/0€/20 0090 000°000'} oo8n Bi jeuonen je13pad
000’008 102 QXEZTLLL6 08R'00S 18L0 S6L'L SZ0Z/LOML0  000°00S 020Z/0€/L0  ¥12°0 000°005 208n suel) ydeQ UISUCOSIAN
987005 $20.2 SPXADYELE  O¥S'00S 6280 v6L') GTOTIOE/O0  S6Y'00S 0Z0Z/08/90 0060 000005 o08n 1N UBCT] SWIOH |eleped
000'00S $10.2 9TUNDVELE  SZZ'005 0040 68L'L ST0TST/O0  000'00S 0202/52/190  00L'0 000'00§ 208n N UBC OWOH (Bi8pa-
000°000'+ 60042 LVMPOOELE  0ST100'L oLLo 89L'} SZ02/YO/00  000°000'4 0Z0Z/PO/90  0LL0 000°000'L ooan BIW leuoneN [esapad
000'000't £50LZ Y/3POOELE  089'666 050 Zvo'L $20z/62/L0  000'000°} 020Z/0€/L0  0L50 000°000'k o08n BI JeUOREN [EISPaS
19€'025 17662 6SIWHLEE0B GE0'LPS gL obo't §Z02/L20 0952 020220170 0082 000'005 008N w'N Hueg Sn
000'000't £2692 §6dNOFELE  080'900'L 0ze'L 1291 $Z0Z/30/LO  000'000°L 0Z0Z/80/10  0Z8'L 000'000'} 008N 1N UBOT SWOH jeJapad
000'00'L 68897 P4IHVOELE G68'Z0S'L 666'} €25} ¥202/20/0L  000°00§'+ 6L0Z/¥0/0L 0002 000006t 208N g UBOT BWOH [Biapay
000'000'% 18892 THOL9ET68 092’846 €282 815’} $Z0Z/LT/B0  000'000'L 6102/22/60 0812 000°000'} 208N upaig Jojo ElokoL
000'00€'Z 88897 0ZNXTEELE £TS'VEE'T 068t 815l ¥Z02/L2/60  000'00€°C 6102/,27/60  068'L 000'00£'Z 208an JIpaID) Wied [eiopo
000'000°E 98897 13NGZZYIE  00€'900°C 000T I3 ¥202/ST/60  000°000'€ 610Z/52/60  000°C 000'000°¢ oo8n feimjnouby |esapad
000'00L' 7892 9SAMSY0S0  L6V'202°} UseT s15'L ¥Z02/vTI60  000'00L'L 6L0Z/2/B0  00SC 000'00L°L o08n dioD eoUBIY 30 Yued
000'000' z10L2 £6773EELE  060'000'L 0LL0 oLyl yZ0ZILLS0  000'000°L 020Z/£1/190  OLLD 000°000'L 008N 1paID uled fesepad
§9Z'0LS 09192 SLrHSZOOY 0.6'6SS 195°€ 6.T'L yZOZ/LOZO  0SS'¥LS 6L0Z/SLT0  SI8€ 000005 208n ueBiow dr
ls6'oLL'Y 02892 §79X68£89  G6S°18E'Y 0£9'T ovl'L £202/51/60 _ 2SP'90L'Y 610Z/LE/IS0 00V 000'SY L'y oo04an 'di0) apelo
anjep Buikued # ]ausaAU] dISND  onjeA Joen PIRIA Aunen areq ?0ld sjeq ejey anjep payess UBIPOISNY / 32)SNIL Janss|
mnb3 o0y sheqg (juney P nd yaing
puog

Bunesed

0202/1€/L0 e .

B D OOy RN TR TS 3T TR L

yodoy sJainseaiy YdON. /

Aouaby Jamod erusojijed uldyuoN 7 a4

z abed



wd gg:¢ 0202Z/50/30
£62°2L0S 86/92 SHITYLIEE 066'CHS 98T 850°} €202/9T/90 096°015 6102Z/L0/C0 oov'e 000°00§ 2048n "0U] ‘WBWEM
ove'vOs 65492 €HVP8.091 STE'/ES 1¥8C 280'L £T0T/YTI90 520'205 610¢2/L0/20 1BL'E 000°005 o0an "dio] uosmeyd
194'G18'L ¥869¢C PNAPSYOVD  629'/v8'L 18€°L vE0'L €202/L0/S0 169'818°L 020T/L1LIV0 L0 000's8L'tL 208N 6oy Jo pieog euozUY
189'eyl ovi92 SMEPOLe9L  £91'€6L 6£6'C 210} €202/91/50 062'8¢€2 610Z/08/10 995°C 000'0S. a04an *d100 UoiARYD
6.8'06v £859¢ IMETIELLE  OEE'9ZS Spee €16 £202/10/¥0 Se1'esy 81.02/92/¥0 00T 000°00S 208N OIAIRg [3died PBiuN
¥50'v6¥ 91692 84809780 S08'62S eve'e 966 €202/51/E0 oze'asy 810z/92/v0 0542 000'00S 204dn | RemeipeH alusyieg
zeg'cer 1859 0484500V, §98'PZS §eee ve6 €202/12/20 0s€'asy 810Z/9Z/¥0 00L'C 000'00§ 204an ouj Jexeld
eLe'eey 62692 SHEX6YEBY  5L6'9TS S6L'E 826 £202/51/20 05¢'28¥% 810¢/9¢/v0 SC9T 000°00S oc8n *diog 9peIO
969'G6Y G4592 Z3VH90¥90  G§99'0£S §eee 353 €20T/6¢7/10 062'16¥ 8102/92/¥0 05§6C 000°00S o04n 0D UOJISIN AN Jo)jueg
8G6'vV.L PAIATA €INHIEE08 SLLVEBL orie 506 €T0T/ET/ 10 006'I¥L 6102/0€/10 058°C oam.omh o08n V'N Sueg Sn
912'96¥ 8692 90V09Z826 0ZP'8ZS svi'e Go8 zeoeviieL 009'26¥ 810T/9T/v0 008°C 000'00S o0an U] BSIA
£65°e6Y 6EL9C YMOd8IVST 566'1TS 1E6'T 58 zeoeiorel oov'e8y 6102/0g/1L0 0s€T 000°005 208N huedwod Asusiq yem
9zh'Tro'L 18692 PramiLere  268'€90') o1°1 A 0gs 2202/10/80 0zl'9v0't 0Z02/5LV0 0587C 000°S10'} 208n 4 leuonlisugil QAN
¥v1°00S 0859C PXO8PYELL  09Z'STS £80'¢ SiL 22024110 0L€'008 8L02/92/v0 ooL'e 000005 204n “ou olsded
000'000°C 1969C 18N13eEie  006°L00'T 000°L 869 2202/0€/90 000°000'Z 020z/0¢/€0 0004 0000002 204an Hp2UJ uued jejepad
6€1'865°C £9¥9C 690BLEELE  GGS'LOL'E 09L'L 819 2e0e/aL/90 095'¥€9'€ 2102182180 seL'e 000°6.6'€ o04an eg U0} SUWIOH {elepa ]
oLY'eco'y y259¢ LOOLEBIED £5S19L'Y 62€C 8¥9 C0T/L1IS0 8€5'020' 810¢/10/20 00eC Z5Y'ST0'Y a08n “ouj aiddy
LL0'L6Y 28592 93aVAQEZ/8 SLV'6LS SEL'e 809 2202/10/%0 056'267 8L0OT/9C/H0 0567 000°00S o08n apejjpawy QL
£96'96¢ 84592 \vagLeYBS 9LTTIY 38T 09% 220220 o8y'i6e 81.02/9%¥0 7AR4 000°00% 208n "d100 Yosomln
£16'68S°L 28692 ¥3.0L26V9  BYY'F09°L £8¢'L A4 L20e/LO/L L 692'¢66°L 0202/51LvP0 006C 000'65G'L 204n o jeuoniisuztl JAN
890'00S 9692 GOEMGO9Z0  G69'9LS zzs'e oy 120¢/60/60 ¥Z6'96Y 0eToz/seIe0 0044 Q00'0}S 208n uelll] BPUCH UBdUBWY
195'66% 15692 YONgIZLerl 9ELCLS 084T €Le 1202/60/80 €1L'l6¥ 0202/92/20 004°} 000'505 ooan epueul Jejidiojed
129'L6¥ 96692 vONQIZieyl 9EL'TIS 691 €8 1202/60/80 zol'sey 0202752120 0oL’ 000'506 204an epueul Jejidiejed
098'1€E'T 2692 IMEVALELE 000'ZVE'T 009l 804 0zoT/LLIVE GBR'GEE'T 610Z/LLICE 681 000'08€Z 208N N U0 SWOH [elspad
1S 12002 VL00LSAS 1S 090 3 LIS 810Zv LTI 0490 5] dWNO B Jessy BlLIoiED
0 16002 LG00LSAS © 0000 3 a €102/L0/L0 0000 0 asn Jueg sn
8ZY'TYo'e 61002 6L00LSAS 6ZP'Z0'S 2000 3 682¥'TV0'e £102/10/L0 2000 62¥'Zp0'e 204an oje J0 jueg uolun
08€'¥64'cT 20004 0000.SAS 08E'V6L'EZ 5L 3 08€'v61'ET €102/10/20 yse' 08E'PB1'EC Elal unsanu fousby [e007]
DAIOSIY m:_uﬂ._wao jeiaudgy
osz'ess’er  $ 868'952°6C § £52°T 159 civ'sve's $ £50°C Zye'epa’sc  § sbesaAy pue jejoL pundy
0000052 5692 QSAGZZYIE §.6'00S°C ooe't €89°L ScoTr e 000'00S'2 020zZ/1 Lieh a0e’L 000°005'C 204an fesnynauBy (esepay
000'052'1 £.89C Z3Ndzevie §29'76TL 0002 -4 ¥20e/5e/60 000'082'} 610¢€/52/60 0002 000'0SZ°L 208n feamnoLfy [eJapad
000'00S L£892 1QD19€268 0OV8'L0S 344 vyl ¥202/82/L0 000'005 6102/62/L0 0T 000'00S o08n 1ip8IQ JOJOIN BI0AOL
000'000'C 9e/9C LIAVOELE  000'120°C ooL'e 'L RXATALTAIAY 000'000'2 8Loe/seith oole 000'000'2 208n eg Ue0T SWoH jeiepa
692°00S'C 5992 9ZNSOVELE SLL'POS'T 6E0'E zzLL €202/92/80 0SZ'105°C 8102/8¢2/80 050 000'005'2 oo8n JAl UBOT] BWOH [esepad
010’86y 9799¢ €HAI80LLL 08T'LES 0sL'e 2p0'L €202/S1/90 056'96F 810¢/2T/90 Q00 000005 304an ou} 182ZUd
280" 167 18992 90Q/08828 SS0'€TS 8EP'e PE0’} £20T/L0/90 SZL'v8Y 8102/vT/L0 0sL2 000'00S 208N dnosg Apadold uowis
yyi'68Yy 16592 LOV90LYS9  068'V2S 801'¢ €00°} €202/10/50 0se'08y 810¢2/60/50 0s2C 000°00§ o08an ouj SHIN
008'L6Y 22992 IMAzZLELLE DEE'9ZS 214 €46 €202/10/v0 08.'v8Y 8102/22/90 00S°2 000005 o0an JIIRG [B0IRd PN
SyL'vey 96592 g490.9V80  506'62S G8L'e 956 £202/51/€0 082'06¢ 8102/60/S0 0SL'T 000005 J04n | RemeuieH alysieg
anjeA Bupired # Juswsaau} diSND  9njeA JaxseN PIRIA Kunjen 3jeq 2oUd 3teq ajey onjep pajeis uelpojSNY / vASNIL Janss]
anb3 o} sAeq e p ) 3 aseyaind Jsalau|
Jpucg
JunoNy Buiduejeg ydoS
0202/1e/L0 e
I ASRIE Tt bk

¢ abed

poday sainseal]

Aouaby Jamod eruiojijed uIdyUoN

WdON!/



wd gs:¢ 0Z0Z/50/80

120z/62/. Buiness Ausyenb ejge|ed YIANS £P0LZ# WOWISIAYY 0202/ 1/60 BulEls Ajjenuue-iwas \qefed OWvd 85692 AUaUSanU|

swnAue o|qelied NULSIM 290/ TH# UsWSaAU} 0Z02/1 1/60 Buiiess Ajjenuue-iwas sjqefied OWv4d GG69T AuaWISanu|

swifue ajqe|zly NYLSIM L POLC# uawisaAL} ¥202/z/T) Buiers swniue sjgeied  MNVESN 1569C #USWISIAU|

swpAue ajgejied SYW 620.LZ# JudUnsSOAU} ¥20z/L7/2) Buers swnhue ogeled  MNVESN LpB9T Husunsaru}

y20z/Ees9 Bunues Apepend ejgejied Wdrl ¥20.2 Auswisanu Lzoz/elL Buipess Ajenuue sjge|ed OWIHS £269C Husunssaul

0Z0z/0¢/6 Builels Auspenb sigejied SWTHA GT0/ T #uswsanuf 120¢/22/1 L Bunels Apaenb ajqelied Wdl 21692 #HuawisaAu|

ZZoz/2 119 Bunels Apspenb eqejied J4M €104 #uUsUSaAL] ¥20T/S0/| UO 3|qefle]y MNVESN 50692 HUaISIAUY

1202/5Z/9 Buess Ajlenuue sigejied OWTHAL 91047 #usunssaul 0202/20/0) Bunsels awnue sjqelled g1Hd 68892 JAUsUNSAAU|

1202/G2/9 Buipes Ajenuue o|qe|eQ OWTHA §104C usuyssau) 1202/22/60 Buiels awniue siqe|ied 8044 8889 uawisanu}

0Z02/L1/6 Buness ajqe|ed g044 Z10.2# Jusunsanu} 1202//2/60 Bupiels Ajlenuue-iwes sjqelied AOL £889T #usuSaAL|

YT0T/ L9 U0 Biqejied SVP 11022 #usunsanu 0202/52/60 Buiels Allenuue-iwes ojqe|ed OV 98897 #UIULSBAY|

120279 Buiuels Apspenb ajqelied VWNH 600/2 #Husunsan] 0202/52/60 Buipes Aljlenuue-iwes ojqe|ed OV £/897 #Hususeau|

$202/1/G uo BuLels uiebe Usy) pue £202/1/9 U Siqefe] Wdr £00.Z Aueunsaal| 1.Z0T/vZi60 Builels Allenuue-iwas algefied ova Z/89T #jusuisanu|

awphue e|gelied  HOHSZY YR69T# JusL)SaAU] 0202/9z/8 Bueys Apapenb siqejed OWv4 1/89¢ jAUSWISAAU]

swpiue sjqe|ed NOH £869¢# JUsuIsanul €£20Z/1L/10 o 3|qe|ed LIAM 8789z HUBLISaAU|

swmAue eiqeiied  NIDOAN Z869Z# usunsanu| 1202152/ Buipels Allenuue-lwas alqe||e) AOL Liy89Z# 1UaWISaAU|

swiAue 9|qe|ED  HIMSYD §50.2Z# JUBLSOAY| swnfue ajqelied  NIDOAN 1 869Z# JusuiseAu} 1202/62/. Buiuels Allenuue-1wos 3jqe|e) AOL LEBGZH# JUSWISIAU|

0202/p/1 | Bunie)s sumAue sjgeted a044 £60.Z $UBSDAU| awiAue ajqe|ied NOH 0869Z# Juswsanul £C0Z/SLIL U ojgeled o0 0789C# JususseAl]
0Z0Z/b/L | Buiyels swnAue ejqe(ied |04 260..2 #AULWISaAL| 0Z0z/0¢/60 Bupeys swniue ajqelied g04d 1969 #uauisall 0zoz/ez/el uo sjgejed a7H4d 9€.19Z4# Jusu4SBAUL
1202Z/62/4 Bupels Auepenb s|qelled YN PO/ Z# Mew)seAu| 1.202/92/€0 Buels swinue 2|ge|led 8044 0969C fBUSWISaAUY £TOTIET/9 UO 3|qe|eD asn 9P99TH# JUBLSAAY|

0Z0Z/LE/L0 3O SE [ewnor 3520 (1B 343 tios) Seokid Piq 10 SHUSWISIEIS UBIPOISND /8IS WO S2oud UO paseq S| aNjEA Joje) JuaLng
“poyaus JoBXS UR SN SJaL0 Jje ‘Pouyaw ajewixoidde ue asn AjLnjew o} SUIUOUS 9 UBL) SS3] YIim sjusInSanL]
~sadAj jje o} uosised log siseq e 1d 0} Jeok Aep §9¢ © UO paseq UMOYS sI AjUnjep o3 PISIA juaeanbsy puog,
85€ZI0I8L $ ‘e6L'98L'v8L $ gL} [ 172 §60'PEL081L $ 64471 9Ll 1ze'08L $ :STV.LOL ONVYD
Los'0eT’le  $ vi8'¢05°T8  $ z09°'b viL yei'sizie 8 1e9L zLL'185'08 ¢ abesoy pue jejo) pund
000°00S v0LZ 8LXETLLL6 088008 {Z7A] GBL'L GT0/10/L0 000'00S 020Z/0€/L0 vLL0 000'00S 208N suel) 1daQ usuoIsim
000'00S 9102 9TINDYELE  STT'00S 0040 68L°} §202/52/20 000°00S 0202/5T/90 00270 000'00S o08n N UB0T BWOH jesepad
000052 ¥20LT ornoezier GLZ'1SL 0s0°L 284} §202/€2/90 000'052 0202/€2/90 0s0'L 000'05.2 208n ueBioW dr
000'052 €L0LT zZavaLooss 818'05L 005} 18L'1 SZOT/LLI90 000'0S2 0202/L1/90 005°} 000'062 208N yueg obied siispm
209'799°) 23042 JNVEBLOYL 0.9'6.9' ee0’t 6LLL G202/S /90 686'299'L 0202/52/90 0sZ'e 000'005'L 204n spedjse) uoiskald
006'2Yy L1042 iP494€ViF 80 r.mvv 662} soL't §202/10/90 85G'EVy 020Z/11/90 05€°C 000'0ZY ocan V] sedser jo Aunod
0082201 80042 09091688y 09L'VE0'L 9980 S9L'L G20T/10/90 095'€Z0°} 020T/£0/20 ase’L 000°000'4 c04an opewwsiu] [lamAsuoH
2£8'GL0'} 9004¢C £g0es5668 0¥0'S20’L 820’1 POL'} STOT/L0/P0 0SP'9L0'L 020Z/92/50 005"} 000°000'+ 208n ‘pul MO Aunod esing
000°00§'T 0969C 6LNT3EELE  STY'EOS'T 00¢€’L 869't ST0T/9TIED 000'005'Z 020z/92/e0 ooe’i 000006 208an 1IpaID uleH [esspa4
000'00€'2 8669Z 9SAEZZPLE LBY'00ET 00€'L €89°L Ge0e/LLigd 000°00€'Z 020Z/LL/ED oog’L 000'00€'C o04an fesmynoufy jeiapad
¥06'CLS §00.C AVZ08PBE  S51'9TS pAYAS 6594 SZOTISHTO 00S'vLS 0202/12/50 088’} 000'00S 208n “ouf JobulesD MM
961'GlS 000.2 pIAVZ08P8E  SG1'92S Lot 659’1 2050 000'9L5 0202/0¢/¥0 Q0s8°L 000005 o04an ‘ou JeBulRID M M
29€'028 1569¢ 6SWHLEE0B SE0'LYS 9v8’L ove'L §20T/L20 095'z2S 0202/L0/20 0082 000'00S 2048n VN Sueg sn
02¢'696'} 2969C 8IDEVOELE 682'800C 0€8°0 G65'L yeoz/eLTL 887'186'L 020z/5e/e0 0542 000'028'4 204N Bg UB0T SUIOH {BJepad]
000°005'+ 21692 6VINDBZI8Y G/S'POS'L 98€C 6.8} $eoziieiiL 000'006'} 6102/42/LL 00eT 000'00S'L 20an uebiop df
000°000't 06892 p4/HYOELE 0E6'L00'L 6661 €261 fgAVATAVIY 000'000°'L 6102/¥0/0L 0002 000°000't 204n eg ueo SWOH [eseped
000'000°S 12892 YONEZIYLE 0£V'Z00'C QoLe 98yl Ye0z/9zIe0 000'000°€ 6102/92/80 00LZ 000°000'€ 008n leanynoLiby [eJepas
ozi'1zs's 0869C 1IX/898¢y 006'9.5'L 8801 Lop't ¥202/10/30 oiL'zzs't 0coz/el/vo 4% 41 000'008"L 204n 00 pue A ninjoucy
000052 189 LAD19EZ68 091194 olvr'e ¥Sv'L $20CiSTIL0 000'0S2 6102/52/L0 owwe 000'05L a0an 1p2L7 JO10W BI0AOL
6v8'G00'} 10042 80adipooy  001'¥20'} 96¢e') 0oF'L $20T/L0/80 0Z1'900't 0¢02/L2/50 y16°L Q00'000'L o04n ueBioW dr
8£8'85Y 8069¢C SAHHBSLL6 0LEZ8Y £60°2 €8C'L $202/50/20 298'29¥ 610¢2/1€/01 744 Q00'oYY 008n VN Yueg sn
619'0LS 1619¢ 8LIHSTI9Y  0/6'6SS gege 8.2+ $202/10/20 0ZL'51S 6102/20120 S18°¢ 000'00S 208n uebiow dr
162'50S 96292 LSVAGZELL 0L0°ZSS 6lE'e 0Lz’ ¥zZ0z/eL/Lo 061208 6102/20/20 0s9'e 000'00S 208n VN Aueand
z.6'1£8'L £8692 6AG0/98EY 1£0'268'L 020') oGL'L £202/10/01 681288} QZ0zZ/LLv0 Wiz 000°02L'} 204n 09 pue AjD NNjoucH
6LZ'¥0S 8€.92 6NILB0LLL 0BE'ZYS 806'C ovL'L £Z02/S1/160 05Z'90S 6102/0¢€/10 ooz'e 000'005 204n oul Jazyd
206's6L'2 G869C 9AMGOLELS  288'922'C 020°L gzL'L £202/10/60 y£2'002'2 0202/LLv0 8641 000's¥1L'2 Q204n JoM Jarep AswoBluoi
snjep buiiues # JuaLysSIAUY dISND  °NjeA JaeN PIRIA Aunyen ojeq adud eq ayey anjep payels uelpoisny / sIsniL Jonssj
Anb3 03 sAeq 1 peseyaing aseyand Jsasau|
~puog
oAlosay BunesadQ |eiduss)
0Z02/1LE/L0

AN T 0 Bl
YdON\
ry

4

Hoday sJaunseas)

Aouaby Jamod elulojijeD UIBYUON
4 abed



wd ggic 0Z02/50/80

0z1'95€ £00L2T OHQE8LLZT MIY'LOE asy'h 8v0'L €Z02/5H90  L1T'9SE 0207/L0/S0  £9S°L 000's5€E oo8n 100Y9S AunoQ 3001
99¢'86Y 8vs9T ‘QHVHZEBYY GBZ'EES orLe 616 £202/90/20  029'96¥ 8L0Z/SL/E0  000°E 000'00% os04an 71 P10 Wl
£61'502 6592 L3VHO0Y90  866'S6L 62Ct 116 £20Z/62/L0  0L9'OVL 8L0Z/SHED  0S6T 000°052 208n 00 UOIiZIN AN Jo sjueg
162'vL 05592 S1MIZCYYT B6Y'VEL voL'e 606 £202//2/10  8VL'6EL 810Z/54/S0 0082 000'052 oo8n 0 [ende) aivaQ uyop
16£'68L 15592 YMOJS9YSZ ££6'282 v00'e zs8 ZZ02/L0/28  085'8TL 8L0zZ/5L/E0  0SET 000'05Z o04n JAuedwo Asusia Jem
000'052 €160 VSWLELIPSZ £85'SOT zsie 99L Z202/90/60  00Q'0ST 8L0Z/90/60  0SL'E 000052 o04n »jueg 1on00sIg
000'05T 0L£0g VE4VOE0LEE  0S6'Y9Z 150 09 Z202/L€/80  000'0ST 8L07/LE/80  0S0°E 000'052 ooan UBE UHON 1eaId
000'05Z 11€08 VOLE9LEVE OLK'S9Z ¥61E 664 ZZOZ/OE/30  000'0ST 8L0Z/0£/80  0SLE 000°05C oo8an sueg obie sfiepm
0£2'120°1 10042 L1ZOTIPL6 080'2E0°L 080°} z59 720Z/SHS0  008'920'L 0Z0Z/0€H0  ZIET 000°000'L 208N oJeD Jo Aysieaun
v11'098 66v92 LOOSEBLE0 6ZE'068 62€C 8v9 2T0Z/LLS0  L11'098 110206201 00ET 112198 oo08n "ou| ajddy
yAVE27) £669C DATUESEBS SOV VLL £0L'E S6Y L202/60/2L  0S¥'SEL 8L0Z/SIED  0SST 000°052 o08n " WN>jueg ONd
000'05Z zLe0g VZOIDL0020 86L'L5C z00°¢ v6e 1Z0Z/08/80  000'0ST 8107/0€/80  000°€ 000'052 00dn yueg Ay
129'L6¥ G969C VONgTIZieYL 9EL'TLS 691 €€ 1202/60/80  TOM'S6BY 0Z02/52/E0 00L'L 000'505 204N eoueul Jejidiaed
206'86¥ lel9T SNILCTOE §.T'60S 9/T€ §5T L20UELPO  008'96Y 8L0Z/08/LL  0%6C 000005 oo8an P21 J0JO ElOKOL
TEP'B6Y 97192 LAOMS9920  556'S0S soz'e 661 \Z0T/ZHZD  00S'SBh 8L0Z/0€/LL  0S9T 000'005 ooan UeLil epUOH uBdLeWY
TI6'TI0'L ¥E00L VEO0LSAS TL6'TI0L Z00'0 1 716'T10'L €L0Z/LO/L0 2000 TI6'TL0') o08n ojijeD j0 YuBS Uoln
68" L5y 12002 1200/SAS V68’25 ySE't 1 v68'257 €LO0Z/LO/LD  YSE'L 6825t Eial unsoAu) Aousby 1200
anlasay Bujuoissiwiodoq 099
ezv'ols’t  § 802'0Z5°L ¢ yZr'L ost 289'66¥°} 08¢’} 000°1Z8°k  § abesony pue |ejo) pung
8Z7'015'L 0892 10N96.ZI6  602'02S't yZy'L ost LZ0T/9TL0  T89'BEY'L 0Z0Z/LE/L0 06l 000°125'} o08an Anseaif 'g'n
0 51002 SL00ZSAS 0 2000 ! 0 £10Z/LO/L0  TOO'0 0 o08n ofeQ jo ueg uoln
OAI9SOY |e1oadg jeunaylosn
[ 158'08 ¢ 180°0 osi 968°v0¢ 0800 000's0¢  $ abelany pue [ejol pung
968'70¢ 78042 Z4596/216 LS8'VOE 1800 ost 0zoz/eZITL  968'VOE 0202/62/L0 0800 000'50€ Lasn Ainsesil '§N
ed1AIeS 1990 VILOT 089
8s6'szy  $ we'szL 180°0 0sl 156'SZL 080°0 oo0'9zk  § aBrlaAy pue [gjo) pung
856'5T1 1£0.2 74596.Z16 L¥6'SCL 180°0 st 0zoz/eT/L  LS6'STh 0Z0z/62/L0 0800 000'92) 1gsn finseaiL *sN
993|198 )qeQ VZ 10T 099
Le'g0L  § zee's0L S 160°0 w 116'80L 0600 000602  § sbeiaay pue jejo) pung
£16'80L 08042 VISOVBEELE TT6'80L 1600 Ly 0Z0Z/ZLB0  L16'S0L 0Z02/62/20 0600 000'602 1asn g UBOT SWIOH (B8PS
anjep Buikised # Jusuysoaul dISND  onjeA IMEN PIRIA Kuniey opeq e B sy anjep pareis ueipojsny J sarsniL Jenss)
amnb3 o0} sheq funjey d ¥
puog S
pung uopdnisuod Loz 039
0202/1€/L0

} obeg

Kouaby 1omod ejuioyijen UIsyUoN

uoday sJainseal

B T
VdIN 7



orLr6z'sT  $

ZIB'SLLST  $

298’k

cHol

wd ggi¢ 0Z0Z/50/20

02021201 J8ye QE_gca pue uo 8jgejed a9044 B0/ Z# UswIsanu|
020z/05/6 Bun.es Auspenb agejed OWTHS 820LZ# JusWwsanu]|
020z/0¢/Z) Buness Auspenb ajgejied OWTHH £2012# ]awysanu|
0Z02/L1/6 Buiess sjqeled 9044 FLOLTH# Juswisenu

1.202/v19 Buniess Apspenb sjgelied VINNS 0L0.Z #Ausugsanu|
suwijhue el ¥OHANN 100.2# JuBunsaAu|

0202/6/01 Jeye suiAue pue uo sjqe|ied 044 66924 JUSUISOAU|
swphue sjgeled  HIMMOS 1169z# usunsany]

2202/8/7 Joye awphue pue uo ajqe|ied 8044 9/B9C# JudUISIAU]
Kuo ,zoz/8e/L o olgefed OWTHS LY69Z# JuswisaAu]

020z/z0/01 Buiels swniue sjge(led g1Hd 1689¢# JuauisaAu]
0202/20/01 Buipels ewniue s|qe|ie) g1Hd 06892# UBUSEAY|
0202/52/60 Bulpeys Aflenuue-las ajqejied T\ Z] $289C# JUBUISBAU|
1202/5z/. Buppers Allenuue-iwes sjgejled  V1OAOL ZU89T# JUBWISOAU
1202/52/L Bunieys swnAue sjgelied 044 PHO9Z# JUSLISIAU)

0Z0Z/LE/L0 §O SE [erunof 194§ [1BM 94} Wio) $991d piq 10 SJUUSJE)S UBIPAISND [a3)sNIL Wol) s291d uo paseq s} aNjeA JBAUBN JudLND

“POYIBLU JOBXD UE SN SIALO [JE ‘PoUR

idde ue asn Aunjeuw o) syj! 9 UBY} SSI] UM SjUBLIISBAUL

*sadA} | usamjaq uosuedwod Joj Siseq B 3plAoJd 03 1eak Aep gog € U PIseq UMoYS st Ajunjep o3 PIBIA JusjeAnb3 puog,

0Z8'L¥2'sT  $

0L’k L0vT'sT  § '§VLO0L ANVHO

996'99 $ 666'59 $ 165" 4} 96679 H 156°L 00099 $ abesaAy pue [ejo) pund
wwm.m.m 29892 101962216 868'S9 065} i 020T/E L8 966'¥9 6102/92/80 18571 000'99 asn Kinseaiy ‘s'N
Wnod2y JSA vZ1L0T 099

TYs'sLsTT  $ ves'sbo'e  § 236°F sLLE SISCPITT 3 8£0'C 10'vI8TT $ abelany pue [ejoL pund
105'666'L ¥b99z PLOM3EELE 0Z9'EPOT sere 08 SZ0ZIEZ/L0  0OE'666'L 8L0Z/LTL0  0SVE 000000 208N 1p21) Ued [eiapad
987'008 820.2 SYXADPELE  OPS'00G 6180 ¥6L'} GZOZ/OE/90  SBY'00S 0Z0Z/0E/90  006°0 000'006 oo8an 1A UBOT BWOH [RIBPR
000'00S 1T0.2 ZIMOPELE  §§T'00S 0080 v6L'L STOZ/OL/90 000’00 0Z0Z/0£/90 0080 000005 208N W\ UBOT SWOH [eJopad
000'000°} 01042 LYMPOOEIE  0ST'H00°L oLL0 89.'t STOYYO/90  000'000°F 0Z0T/H0/90  0LL0 000°'000'} 208N BN [EUONEN [esopod
000'005°L 6692 POMIIEELE  S58'00G} o511 [V} STOE0P0  000'00S' b 020Z/60/%0  0GL'L 000°005"t o008an WpaID wied |esapad
€88'L8Y 200.Z yaVE08Y8E TETLvY [N 659} SZ0ZISHZO  009'8EY 0Z0Z/0S/YD 0S8} 000'sZ¥ o08n "ou} JoBUIBID M M
ShL'aYe 12692 LAVDL098,.  LED'GSE el £65°L YZOULONL  ELP'EVE 0Z02Z/60/Y0  08Y'E 000'0€€ o8N ueqngng cjusweES
000'000' 16892 y4/HVOELE 0E6'L00'L 666'L €25t ¥202/20/0L  000'000°} 6L0Z/70/0L 000 000'000°L 008N g UeoT auwoH [eJepad
000'052 17414 13NGTTYLE GLG'LSL 000T 916"t yZ0Z/SE/B0  000'0SL 6L0Z/52/60  000'T 000052 008N feumnouby jelopad
000°00§ zv892 10DL9EZ68 0¥8'20S oLz Syl vZOZIST/ILO  000'00S 6L02/52/L0  0W'Z 000'008 208N Npa1Q Jojo BI0AOL
000005 71022 €6TIIEEIE  S¥0'00S 0LL0 gL'l YZOZLLIG0  000'00G 0Z0ZILMO0  0LL°0 000005 o0an Upa1D Ul [esspa
000'065'} 9/692 BXATISELE 665'96G'L §.8°0 ove'L ¥202/80/v0 000'065'L 0202/80/v0 SL8°0 000°08G'L 208n }pal0 ulled [elepad
000'05Z ¥LE0E vreSDZIELL SOL'ELZ Loe'e Zel't €207/.0/60  0DO'0ST 8L07//0/60  0DEE 000052 oo8n VN YUEqRD
000'052 60€0¢ YE€dO18/262 028'TLC €0T'¢ veL'L £202/0€/80 000'0§Z 810Z/0€/30 Q0Z'e 000'052 204n VSN Yueqisug
ovz'oty 81692 ONOdZIvER L6E'SEV Ll 560t £20Z/L0/80  8E6'VEY 0Z02Z/60/40  00S°S 000's8¢ 004N @00 Auno) ouglos
L0p'5e6 1v89Z 1Q9NOYELE  08L'0Y6 GE9'L 160"} £202/8T/L0  89Y'SES 0Z02/1€/L0  059') 000'sE6 o08n I\ UBOT] SWOH |esopad
000' 0¥ 6v0.2 2/Z13ECLE 800'LO0 66£°0 060'L £202/12/L0 __000'20F 0Z0Z/LE/L0 000 000°20% oo8n Wpal) uued jeJeped
anfep buifiien # JuswseAu] dISNO  enjeA 1ouEN PlotA Kunepn ] ?9d °eq arey anjep pajels UeIpojsNy / S9SN Janss|

Ainb3 0} sheq paseyaung 12ind
puog
aAl19saYy Buluoissiuwosaqg 099
0z0zZ/Le/L0

Z abed

uodey s Jainseal]
Aouaby lamod elulojijed UIdyMoN

TV SN s o e

Vd3N/



wd zg:¢ 0Z02/50/80
81L'6¥8 $ Z09's¥8 $ 180°0 oSt ZLL'sre $ 080°0 000'0%8 $ ebeiany pue |2jo) pund
912'6v8 S£042 74596218 209'SH8 180°0 05} ozozBTITL  TLL'SYS 0202/6Z/L0 0800 000’98 1asn fnsealt ‘SN
891A19S 1920 V6102 04pAH
109261, § wysl'e  $ 180°0 051 £65'26L°L  § 0800 0006’} § abelaAy pue jejo) pund
109'L64'L v€0.2 T4596.T16 LEV'L6L') 1800 o5} 0702/62/ZL  £65'L6L°} 0202/62/20 0800 000'861'L 18sn finsealL 's’n
29)A18S 3990 V8102 04PAH
ose'eas’s ¢ l65'c8L's  § §60'0 6€1 ocL'cal’s  § ¥60°0 000'98L's ¢ abeIoAY pue [Bo) pung
665°002'y £€0L2 24596216 §20'00Z'% 180°0 oSl 0zoz/6T/TL  LLS'00T'Y 0Z0Z/6T/L0 0800 000'202'y 18sn AinseelL SN
L28'685'} 8102 QZOVEEEIE TL6'88S't (E3N} oLl 0z0z/8MLL  G9L'EsS’l 0202/92/90  0£L0 000'78S5't 18sn eg UBO BWOH [e19po
221198 192Q 04pAH
9s5p'0e9’LL  $ geL'sye’Ll $ ££8°) 8s ovzies’lt $ GeR'l zZie'es9’ll $ abesany pue [ejo) pund
000008 92012 ZOMOVELE  S5Z'00§ 0080 y6L'L GZOZ/OE/30  000°00% 0Z0Z/08/90 0080 000°005 2048n W UBOT SWOH [eJepes
000005 $00£2 9ZvazZyLE SO0L'10§ 6190 TSt SZ0Z/6L/S0  000'00S 0Z0Z/6L/IS0  §290 000'005 208N feinnouby |esapas
189'8LS 05692 ZAAZYLLES  S2O'SYS pL) 165} ye0ZISUZL  §L6°0TS 020Z/L0/20  059°'T 000°005 208N U] ‘HEWEM
000'005'% 10292 GYAIVOEIE  SO0L'60S'S 0sz'e viL'L £Z0Z/6L0L  000'00S'L 8L0Z/BL0L  0STE 000°005'} Qo8N eg UECT BUIOH [Biopa4
000005 SY0.LZ 1aMOPELE  088'86Y 1Ly0 1601 £202/87/10  000'00§ 0Z02Z/0S/L0 L€ 000005 208N W UBOT SWIOH [B1eped
000°'005 05022 Z/Z13EELE  DLO'00S 66€°0 060'L €Z0Z/LZILO  000°00S 020Z/LE/L0  0DV0 000005 © goan Wp2lD uued |esapad
186'L8S 25992 00309LY6L  LEL'LLS 5967 £00'L £Z0Z/L0/S0  099'8TS 810Z/60/80  00L'T 000065 o08n o3 enjjouwjed-seblod
119’16y 02992 IMGZIELLE  0SE'9ZS z8Le €16 £20Z/L0/V0  006'v8Y 8LOZ/ELY0  00ST 000°00§ 208N IAIBG [301Bd PBWUN
91'v6Y $YS9T SUEXBBESY  GL6'9ZS 12ve 826 £202USLZ0  GLi'SeY 8L0ZMwLED 29T 000°005 o08an ‘di0g epeIO
08L'v6Y 61962 513196268 561925 sLTe £68 £20Z/11/10  00L'68Y 8L0Z/EL/90 0042 000005 208N Npa1D) JojoN Ejoko L
\We' 167 1592 90v09Z9Z6 0ZH'8TS 150°¢ 598 T20UVMTL  OLY'veY gL0ZWLIED  00B'T 000°'00$ ooan "ouj BSIA
€676 959z SgvaosyyL §.0'028 150'€ SLL Z20LSUB0  0LL'S8Y gLOZLIED  OLET 000'00$ 208N aBelos aland
0Lb'8YS 15992 LOHHESLL6  €08'TLS z8Le 165 ZZ02USLIED  L09'OYS 8L0Z/0L/80  000°€ 000'055 008N Hueg sn
898'G6Y 12992 LIVOLEZOE 009'VLS ov6T 285 2202/90/20  0SE'06Y 8L0Z/ELIS0  LBET 000'00S 008N yesodiod GO uoxx3
£08'565 81992 SOVYNOEEL0 069'GLS y1€€ zeg Z202/51L0  OZY'esYy 8L0Z/EL0  S29T 000°005 208N nuy g Supjueg youelg
906'410') 66692 0vOUEo0st 061'9L0°F 000’ 324 LZ0Z/L0M0  0TY'9LO'L 0Z0Z/OE/O Q08T 000°000't o08n U39 SIS BALIOJIED
£56'900'} ¥2692 LON96.ZL6 £LY'ELOL vey'L o8t 1202192110  882'666 0202Z/18/10  O06E'L 000'710'} 208N fnseay) ‘g'n
699'G66°L 60692 GEFHIEELE  129'T00°T 909'L 98 0Z0Z/92/0L  £6.'266'L 610Z/90/LL  0GL') 000'568'L 2080 UP3ID UL [eiepas
0.8'L¥6 LE00L LE0OLSAS 0.8'LY6 2000 1 0.8'L¥6 SL0Z/LO/Z0  200°0 0.8'Lv6 ooan ojifeD jo ueg uoun
THYLOV'Y 8200 9ZO0LSAS THY'LOL'Y 5L ! v 0Ly SLOZNOILO  ¥SEL oy LoLY 4V wgsenu| fousby [eoo
anjep Buikued #usunsanu| dISND  enjeA JoEN PIRIA Qe oeq 22Ud 2jeq ajey anjeA parels uBpoISNY / 90ISNIL 12nss|
Anbg 03 sheq Ajunjepy paseyaind aseyaing 1s2U9jU)
.puog
oupAH anl1asay "aaq leded
0Z0Z/LE/L0

| affied

uoday sJainseal]

Koueby Jomod eluiojijed uidyHoN

o

VdOl




wd 2g:¢ 0Z0Z/50/30

1202/£0/8 Buipeys Apapenb sjqe|eD OWTH4 160.Z #usulseau
0202/£2/0) Jeyje swnAue pue uo o|qeleQ 8044 0G0/# JUBWISOAU]
. Ajuo L20z/8e/. U0 3|qEf|eD OWTHA SY0.T #usuAseny]
020z/0¢/z) Buiels Apspenb ajgejeQ OWTH4 920.Z $Husunsenul
2202/61/5 Buess Ajjenuue-uas ajgejeq YOWYH P00.Z #UsWISOAL}
¥Z02/51/0) Buiels swnfue ajqeled 1AM 05692 #AusWIsaAU|
0Z02/£0/60 4 sWniue pue uo 3lqelje) 8044 §2892# JusuWISeAU|
Aluo 0Z0z/6L/0} U SiqelieD g1H4 10/92# JusunseAu]

0202/4£/£0 JO SE [eWINOS J93HS [[BM 243 WOl sasud pig JO SjUSWIAEIS UBIPOISNY Ja3)SNU ] Woi) saoud Uo paseq St SNjeA J3xJey Juauny

“polIo JoXa UE 9SN S19U30 {|B ‘poujew ajewixoidde ue asn Ajunjew o} SIHUOL g URY) SSO] L3IM SJUBLISOAU]

~sadf) e q uost. Joy siseq e apiaoid 0] seak Aep §9€ & UO Paseq UMoYs sy Aynzep o} pIRIA Juajeainby puog,
ose'virze § ‘ee5'9ze'2e § A4t 344 86L'pPLE'ZE  § srv'L zie'siz’ze § ISTVLOL ONVHD

se9'9lsy  $ rze'me'y  $ Wwz'e b {14 vy'sisy  $ £vee 000°LLS'Y  $ abelsAy pue [2jo) pund
000’051 G892 99HMIEELE PYI'0SI 0S84 615 2202/€0/€0 000'051 6102/€0/60 as8’t 000051 asn HpR4D uLte jeispad
2r1'LT8'E 268ST zaavalele 8zZL'vs0'v 08¢z 0eg 2eozieliLa 2e2'926'e 2102/60/20 6482 000'926'e asn N uEQT] BSWioH |esspad
666'G¥} 6592 OXE|ZBZIE EYO'L¥L 15T 861 1202SLZ0 2B6'SL 8102/.2/20 0szT 000'evl asn finseall "s'n
£68'C61 6€0L2 $3958EELE  V0B'ZB) Lo 18l 1202/162/10 18826} 0202/62/.0 0LL'0 000'e61 1ds8n Bg UBOT SWOH {Biepad
100°001 b dA°A 62533€ELE  500'00 0891 £ 0z0Tr0/80 6200} §102/82/80 S’} 000'00% asn 1p8J) ule jeispad
vaSA 210Z 04PAH

ezy'olst  $ s0z'0zs’t ¢ vyl [12:13 z89'66v’L  $ 06€'} 000'425°L  $ obeiaAy pue [ejo) pund
6zr'01s'} 2¥692 LONY6LZLE 602°025 | eyl o8k Lcoe/ge/ia z89'e6¥' L 0Z0Z/1E/10 6¢e’L 000°125'} 208n Kinseail "S'N
] 91002 9L00LSAS 0 2000 3 ] €L0T/L0/L0 2000 0 o04an oyie jo yueg uolun
[¢] £0002 0000LSAS 0O 11€°0 3 0 €L0T/L0/L0 12870 0 El\al wyseAu| Aauaby jea0
aMI9say [etoads oiphAH

125°689 $ 690'689 $ 08'L £L8 16£°169 $ [73: 4% 000°689 $ abelaAy pue |0 pung
145'689 ep9T EVEBOVEIE 690'689 06L'1 €L 1202/60/80 16€'169 £102/82Iv0 G181 000'689 asn N ueoT} swioH jesspag
JUN0YIY 23eqay YZL0Z 04PAH
anjep bulueg # JUBWSaAU} dISND  anjep jaxiey PIGIA Kunjew ajeq 291d ajeq apey anjeA palels UBIPOISNY | 99)SNIL 19n8s|

Anb3 opsheq  Aumen peseyaing d
Jpuog
JUNO22Y 3jeqd3Y VZL0Z 04pAH
0202/1€/L0

Z obed

yoday stainseas)

Aouaby Jamod eluiojijed LdyHoN

Pty AN

Vd3N




wd 10:p 0Z02/50/80

0Z0Z/LEIL0 3O Se [BUINOS J934S [IBM Y3 wiol) sesud piq J0 sjusWse]S UBIPOISNY) [883SnI] Wolj $9213d Uo paseq Si SNJeA e JuUaLN)

“poyjeL JoeXa UE 8SN $19Y10 {|B ‘poyjaw sjewixocidde ue asn AJNJEW O} SLRUOW 9 UBY) SSI] Y3LM SJUBISIAU]
*sadA) [je usawm}eq uosiedwiod Joj siseq e apiaoid o} Jeak Aep g9g & UO Paseq umoys st Ajuanjepy 03 pjaiA Jusieainb3 puog.

mreoz'e 8 '992'c0z'c  § 899°0 } re'oz'e § 9990 9gL'e0z’e ¢ :$TVLOL ONVYD
152'802° § 95.'t02'c  § 899°0 i THE'L0Ze  $ 9990 952'c0Z'c  § sfielany pue jejol pund
186'922 9p692 VOOVHSEELE 000222 €951 4 020T/S0/80  98L'GZT 020Z/8Z/L0  0SG'L 000222 1asn eg UBOT SWOH [BI8pad
951'9/6'7 11062 LL0BLSAS 95.'9/6'C 0090 3 952'9/6'T 0ZOUVZL0 0090 952°9.8'C Lasn s jues Sn
anjep buiAued # JusLUySaAUY dISND  anjeA JaxeN PIBIA Aunje ?jeq 2dud sjeq ey enjeA pajels UBIPOISNG / dB)SNIL Jenss)
AInb3y 0} sheq A p d aseyaing 3sasaul
Jpuog
9AS 3990 V6107 Senioed ded
0202/1€1L0

| abed

e s :..,.wv,ﬂy.w,...ﬁ.,
VdON /
F 8,

Hodoy sjainseal]
AouaBy 1amod elulojies uldyuoN



wd 10:% 0202/50/80

sogozL'e  § sez'vv’s  § 6v6'0 80y weosk's  § zoL'L pso‘ool's  § abesany pue jejoL pung
1£5'92)'p £9¥9Z 6Y0BLEELE OPL'SYTY 0oLt 829 2202/0L/90  90E'80L'Y 1102/92/186 STV 000004 8sn B UBOT BWOH [R1opad
SrL'6yL YSrozT 603vALELES 80S'LSE 669°L [T LZ0Z/ZH80 8ol 110Z/82IL0  STLL 000°051 asn WA UBQT] BWoOH 2iepad
Lss'ozt'y ov0LZ $3998ESLE  982'9Zv'Y Lo 18k LZ0T/6T/L0 OLS'9TY'Y 0Z0Z/62/20  0LLD 000'6Z¥'y 1asn g UBOT SWIOH [e19p9d
820'LLY £Y692 V6DVSBEELE  L08'6LY L85°) 194 1202510 EZR'ELY 0202/82/L0  00SL 000'02¥ 18sn g UEOT BWIOH |eiepad
¥50't S006. S006/SAS ¥50'} 0080 1 $50') €L0Z/L0/IL0 0090 ¥50't asn ISy yueg sn
pung ¥$a 0102 L# @nss| 937

sig'veL S essveL  $ §10°0 24} 908'veL  $ ¥20'0 ooo'seL  § sbeiaAy pue jBjoL pund
T¥8'999 820LC VOOUYBLELE 081999 000 zeL 0Z0Z/10/2L  8£8'999 0z0Z/6TIL0  0L0°0 000°299 1asn EQ UE0T] 3WOH [e18pad
9/6'19 £2042 SYEOBITLE 616'L9 Lo oLl 0Z0Z/BLLL 89629 0Z0Z/92/90 G140 00089 L4asn finseasy 's'n
pund Sa Vv.L0Z L#enssi 031

[Y4% 71 5 §81'820°T $ ¥oL0 138 9L6°LL0T $ €010 €08'820T  $ @BeJoAY PUE BJ0L pung
9LL'EYE 18022 VEOUYSEELE  889'CHE 000 44} 020T0ZY  LLL'EYE 0202/62/.0  680°0 000776 14asn g UBOT BWIOH fesepad
055'€EL'L 220.2 9ZOYSEELE VBYEEL'L 110 oLh 0Z0Z/BLLL  TOV'EEL'L 0202/92/90  OELQ ao0vEL’) 1asn g UBOT SWOH |esopad
£08 zL06L ZLOBLSAS €08 0090 I €08 €L0Z/L0IL0 0090 €08 asn jsfu) yueg Sn
pund sa 90102 ¢# °@nss| 931

sirass't ¢ sov'oeL’t ¢ ¥60°0 A 9zg'oes’t  § £60°0 ogs'stL't  $ abeIoAY pue [Bj0L pund
S¥2'620') 9€0L2 VEOUYEEELE GYO'GLO'L 000 <4 0Z0Z/L0fCL  8EL'GLO'L 020Z/621L0  0L0°0 000'920't 1asn g UB0] SWOH jelopad
8£2'659 12022 8TOYEEEIE  228'659 1£10 oLt 0Z0Z/6L/LL 259659 020Z/92/90  O0EL0 000'099 18sn g U207 BUIOH fesopad
96 ¥006L YO0BLSAS 966 0090 ! 9€6 €L0Z/10/0 0090 956 asn Isnu| yueg Sn
pund €4 9010Z L# onss| D31

6ce'vey  $ Lo0'ser § zEL0 oLk al8'vsy  § 0EL0 zev'ssy $ abesoAy pue jejoL pund
108'v8Y 02042 $ZOYREELE  698'V8Y LEro oLt 0Z0Z/BLLL  VYL'veY 020Z/92/90  6ZL°0 000°8% 1asn g UeoT auwoH |eiepad
el £006L €00B.SAS ZEL 0090 1 z€l €L0Z/L0IL0 0090 zsL asn IsfuL yueg SN
pund Sq v010¢ L#enss| 931

266'68 $ 266°68 $ vse'l 2 26668 $ ySe'L 76668 $ abesoAy pue [ejo) pund
266'68 9v00L 9VO0LSAS 766'68 y5€°L 3 266'68 €L0Z/10120  ¥5€°L 266'68 wisenu| fouaby (g0
anjep BuiAlied # Jusu}SaAU| dISND  NnjeA Joden PIBIA Rumen ejeq o0ld ajeq ajey anjep pajels uBlpojsn) / 2R)SNAL 1onss|

Anba oysheg  Mumen p d Joind ¥
puog

309y uoidny SHO 931

| obed

0202/1E/1L0

Hodoy sJainsear}
Kouaby 1omod erulogiied UIdyHoN

> i v 63 R,

V5N



1.20Z/Y/T Jeye dWiAUE pUE Uo djqe|eD)
0Z0Z//Z/0L 18)e swnhue pue uo sjqe|e)
2202/62/L Buies Apapend ejqe|ied

Ajuo LZ0z/82/L uo aqefied

Aluo 120z/82/4 U0 9|qelied

220T/eeiy Jeye swnAue pue uo alqejed

wd 10i¢ 0202/50/80
8244 YS0LT# WUdWISIAU]
8044 8POLT# JUBWISIAU)

OWIHA LYQLTH JuBLUSBAU]
OWTHA SY0LTH# JUBLIISAAY|
OW1H4 GYB9TH JUSWISAAY|

asn 2289C# uswsaAUL

0Z0Z/LE/L0  JO S® [ELINOL J294)S JIEM 243 U0l Sa5d piq JO SJUSWBlEIS UBIPOISND [2)SNIL Woly S2o1d UO Paseq S| anjeA JOXBN Juaund

*poyatll JoeX2 U 3sn SI8UI0 [[e ‘polow sjewnxoidde ue asn Aunjewt o) SYIUOW 9 UBY] SS3] LPIM SJUBUISDAUL
*sadAj || usamjeq uosiedwon 10} siseq € opIrcid 0) Jeak Aep gag B uo paseq umoys s AJneN 03 PIRIA juajeainbz puog,

gze'iec'er  $ ‘BIS'CIS6Z ¢ 6190 L 219'218'6Z  § o080 656152'62 $ :$TVLOL ANVNOD

ole'sss'th $ L6LSES’LE § z0L0 9vs £z5'689'Ll $ 066'0 ysv'eLsil § sfesany pue jejol pund
666'000'L 1¥0LT GLAYD9ELE  02Z'000°L 650 £28' S207/6Z/L0  000'L00') 0Z0Z/08/L0 0090 000°'000'1 208N By [euoneN jeiopad
000000} 8v0LT yeZ13EELE  0LO'00C'L 6690 ove'L $202/LZ/V0 000000+ 0Z0ZI08/0  0V90 000000} o08n WPaID ULie [e1opa
9EC'coY 25692 LDGIZLEPL  8LLSLS oLLL £86'L YZOZILOIZL  695'96Y 0202/60/20 05T 000'59Y 208n epueUl selidele)
000'000°L 9v0L2 2IaMOYELE  09.'666 GLE'0 180 £202/8¢1L0 000'000'} 0Z0Z/0€/L0 G/€°0 000°000' 208N N UB0T SWoH jeJeped
L00'L6S 22892 10dHLES06  568'8L9 g4 099 220TUETISO  0BZ'96S 6L0T/LE/G0 059 000565 208N "¥'N "ueg SN
920'825 99692 ¥Q03L098G 0€8'82S 000°L 157 L20Z/\0/LL  088'EES 0202/L2v0 085S 000005 20an A0 JerueD siydway
10v'96¥ £5692 8rOL19ET68  PEY'S0S §55°k ey LZ0Z/L0M0L  566'96Y 0Z02/€0/Z0  008'L 000'56Y 208n upeI0 JOJOW elokoL
189'66¥ 26892 €8AMIEEIE  0SL'POS 065} 152 L202Z/GLP0  SECBY 6L0ZIGLOL  00S'L 000005 208N #paIQ uled jeiapa
8gi'0zy'y L00L LPOOLSAS 88)'0ZF'F 2000 ! 881'02v'y €L0Z/BYLO0 2000 88102y o08n opfeD Jo ueg uown
99T'ers') 1¥00L IVO0LSAS 992'evS'L vSe'L b 99Z'eVS'L ELOTLOMLO0  PSEL 99z'cys'L wjsenu| Kauaby 200
aAlasSay W O 031

gos'esl't  § osT'IvLL  $ SY6'0 59¢ see'schl  § 0560 syi'sel’l abeIaAY PUE [BJ0) pungy
£94'08¢ Sv89Z LA9NOVELE  SO1'ZBE [ 160" €202/82/L0  0BL'08E 0Z0ZLEND  0SU'L 000°'08€ 1asn IN U8B0 SWIOH [eJopad
Sv1'65L €106 SL0BLSAS GYL'BSL 009°0 L ShL'66L SLOZ/LO/L0 0090 SpL'sGL asn sy sjueg sn
savd ¥sa 90102 g# enssj 931

cpp'eoec  § crp'e9e’T  § 009°0 I £¥p'89ET  § 009°0 hr'89e’z  § efieloAy pue [ejol pung
£rY'898'Z 9008 900BLSAS E£vY'89€E'T 0090 b SYp'80e'z €LOZ/LO/LO 0090 £rb'898'Z asn ¥snuL jueg Sn
As9Y sqns sSdvd 90102 Li#ss| 2371
anfep buifuen #3usunsaAu} dISND _ enjep JoueN PIBIA RKunew  oeq 29ud a1eq a)ey anjep pajels ueIpojsng / a9ysniL Jonss}

Ainb3 oysheq  Aumew paseyaind aseyaInd Jsaapu)
puog
AS9Y sqns sgva 90102 L#sst 031
0202Z/1¢/L0

Z abed

Hoday seinseal)
Aouoby Jomod eluiojije) ulayloN

U A S e

<&UZJ, :



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

August 19, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  August 27, 2020

SUBJECT:

Disposal of Northern California Power Agency Surplus Property

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

|o-

If other, please specify

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth—<~ &V mETHOD OF SELECTION:
Treasurer-Controller N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department. Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members X Cityof Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power [J City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [
San Franci;;:ig?(r:l::; O City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC [
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [J
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [ Truckee Donner PUD [
City of Healdsburg [0  City of Santa Clara [ Other [

SR: 186:20




Sale or Disposal of Surplus Property
August 19, 2020

Page 2
RECOMMENDATION:

Note and file report by all members for the disposal of the following:
e Scrap metal from Lodi Energy Center

BACKGROUND:

The NCPA Policy for the Disposal or Destruction of Surplus Supplies, Materials, or Equipment
requires that such disposal or destruction be reported to the NCPA Commission within 60 days
of such action.

In accordance with that policy the above listed items have been disposed of due to being
obsolete and having no value to the Agency.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct fiscal impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California

Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

S
RA mOWARDl

General Manager

Attachments: Declaration of Surplus
Receipt of disposal

SR: 186:20



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

@{(’L[Zaw

Date:

This notice confirms that the Northern California Power Agency has disposed of the following items listed

below:

- Scrap Metal

To the following:

Vendor Name: V&E Hauling / Vincente Gonzales

Address/PhW4 E. Zold ztreet, Lodi (209) 915-0214
Signature: g
’ \/

f

Northemn California Power Agency

Employee Name: Melissa Philpot

Signature: WMW G E \'*’&&A"&

Monies Received for this?

_%2 YES ($ lﬂ 2.°° ) (50% of total, rounded)

NO




/NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
DECLARATION OF EXCESS

Date: 7/23/2020

DESCRIPTION - ESTIMATED VALUE NCPA Propertyt# /
QTY | UM* (Including All Applicable COND*+ Stock #/ Fleet # or SITE
Model #’s, LCNs & VINs) UNIT TOTAL Project # LOCATION

1. 1 |LOT |SCRAPMETAL SCRAP $ 000 CT2/LEC
2.
3.
4,
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

JUSTIFICATION FOR EXCESS/DISPOSAL: SCRAP

RECOMMENDED DISPOSITION: SCRAP

PREPARED BY: Melissa Philoot / Michael DeBortoli Y\ ¢/ o/ Rtk PUBLIC SALE . PRIVATE SALE

ORG. X DISPOSAL - NO NET SCRAP VALUE
APPROVED BY: { CODE:
_ m, (ASST. GEN. MAN *U/M = UNIT OF MEASURE
AUTHORIZATION W * _
TO PROCEED: S(df DATE: .u\ 28119 ** CONDITION: EXCELLENT (E); GOOD (G), AVERAGE

\ (GENERAL MANAGER)

POOR (P), SCRAP (S)

ORIGINAL TO TREASURER-CONTROLLER



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

August 19, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  August 27, 2020

SUBJECT: Debt and Interest Rate Management Report — June 30, 2020

AGENDA CATEGORY: Conse;t/\

13

If other, please specify

T
FROM: Monty Hankw METHOD OF SELECTION:
Assistant Ge
Manager/CFO N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department: Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members [X City of Lodi [J City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [
San Francisco Bay Area . .
Rapid Transit (] City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC []
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [1 Port of Oakland [
City of Gridley [] City of Roseville [] Truckee Donner PUD [J]
City of Healdsburg [1  City of Santa Clara [ Other [J

SR: 187:20




Debt and Interest Rate Management Report — June 30, 2020
August 19, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the Commission accept the Debt and Interest Rate Management Report for
the period ending June 30, 2020.

BACKGROUND:

In accordance with the Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy, Section 20, Monitoring and
Reporting Requirements, approved by the Commission in May 2019, the Finance team will
provide a written report regarding the status of all fixed and variable rate debt and the Agency’s
interest rate swaps on a semi-annual basis to the Finance Committee and to the Commission.

The report, for the period ending June 30, 2020, is attached for your information and
acceptance. Listed below is a summary of the report.

Fixed Rate Debt
No changes to the Agency’s outstanding, fixed-rate debt since the last report.

Variable Rate Debt

The Agency had a total of $83.64 million of outstanding variable rate debt. The Agency’s
variable rate debt is structured with a Letter of Credit with Bank of America. On average, the
reset rates continue to trade better than the Securities Industry and Financial Markets
Association (SIFMA) for the Series A bonds. The reset rates and index comparisons are
included in the attached report.

Interest Rate Swaps

As of June 30, 2020, NCPA had $83.64 million of outstanding swaps, all related to the
Hydroelectric Project bonds, which act as a hedge against the variable rate debt. The total
market value of the interest rate swaps was a net liability of $21.0 million (negative). This
amount declined from the December 31, 2019 net liability of $15.8 million (negative) due to a
drop in interest rates. No new swaps or defaults have occurred in the last six months. The
interest rate swaps make up approximately 31% of the outstanding Hydroelectric Project debt
portfolio. Additional details of the swap agreements are provided in the attached report.

Counterparties

The counterparty for both interest rate swaps is Citibank, N.A. The credit ratings for Citibank,
N.A., are A+/Aa3/A+ by S&P, Moody’s, and Fitch, respective. There have been no changes
since the last report.

Rating Changes
There have been no changes since the last report however the following actions were reported:

e February 2020
o Fitch affirmed ‘AA-’ rating with ‘stable’ outlook on Hydroelectric Project Bonds.
e April 2020
o S&P lowered outlook to ‘negative’ in all sectors, including Public Power, largely
due to COVID. However, this action didn’t require a continuing disclose notice.
e June 2020
o Fitch affirmed ‘A’ rating with ‘stable’ outlook on Lodi Energy Center Revenue

Bonds, Issue One.

SR: 187:20



Debt and Interest Rate Management Report — June 30, 2020
August 19, 2020
Page 3

FISCAL IMPACT:

The total projected savings over the life of the interest rate swaps was $13.9 million at the
inception of these agreements. Total projected savings through June 30, 2020 was $7.3
million with actual results at $12.4 million. The difference between expected savings and
actual savings is due to “basis risk”, or the difference between what NCPA pays on the
variable rate bonds and the index rate used in the swap transaction. Total basis risk to
date is positive, resulting in additional savings over those expected of $5 million. Staff
continues to monitor the potential for refinancing these bonds and terminating the swaps,
however, the large mark-to-market payment due to Citibank, N.A. of over $21.0 million
(net) is making a potential refund not a feasible option at this time.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

Q pectfully submitted

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments:
- Debt and Interest Rate Management Report as of 6-30-2020

SR: 187:20



AINIIV HIMOd VINHO4ITVI mez.—.m&z

ozoz‘osaunrjosy NI D) Z

Joday juswadeuey ajey 15a2433u| pue 1gaQg KaN3OV 217804 ¥




0¢
61l
8T
LT

ST-v1
€T

puaJ] |ed1i01SIH dN|eA Jie4 -
juedpiyued Ag anjep Jie4 -
uollenjep pue Asewwng demsg -
JuewJojiad dems -
MBIINIDAQ sdemgs aiey 1sa4a1u]
(uondaoui ‘4eaA |easiy) SIJIPU| SNSIDA DUBWIOMDY -
SWJ3) [edn) -
MB3INIBAQ 1g2( 216y a|qelien
MB3IAIBAQ 1G3Q 21eYy paxi4
J91ua) Aduau3 Ipo7 -
sal|ioed jeyde) -
139[04d 214109|904pAH -
133044 |ewsayloan -
193[0ud Aq MalAIBAQ 193Q

SIY3I|Y3iH Aa)

AONIOV 43I MOd VINYOSIIVYVD NYIHLYON VdON




'0C0¢ ‘Og aunr
UO UOI|[IW O°TZS JO dnjeA dA1ledau e 01 6TOZ ‘TE J2qwiadsQ uo uol|jiw 8'9TS
jO dnjeA aAlle3aU e WoJ) padueyd sdems Suipueisino ayl uo LN 3yl
‘pales Ajysiy surewsads Ayaediaiunod ayl pue paJinbau uaaq sey Auediaiunod
9y Aq Suiisod |eia1e||0d Ou ‘Bwes 3yl paulewsad sguijel Aledialuno)
'P944N220 aAeyY 19ap
91eJ a|gelleA Jo 31ed paxly ‘syuswaaide dems aA0ge 9yl Japun syjnejap oN
9UQ 3aNss| ‘spuog anuaAay Ja1ua) A31aug 1poq uo Suijed y, 2yl pawdiye yoll4 -
Spuog anuaAay 211109|904pAH U0 3uiles -yy, 3Y3 pawudiyje yay4 -

92130U 34NSO|Isip duiNUIUOD
e 1383113 3,Us30p SIY] INQ Y00[IN0 SAI1ES3U UO ‘49MOd d1jgnd Sulpnjdul S10393s [|e Ind ¢S -

‘auwes ay) paulewsuJ s3aafoud |je uo sduney

'140d3J 1Se| 3Y3 3JUIS pa44ndd0 sjuswaaide dems Sulpueisino
10 1gap a1kl ajqelleA 4o paxi) Aue 01 sadueyd |elialew aAlnesau oN

020¢ dunf — Asenuer wouj syysiysiH Asy

AONIOV HIMOd VINYO4ITYD NYIHLYON <n_UV_o\




15310dd A9 MIIAYIAO 1930

AONIOV 3IMOd VINYOA41IYD NYIHLYON dﬂUV—o\




¥Toz/t/L
zeoL/t/L

Azumyepy jeuly

- %049'T 000'0£5°9TS 000°0£S°£1%
L10z/1/i %682’ 000'045°ES 000°0T6°ZTS
ieg
a3ue)y uod 2218 ans
a3eq |Jied | noj Suipumising 1S SNssj
o/}~ (4/S/ N} sBuney

a1ey-paxi4 ydwax3z-xe]
21ey-paxiy ydwax3-xe|
adA] uodnoy snjelg xel

1920 3aafoid [ewiayioan m:i:muﬂna jo tmEE:m

V s2135 9702
V 58485 Z10¢

sauag

¥V 53Uss 910z

201M3g Jga( afoad jeuiiayiosg

Y 5auBs T10Z B

SP19's SP19's
S0EE9 00000
S06E vY S06€ ¥
0€88’L 0£88° L
0164’0 SF18°0
0000°6 08sT'9
0189'€ 0189°€
008Z'0T 0082°0T
orise orige
09€E0 {056£0
0/Z20 0£2T0
78891 978891
{%) (%) a1=ys

aseys Ateppyausg JuswB|Iu3

sadejuading ucijedidiuey 10afo.d jeuwiiayiosn

yenin
ai
ele|) ejueg

3jjiasoy
ELIRIG-SBWIN|]
0ljy ojed
sodwon

pol
gingspjesy
Asjpuo

s8dig

epawely

IaquIsy

MBINIBAQ 1q2(Q 13/04d |ewayloan

AODNIOV 43MOd VINYOL4ITYVO NYIHLHEYON

VdON




£T0Z/T/L S|qefje)-ucn %000°5-%000'Y  000'0TE'8ES 000°05Z'6€5 d1ey-paxy 1durax3-xe]
yeoe/t/e 9qEj|e)-UON %000°S 000'066'65$ 000548895 a1ey-paxy4 1dwex3-xe|
veoz/t/L 2loym-=xeip %0TEY 0000ZT LS 000°02Y'LS a1ey-paxij |[qexef
TE0T/T/L oL/ %000'S 000'599'94% 000°699'945 91ey-paxii dwax3-xe|
ze0z/1/L waun) i (%6T8€) 18A  0000¥9'E8$ 000°097'58% aiey-3jqeLeA ydwaxg-xe|
Aunzepy jeurd 238Q 2> 33uey uodnoy hu”__._teuﬁab 2215 anss] adA} uodnoy SnIBIS XBj

SIOORND 3985 “Wy/-/€eV :(4/5/W) suney
192 aloag suppajaolpAy Juipueising jo Atewwng

¥ S9l195 6102
Vv 581488 8107
€ 5aues £10¢
¥ 5ap3s ¢102
¥ salias 800¢

saleg

O
o._,( @_( 20/( %/(

L

¥V SeURS 610

VSOUISBIOZ N  g59uls TT0T

o /60

S O
@ S ,o,« @« ,o,,( %

i

201AI95 3qaQ 3esfoug oLoaja0IpAY

VSRUISTIOZ® YysSoU3asB00T M

»a,,\ ao,( @(

W 03
069'T
waotrg  OV0TC
098'SE
A 078 000°CE
0z6'7Z
AN DES 00E°C
0LE0T
A O¥S 0997
050°'T
WA 05$ 00T°0
000°0T
(%) aseys uswappul

BUIBIS-SEWN]4
yepn
eJe|) ejueg
ajjinesoy
OlY Ojed
aodwo
po]
gingspjesy
As|pug
sadig
epawely

Jaquiapy

memEmEmn_ co:mn_ufnm uum..oi o:uowmuo:uzl_

AON

MBINIBAQ 199Q 199[04d 214303]904pAH

39V 43 MOd VI

Nd O 4

ITVO NY3IHLYON




%589
000'SBOTBTS
poxly

; {(-vv/+v/zevy) v
® SUn
%6070 #E8L EEP W'N ‘BauaWY jodueq  s8las 800T
(oz/z0/t0
jo se) Andx3 301 Japircld D01 sapag
3953y

Arewwing Ajipinbi] 3osloag ouoajaoipAy

add ] 1g2q 1oload 91130920IpAH jo umopEug

{+v/+v/cey)
'O+ b P
JI04 MBI 000'0V9°E8% 000°09F°58$ {egs'oz0128) TE/T/L  VOMVT/IT  YO/VT/TT smqmo YOa o etse v 5
. (SN 30 %PS 8007
V'N “jueqaid
Ayediajunoy  jeuonony jeuenoN {oz/oc/90 fo sy} areg aeq
she,
yueg uaun) e anjeA WLN Aumeyy  aapoayg T a oPSiL B N RS

Aewwing demg 13losgd orj0ajaclpAH

MIIAIOAQ 1dod

e A LT ) M 4

9load 214329|904pAH

T TR P e s s e T B e e A T

ADNIOV 43 MOd VINHO411TVIO NHdIHLHON



¥20z/1/8
Aynyepy jeuty

- %000°S 000°05Y°0TS 000°0SY0Z$ 91ey-paxiy ydwex3-xe|
2Q8q je) aduey uodnoy  Je4 Sujpumising 9215 anss) adAj uodno)y snjejs xe}
SHoon0 aqeas * /-y/Tv :{3/5/W) sBuney

awss 05
00'S
wwes  O0S6E
00'61
v solRs 6T0Z M (%) a2eys Juawapnuz

¥ s2l2$ 6102
sayas

afasoy

sodwo

ipoq
EpaLWElY

lequiay

P21M25 33 sanyeed ende) s33eju0io4 uonedmiyed sai3ioe4 jeude)

MBIAIBAQ 1q3Q Sallijideq jeaide)

AODNIOV 43I MOd VINYOL4ITYO NYIHLYON

<n_uv_.\




SE0Z/1/9 Sjoym-deN %649'S 000°ST0S0TS 000°SZZ'0TTS

SZ0Z/1/9 - %0LT'T 000'0TY'LES 000°026'8€S
ovoT/1/9 3joym-vepn IRTITEL 000'S29'9L1$ 000°529'941%
0Z0Z/1/9 0z0Z/1/9 %000°S 0% 000°0££'84$

a1eYy-paxiy sgvg djqexe]
HooRNQ qeI5 ‘ fywy/zev ((i5/W) sBuney | ymavo—g dnosn simuapuy

a1ey-paxi4 1dwiaxz-xe]
2jey-paxyy Sgva ejqexel
[ley-paxi jdwaxgy-xe]

SEORNQ 3qes ‘v/-v/TV :{4/5/W) s3uney | v dnoug sunjuspu
adA} uodno) snjejs xej

Ayunyepy jeuiy He) ey aduejuodno)  Jed Sujpumising 215 onss|

g 531435 0102
¥ 521438 /102
g 58135 0T0¢
¥ 52195 0T0T

sauag

1g2Q 493U Adioug 1poy Sulpueising jo Alswwing

%%@@% %%%% S @ @ %%%%@
.,_,f.v% YN % IS %% S0

WIN S

WiNsS

W 0TS

WA STS

N 0Z8

{uononpa: ye¢ 10} pajsnipe) Apisqns gy J0 1aN 301G 1930 § dnoio ajuapuy
{uononpai %6°c sog pasnipe) Apisqns v 0 12N 01AISS 1G30 v dnOID ANWSpUL B

201A495 3q9Q Jauag Adiaug 1po] .

oTER’IT
visLy
v80v'y
0107’
88ST'9¥
Tev9E
S6C0°LT
8hre'c
[ATAR
¢08¥'o
9E66'Y

{x)2seygasoy (%) =2smys

v dnoug) “puj

00099 Hvads
6199°C Ydimd
18870 GtwmmnmmE«_E
£YTL0T ain
1582°T yenin
005/°5¢ ele|) ejueg
1S€0'T sodwo
00056 1po]
8TY9'T Bingspjeay
£V96°T Aajpuo
64920 sasig
1S81°C esnzy
0005°€€ HMAD

laquiay

wawapRu]

wm‘mmu‘cghu‘m uonedpnied 23]

MBIAIDAQ 1g2(Q 491ud) A3iau3 __uo._

AONIOV YIMOd VINYOL1TYD NYIHLYON <EUQQ\




MIINYIAO 19404 31Vd daXlI4

R O e & — — S . e e e T e e ==

ADNIOV 43IMOd VINYOLITYD NYIHLYON <n_UV.\




9U(Q 3NSS| ‘Spuog aNUIAIY 191UdD)
A8Jau3 1po7 uo 300|1n0o 3|gels yum Suiied Y, pawiiije yol4 -

aun(

Jomod
d1|qnd Sulpn|oul ‘S10323S ||e ul 9AI}e33U 03 0O0|1N0 PAIIMO| d8S

lidy

spuog 129fo.d
J11103[20JpAH U0 00[1N0 3|gels Yim 3uned -yy, pawdiyje ysi4 -

Alenigo4
ssulley

91epdn 1se| 9duls sadueyd oN
12 231ty poXi4

>>m_>._m>o Swn_ mumm _omx_"_

e = — ——

AONIOV 3 MOd VINYOAITYD NYIHLYON <n_U¥\



MJIAY3AO 1930 31VY F19VIHVA

ADNIOV 4IMOd VINYOA4ITYD NYIHLYON <n_UV_t\




-YV/+V/Zey
¥202/12/9
dq o's¢
eolawy jo yueg

(3au) jenuuy-1wasg

(3au) jenuuy-1wag

(%vs+10q17 Ajyguow jo
rx%m uo paseq) sjes bupeo|

SOA1999Y VdON

%618'€ @ paxi4

[sBugey jipain
9jeq uonesdxy
994 |enuuy
19plaoid ypai) jo Jape/Aipinbiy

fediajunon

VdON
'SwId) Jusawied

Auedisyunog :oj/wou4

sAed VdON sjuswied

dnoubnin :Aued-103unon demg
Ajyyuo juswAed
Aplaam Padud

000°019°¢8$ junowy

3qeQ 3jey dlqeneA

V8002 04pAH

MBIAIDA

0 192Q 91y d|qeLen




VNS s S1BY 19S3Y YRO( T wsmens

}s
&
&

D
0/&

/AO
&

o

N
\¥
A
®

Q

Q
N
%VF

Q N Q Qd
9 %q @0 /& n%u 0,.?
3
&

Q < &
o A )

N Q N Q

A \h & & $o

ae/ %, &v A%. &f./ m.v/

001

00'¢

00t

00V

00's

009

00'¢

MIIMIBAQ 1G3Q 31.Y 3|qelieA YdON

MBIAJIIAQ 193 d31kY djqeliep

AONIOV HIMOd VINYOSIT1YD NYIHLYON <n_U—V_o\



VINGIS » ==

Q O OW QD O V] O O o O S S O O
F EC LT E L LFT T LS z RO S R R I U R SR
FFFTFTFT T T T I T ITT T T TS

4 :

e 4

080

001

0st

ooe

05¢

05t
ooy
o5’y
00's
05's
0038
0%'8

S921PUj SNSIN BIUBWIIOND 1G3Q leY d|qeleA YVdIN

>>w_>hm>o ..bmn_ aley m_nm:m>




MIINGINO dVMS J1VHd L1SJFHILNI

AONIOV IMOd VINYOLITYD NYIHLYON <n_UV_b\




sduines [endy g '3 V 800Z—  sSuines pauueld g '3 ¥ 800Z—

uoljjiw ¢°ZTS :21ep 0} SBulAes [enjoy
uoljjiw €°/$ :31ep 03 sBuines pardafoid e10)
uol|jiw 6°ETS :SPUOQ JO 3ji} JA0 SSUIARS payIafoid |e10)

0202 ‘0€ aunr
3leQq 0} dueWI0}I9d sdems 103044 314199[901pAH
Adualy Jamod ejuioygije) uidyuoN

000°000°2$
000°000°v$
000000°9%
000°000'8%
000°000°0T$
000°000°ZT$
000°000'YT$
000°000°9T$




o : MOA MeN et mep
(=4
(ee2'920'L2Y) +Y/+V/gey "N UEQRID 000'0¥#9'¢8$  000°091°'G8%
youd
0202Z/0¢/9 /d8S/sfpoopy  Auedisjunod [euogoN JuaLINg feuogoN
anjeA WL sbugey jueg feniu]
Apedigjunog
%¥S 0+ 1000¥Z1 L $00Z
i sol dem
Ze0T/L/L 8002y VOOTWTULL  \\oon aen 10 %S %0618'€ V800Z seuag VdON S
e .u_uwuﬂ_a_ “ ajeqapeil  SaARIIY U3 Kedjuain spuce aweN 2dfy
Aumep ’ ’ . pajeloossy uondesuel]
LU ST TE
089G Giz g
0019-£96 GLE 2uoyd
MBIAIDA

AODNIOV 43I MOd VINHO4I1ITYVI NAIJdIHLHON

O demg d3ey 1s9491U|

T Y || P e i AR,

<."_U7\_¢\



(160'78L'L$)

(cp6'8zys)

(80z'ces'zs)  (zee'ssed)

(£2¢'618'P8) (c1o'cers)  (Ziv'081'28)  (ppO'sves) (€£9'201'29) (eeL'9z0'128)
%0 %20°Le %00CI %69} %26'Te %0¢2 %01 %99°L %01 anjep
yenin BIg) BJUES  JfjiAeSOy  BlISIg-sewN|d o)y ojed sodwo ipoq Bingspjesy epawe)y Winieol
000'079'€8S
. %PS0+ L000¥2LLP002
d WIS SI7 RS
000'0¥9'¢c88  TEOZ/LIL Y00CIveLL MOSITaSN 10 %S %0618°€ Y800Z ssleg VdON eMg pucoiick il
DTV SI0SIAPY dewg id
[euononN spuog adf P
Waung ajeq fQumey  yegopril  SSAINNY ) Redjuain pajEIossy sweN uopoesuel]

P =

91ey 159.491u|

e



>
O
pd
L
Q)
<C
o
L
=
@)
o
<
Z |
x
)
w
i
<
Ol i
=z
o
w
I
-]
m |
o Il
p .
Q.
V

Interest Rate Swap Overview

2008A&B Swap MTM Fair Value

{5,000,000)

{10,000,000)

{15,000,000}

{20,000,000)

{25,000,000)

{30,000,000)

0z02/0%/9
610Z/1€/71
6102/0€/9
810Z/1¢/C1
8107/0¢/9
L1oz/te/en
L102/0€/9
9102/1€/2T
9102/0€/9
stoz/te/et
S102/0€/9
y1oz/1e/en
v10T/0€/9
£102/1€/2T
£102/0¢/9
coe/te/ct
2102/0/9
Ti0z/te/et
T102/0€/9
0102/1€/2T
010Z/0€/9
6002/1€/2T
6002/0€/9




A PUBLIC RGENCY

PA

NORTHERN CALIFORN!A POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

August 18, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

August 27, 2020

\H

SUBJECT: Approval of Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 (O&M Funding Agreement)

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

Division: Power Management

Department: Power Management

Assistant General Manager N/A

If other, please describe:

.27
FROM: Tony Zimmer 7 /~  METHOD OF SELECTION:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

o X 0O

X

City of Biggs

City of Gridley

X

X

City of Healdsburg

City of Lodi

X

X

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto

City of Redding

City of Roseville

O 0O 0O X

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

X O

X

o o K

SR: 168:20



Approval of Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110
August 27, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff is recommending the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Commission adopt
Resolution 20-50 approving Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110, and authorize the
General Manager of NCPA to execute Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110, on behalf of
NCPA, including any non-substantive modifications to Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110
approved by NCPA’s General Counsel.

BACKGROUND:

The Agreement for the Funding and Operation and Maintenance for Central Valley Project
Power Facilities (O&M Funding Agreement or Contract 96-SNR-00110) was established to allow
Central Valley Project (CVP) customers the ability to provide advanced funding for specific
operations, maintenance, and capital projects related to CVP facilities. Such funds are used to
ensure CVP facilities are maintained to enhance reliability for delivery of Base Resource
products to NCPA Members.

DISCUSSION:

NCPA's authority to act on behalf of Pool Members' (or Assigning Members) is provided
through the Assignment Administration Agreement (AAA Agreement), and certain actions taken
by NCPA on behalf of the Pool Members, including the actions recommended herein, requires
prior Commission authorization pursuant to an affirmative vote of all Assigning Members.

Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 will modify Section 10 of Contract 96-SNR-00110, in
which the rules and responsibilities of the O&M Funding Agreement Governance Board are
described. Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 will provide clarity regarding the process
used by the O&M Funding Agreement Governance Board for filling vacancies within a defined
customer group, if a customer group fails to elect or appoint a new Member to fill a vacancy as
further described in Contract 96-SNR-00110.

A copy of Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 is attached to this staff report for your
reference.

FISCAL IMPACT:

NCPA's administrative costs for processing Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 will be
allocated to Members in accordance with approved cost allocation methodologies as described
in the NCPA annual budget.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

1 The Pool Members include the Cities of Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Healdsburg, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto
and Ukiah, and the Port of Oakland and Plumas Sierra Rural Electric Cooperative.

SR: 168:20



Approval of Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110
August 27, 2020
Page 3

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on June 3, 2020 and was
recommended for Commission approval.

Respectfully submitted,

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments:

- Resolution 20-50
- Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110

SR: 168:20



RESOLUTION 20-50

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING AMENDMENT 5 TO CONTRACT 96-SNR-00110

(reference Staff Report #168:20)

WHEREAS, the Agreement for the Funding and Operation and Maintenance for Central Valley Project
Power Facilities (O&M Funding Agreement or Contract 96-SNR-00110) was established to allow Central Valley
Project (CVP) customers the ability to provide advanced funding for specific operations, maintenance, and
capital projects related to CVP facilities, and such funds are used to ensure CVP facilities are maintained to
enhance reliability for delivery of Base Resource products to NCPA Members; and

WHEREAS, NCPA's authority to act on behalf of Pool Members' (or Assigning Members) is provided
through the Assignment Administration Agreement (AAA Agreement), and certain actions taken by NCPA on
behalf of the Pool Members, including the actions recommended herein, requires prior Commission
authorization pursuant to an affirmative vote of all Assigning Members; and

WHEREAS, Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 will modify Section 10 of Contract 96-SNR-
00110, in which the rules and responsibilities of the O&M Funding Agreement Governance Board are
described; and

WHEREAS, Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 will provide clarity regarding the process used by
the O&M Funding Agreement Governance Board for filling vacancies within a defined customer group, if a
customer group fails to elect or appoint a new Member to fill a vacancy as further described in Contract 96-
SNR-00110; and

WHEREAS, NCPA'’s administrative costs for processing Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 will
be allocated to Members in accordance with approved cost allocation methodologies as described in the NCPA
annual budget; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
adopts Resolution 20-50 approving Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110, and authorizes the General
Manager of NCPA to execute Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110, on behalf of NCPA, including any
non-substantive modifications to Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 approved by NCPA's General
Counsel.

1 The Pool Members include the Cities of Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Healdsburg, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto and Ukiah, and
the Port of Oakland and Plumas Sierra Rural Electric Cooperative.



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020, by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY

NCPA Resolution 20-50 -2-



Contract 96-SNR-00110
Amendment 5

UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION
SIERRA NEVADA CUSTOMER SERVICE REGION
CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT, CALIFORNIA

AMENDMENT 5

TO THE
AGREEMENT FOR THE FUNDING OF OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE FOR
CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT POWER FACILITIES
WITH

UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF RECLAMATION
MID-PACIFIC REGION
AND
CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT CUSTOMERS



Contract 96-SNR-00110
Amendment 5

UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION
SIERRA NEVADA CUSTOMER SERVICE REGION
CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT, CALIFORNIA

AMENDMENT 5
TO THE

AGREEMENT FOR THE FUNDING OF OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE FOR
CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT POWER FACILITIES

WITH
UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF RECLAMATION
MID-PACIFIC REGION
AND

CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT CUSTOMERS

Section Table of Contents Page

1. Preamble..... ... oot e e e e e e aas 1

2. Explanatory Recitals...........ccooeeiimeiiiecie e 1

3. AGrEEIMENT ... ..t e 2

4. Term of AMenNdmMENt............uiiiiieiieeiere et s 2

5. Modification of Section 10 (Govermance Board) of the Agreement for the
Funding of Operation and Maintenance for CVP Facilities................c......... 2

6. Agreement for the Funding of Operation and Maintenance for CVP
Facilities to Remain in Effect............coooiiiiiii e 4-18

7. Authority t0 EXECULE .......c.eeviiriiiiiiie e 4-18



© 00 ~N OO O A O N -

N N N N N N DN M N A A A a a a a a a o
0 ~N O o0 A O WN =2 O O 00 N O OBk W N = O

Contract 04-SNR-00677
Amendment 5

UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION
SIERRA NEVADA CUSTOMER SERVICE REGION
CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT, CALIFORNIA
AMENDMENT 5
TO THE

AGREEMENT FOR THE FUNDING OF OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE FOR
CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT POWER FACILITIES

WITH
UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF RECLAMATION
MID-PACIFIC REGION
AND

CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT CUSTOMERS

1. PREAMBLE:

This Amendment 5 to Agreement 96-SNR-00110 (Primary Agreement) is made this
day of , 20 , among the UNITED STATES OF

AMERICA, (United States) (i) acting by and through Western Area Power

Administration, Department of Energy (Western) and (ii) acting by and through Bureau
of Reclamation, Department of the Interior (Reclamation); and the Central Valley
Project (CVP) preference power customers signing this Amendment as set forth in

Exhibit A of the Primary Agreement, all collectively called Parties.

2, EXPLANATORY RECITALS:

2.1 The Parties entered into the Primary Agreement on November 12, 1997.
n
"
n

Amendment 5 to Agreement 96-SNR-00110



© 0 N O 0 ~r WO N =

N N N N N DN NN 2 A ama a @mAa a Q@ Q Q@ -
0 N O A O WN =2 O 0O 0o N OO O b~ W N -~ O

3.

2.2  Section 10 of the Primary Contract defines the rules and responsibilities of
the Governance Board, including the composition of the Governance Board

members.
2.3 The Parties have determined they need clarity on how to fill vacancies on
the Governance Board and they need to ensure full membership on the

Governance Board.

AGREEMENT:

The Parties agree to the terms and conditions set forth herein.

4,

TERM OF AMENDMENT:

This Amendment shall become effective upon execution and shall remain in effect

concurrently with the Primary Agreement.

5.

MODIFICATION OF SECTION 10 (GOVERNANCE BOARD) OF THE

AGREEMENT FOR THE FUNDING OF OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE FOR
CVP FACILITIES:

i

5.1  The following subsection of Section 10 of the Primary Agreement is
hereby modified as shown below:

“10.1.4.3 An election to fill any Customer Governance Board member
vacancy shall be held prior to or at the next scheduled Governance Board
meeting. If a vacancy occurs in a Customer group (defined in 10.1.3), Western
will provide notice to that Customer group and the Customer group will have
forty-five (45) days to elect a new Governance Board member. Western may
extend that time if requested by the Customer group. If a Customer group fails

to elect a Governance Board member as provided, the Governance Board may

Amendment 5 to Agreement 96-SNR-00110



© 0O N o a0 A WO N -

N N N NN NN NN NN DM N - @ e ad emd e e =
0w ~N O b~ W N =2 O W 0o N OO 060 P~ W N -~ O

6.

fill the vacancy by appointing a Customer that is not already on the Governance
Board. The Governance Board first will attempt to appoint a Customer from the
Customer group having the vacancy. However, if there is not an eligible
Customer that meets the criteria of the group or if there is no eligible Customer
from the group that expresses an interest in participating on the Governance
Board for the vacant position, the Governance Board may appoint a Customer
from any group to fill the vacant position. The Governance Board must vote on
any appointment at a scheduled Governance Board meeting before that

appointee becomes a member of the Governance Board.”

5.2 The following new subsection is added to Section 10 of the Primary
Agreement:

“10.4.4 Vacancy: The Governance Board may vote to fill a vacancy as provided
in Section 10.1.4.3. Any vote to fill a vacancy shall be done under the voting
procedures in 10.2.2 but shall not be subject to a call for a percentage vote. For
clarity, the voting process applies only if a Customer group fails to elect a

Governance Board member within the time provided in 10.4.1.3.”

PRIMARY AGREEMENT TO REMAIN IN EFFECT:

Except as expressly modified by this Amendment and as previously amended, said

Primary Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, and this Amendment shall be

subject to all provisions of the Primary Agreement, except as herein amended.

i
i
i
i
i
i

Amendment 5 to Agreement 96-SNR-00110



© 00 N o g »~r W DN =

N N N D DD DN DN &m0 @ @ .
0 N O o A W N =2 O ©O© 00 N O o b~ W N - O

7. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE:

Each individual signing this Amendment certifies that the Party represented has duly
authorized such individual to execute this Amendment that binds and obligates the
Party. The Parties agree that this Amendment may be executed by handwritten
signature or digitally signed using Adobe Sign or Adobe E-Signature. An electronic or
digital signature is the same as a handwritten signature and shall be considered valid

and acceptable.

8.  EXECUTION BY COUNTERPARTS:

This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and, upon execution
and delivery by each Party, the executed and delivered counterparts together shall
have the same force and effect as an original instrument as if all Parties had signed the
same instrument. Any signature page of this Amendment may be detached by any
counterpart of this Amendment without impairing the legal effect of any signatures
thereon, and may be attached to another counterpart of this Amendment identical in

form hereto, by having attached to it one or more signature pages.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to be
executed the day and year first above written.

WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION

By:

Sonja A. Anderson
Title: Vice President of Power Marketing for

Sierra Nevada Region

Address: 114 Parkshore Drive

Folsom, CA 95630

Amendment 5 to Agreement 96-SNR-00110



© 00 N O 0 b WN -

N N N N N DD N NN A& A a0 2 A @ = . -
0o N O g A W N =2 O O 0 N O o b WO N =~ O

7. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE:

Each individual signing this Amendment certifies that the Party represented has duly
authorized such individual to execute this Amendment that binds and obligates the
Party. The Parties agree that this Amendment may be executed by handwritten
signature or digitally signed using Adobe Sign or Adobe E-Signature. An electronic or
digital signature is the same as a handwritten signature and shall be considered valid

and acceptable.

8. EXECUTION BY COUNTERPARTS:

This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and, upon execution
and delivery by each Party, the executed and delivered counterparts together shall
have the same force and effect as an original instrument as if all Parties had signed the
same instrument. Any signature page of this Amendment may be detached by any
counterpart of this Amendment without impairing the legal effect of any signatures
thereon, and may be attached to another counterpart of this Amendment identical in

form hereto, by having attached to it one or more signature pages.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to be

executed the day and year first above written.

BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

By:
Attest: Title:
By: Address:

Title:

Amendment 5 to Agreement 96-SNR-00110



W 00 N O a b W N -

N N N N N D DD A @ m ma o ama e
0o ~N O a »hA W DN 2 O © 00 N O OO b~ W N -~ O

7. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE:

Each individual signing this Amendment certifies that the Party represented has duly
authorized such individual to execute this Amendment that binds and obligates the
Party. The Parties agree that this Amendment may be executed by handwritten
signature or digitally signed using Adobe Sign or Adobe E-Signature. An electronic or
digital signature is the same as a handwritten signature and shall be considered valid

and acceptable.

8. EXECUTION BY COUNTERPARTS:

This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and, upon execution
and delivery by each Party, the executed and delivered counterparts together shall
have the same force and effect as an original instrument as if all Parties had signed the
same instrument. Any signature page of this Amendment may be detached by any
counterpart of this Amendment without impairing the legal effect of any signatures
thereon, and may be attached to another counterpart of this Amendment identical in

form hereto, by having attached to it one or more signature pages.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to be

executed the day and year first above written.

BYRON-BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT

By:
Attest: Title:
By: Address:

Title:

Amendment 5 to Agreement 96-SNR-00110



© 00 N O g A O N -

NN N N N N DM DN &A@ @ A 2 a @A@a a «4a @ -
0o ~N O O A W N a2 O ©W 00N OO oA WwN -~ O

7. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE:

Each individual signing this Amendment certifies that the Party represented has duly
authorized such individual to execute this Amendment that binds and obligates the
Party. The Parties agree that this Amendment may be executed by handwritten
signature or digitally signed using Adobe Sign or Adobe E-Signature. An electronic or
digital signature is the same as a handwritten signature and shall be considered valid

and acceptable.

8. EXECUTION BY COUNTERPARTS:

This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and, upon execution
and delivery by each Party, the executed and delivered counterparts together shall
have the same force and effect as an original instrument as if all Parties had signed the
same instrument. Any signature page of this Amendment may be detached by any
counterpart of this Amendment without impairing the legal effect of any signatures
thereon, and may be attached to another counterpart of this Amendment identical in

form hereto, by having attached to it one or more signature pages.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to be

executed the day and year first above written.

EASTSIDE POWER AUTHORITY

By:
Attest: Title:
By: Address:

Title:

Amendment 5 to Agreement 96-SNR-00110



© 00 ~N OO g b~ WO DN -

N N N N N N NN N 2 aa ma aa  aa @& = = @ -
0 N OO A WD 2O © 0O N O OO0 PN W N = O

7. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE:

Each individual signing this Amendment certifies that the Party represented has duly
authorized such individual to execute this Amendment that binds and obligates the
Party. The Parties agree that this Amendment may be executed by handwritten
signature or digitally signed using Adobe Sign or Adobe E-Signature. An electronic or
digital signature is the same as a handwritten signature and shall be considered valid

and acceptable.

8. EXECUTION BY COUNTERPARTS:

This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and, upon execution
and delivery by each Party, the executed and delivered counterparts together shall
have the same force and effect as an original instrument as if all Parties had signed the
same instrument. Any signature page of this Amendment may be detached by any
counterpart of this Amendment without impairing the legal effect of any signatures
thereon, and may be attached to another counterpart of this Amendment identical in

form hereto, by having attached to it one or more signature pages.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to be

executed the day and year first above written.

LASSEN MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

By:
Attest: Title:
By: Address:

Title:

Amendment 5 to Agreement 96-SNR-00110



© 00 N O g W N -

N N NN N N NN NN NN N A a aAa A a QO A Q@2 -
0o N O 6o AW N =~ O © 00O N OO O, WN -~ O

7. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE:

Each individual signing this Amendment certifies that the Party represented has duly
authorized such individual to execute this Amendment that binds and obligates the
Party. The Parties agree that this Amendment may be executed by handwritten
signature or digitally signed using Adobe Sign or Adobe E-Signature. An electronic or
digital signature is the same as a handwritten signature and shall be considered valid

and acceptable.

8. EXECUTION BY COUNTERPARTS:

This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and, upon execution
and delivery by each Party, the executed and delivered counterparts together shall
have the same force and effect as an original instrument as if all Parties had signed the
same instrument. Any signature page of this Amendment may be detached by any
counterpart of this Amendment without impairing the legal effect of any signatures
thereon, and may be attached to another counterpart of this Amendment identical in

form hereto, by having attached to it one or more signature pages.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to be

executed the day and year first above written.

NASA - AMES RESEARCH CENTER

By:
Attest: Title:
By: Address:

Title:

Amendment 5 to Agreement 96-SNR-00110



© 0 N O O b~ WN -

N N NN N NN N NN DM DN 2 @ A a a a «a @ a o«
0 ~N O o A W N =2 O O 00 N O b W N -~ O

7. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE:

Each individual signing this Amendment certifies that the Party represented has duly
authorized such individual to execute this Amendment that binds and obligates the
Party. The Parties agree that this Amendment may be executed by handwritten
signature or digitally signed using Adobe Sign or Adobe E-Signature. An electronic or
digital signature is the same as a handwritten signature and shall be considered valid

and acceptable.

8. EXECUTION BY COUNTERPARTS:

This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and, upon execution
and delivery by each Party, the executed and delivered counterparts together shall
have the same force and effect as an original instrument as if all Parties had signed the
same instrument. Any signature page of this Amendment may be detached by any
counterpart of this Amendment without impairing the legal effect of any signatures
thereon, and may be attached to another counterpart of this Amendment identical in

form hereto, by having attached to it one or more signature pages.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to be

executed the day and year first above written.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

By:
Attest: Title:
By: Address:

Title:

10
Amendment 5 to Agreement 96-SNR-00110



© 0 ~N O O H W N =

N N N N D DD DN N DN @ A a a a a2 < < a e
0 ~N O o A W N =2 O ©O© 0o N O OO b~ w N - O

7.  AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE:

Each individual signing this Amendment certifies that the Party represented has duly
authorized such individual to execute this Amendment that binds and obligates the
Party. The Parties agree that this Amendment may be executed by handwritten
signature or digitally signed using Adobe Sign or Adobe E-Signature. An electronic or
digital signature is the same as a handwritten signature and shall be considered valid

and acceptable.

8. EXECUTION BY COUNTERPARTS:

This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and, upon execution
and delivery by each Party, the executed and delivered counterparts together shall
have the same force and effect as an original instrument as if all Parties had signed the
same instrument. Any signature page of this Amendment may be detached by any
counterpart of this Amendment without impairing the legal effect of any signatures
thereon, and may be attached to another counterpart of this Amendment identical in

form hereto, by having attached to it one or more signature pages.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to be

executed the day and year first above written.

POWER AND WATER RESOURCES
POOLING AUTHORITY

By:
Attest: Title:
By: Address:

Title:

11
Amendment 5 to Agreement 96-SNR-00110



© O N O O A W N -

N N N N NN DN N NN @O @A @@ @ O a2 @A a2 @ owm
0o N O A W N A2 O O 0O N OO 0ok O N =~ O

7. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE:

Each individual signing this Amendment certifies that the Party represented has duly
authorized such individual to execute this Amendment that binds and obligates the
Party. The Parties agree that this Amendment may be executed by handwritten
signature or digitally signed using Adobe Sign or Adobe E-Signature. An electronic or
digital signature is the same as a handwritten signature and shall be considered valid

and acceptable.

8. EXECUTION BY COUNTERPARTS:

This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and, upon execution
and delivery by each Party, the executed and delivered counterparts together shall
have the same force and effect as an original instrument as if all Parties had signed the
same instrument. Any signature page of this Amendment may be detached by any
counterpart of this Amendment without impairing the legal effect of any signatures
thereon, and may be attached to another counterpart of this Amendment identical in

form hereto, by having attached to it one or more signature pages.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to be

executed the day and year first above written.

CITY OF REDDING
By:

Attest: Title:

By: Address:

Title:

12
Amendment 5 to Agreement 96-SNR-00110



© 0O N O o A~ WO N =

N DN N N D N D DD = a0 s & & = o a -
0o N O O AW N ~, O O 00 N OO Ok W N -~ O

7.  AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE:

Each individual signing this Amendment certifies that the Party represented has duly
authorized such individual to execute this Amendment that binds and obligates the
Party. The Parties agree that this Amendment may be executed by handwritten
signature or digitally signed using Adobe Sign or Adobe E-Signature. An electronic or
digital signature is the same as a handwritten signature and shall be considered valid

and acceptable.

8. EXECUTION BY COUNTERPARTS:

This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and, upon execution
and delivery by each Party, the executed and delivered counterparts together shall
have the same force and effect as an original instrument as if all Parties had signed the
same instrument. Any signature page of this Amendment may be detached by any
counterpart of this Amendment without impairing the legal effect of any signatures
thereon, and may be attached to another counterpart of this Amendment identical in

form hereto, by having attached to it one or more signature pages.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to be

executed the day and year first above written.

CITY OF ROSEVILLE

By:
Attest: Title:
By: Address:

Title:

13
Amendment 5 to Agreement 96-SNR-00110



© 00 N O O B W N =

N N N N N N NN N N 2 A @@ 22 @ @ < <A o«
0 N O oA WDN =2 O O 00N OO o Bk W N - O

7. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE:

Each individual signing this Amendment certifies that the Party represented has duly
authorized such individual to execute this Amendment that binds and obligates the
Party. The Parties agree that this Amendment may be executed by handwritten
signature or digitally signed using Adobe Sign or Adobe E-Signature. An electronic or
digital signature is the same as a handwritten signature and shall be considered valid

and acceptable.

8. EXECUTION BY COUNTERPARTS:

This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and, upon execution
and delivery by each Party, the executed and delivered counterparts together shall
have the same force and effect as an original instrument as if all Parties had signed the
same instrument. Any signature page of this Amendment may be detached by any
counterpart of this Amendment without impairing the legal effect of any signatures
thereon, and may be attached to another counterpart of this Amendment identical in

form hereto, by having attached to it one or more signature pages.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to be

executed the day and year first above written.

SAN JUAN WATER DISTRICT
By:

Attest: Title:

By: Address:

Title:

14
Amendment 5 to Agreement 96-SNR-00110



© 00 N o a0 A W N -

N N DN N N NN NN DM N =2 @ a2 a a a a a a -
0 N O oA W N =2, O W 00 N o Ok W N =~ O

7. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE:

Each individual signing this Amendment certifies that the Party represented has duly
authorized such individual to execute this Amendment that binds and obligates the
Party. The Parties agree that this Amendment may be executed by handwritten
signature or digitally signed using Adobe Sign or Adobe E-Signature. An electronic or
digital signature is the same as a handwritten signature and shall be considered valid

and acceptable.

8. EXECUTION BY COUNTERPARTS:

This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and, upon execution
and delivery by each Party, the executed and delivered counterparts together shall
have the same force and effect as an original instrument as if all Parties had signed the
same instrument. Any signature page of this Amendment may be detached by any
counterpart of this Amendment without impairing the legal effect of any signatures
thereon, and may be attached to another counterpart of this Amendment identical in

form hereto, by having attached to it one or more signature pages.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to be

executed the day and year first above written.

SACRAMENTO MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

By:
Attest: Title:
By: Address:

Title:

15
Amendment 5 to Agreement 96-SNR-00110



© 0o N O g A W N -

N N N N N N DD N N @@ @A A a @ @ @ @ @ a -
0 N O o0 W DN A O © 0o N OO 060k WwN -~ O

7. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE:

Each individual signing this Amendment certifies that the Party represented has duly
authorized such individual to execute this Amendment that binds and obligates the
Party. The Parties agree that this Amendment may be executed by handwritten
signature or digitally signed using Adobe Sign or Adobe E-Signature. An electronic or
digital signature is the same as a handwritten signature and shall be considered valid

and acceptable.

8. EXECUTION BY COUNTERPARTS:

This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and, upon execution
and delivery by each Party, the executed and delivered counterparts together shall
have the same force and effect as an original instrument as if all Parties had signed the
same instrument. Any signature page of this Amendment may be detached by any
counterpart of this Amendment without impairing the legal effect of any signatures
thereon, and may be attached to another counterpart of this Amendment identical in

form hereto, by having attached to it one or more signature pages.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to be

executed the day and year first above written.

CITY OF SANTA CLARA
DBA SILICON VALLEY POWER

By:
Attest: Title:
By: Address:

Title:

16
Amendment 5 to Agreement 96-SNR-00110



© 00 ~N O O B WO DN -

N N DN N N N DN NN =2 a a a a a2 «a «a «a o
0o ~N O O A W N =2 O ©O 0O N O 0 b W N -~ o

7. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE:

Each individual signing this Amendment certifies that the Party represented has duly
authorized such individual to execute this Amendment that binds and obligates the
Party. The Parties agree that this Amendment may be executed by handwritten
signature or digitally signed using Adobe Sign or Adobe E-Signature. An electronic or
digital signature is the same as a handwritten signature and shall be considered valid

and acceptable.

8. EXECUTION BY COUNTERPARTS:

This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and, upon execution

and delivery by each Party, the executed and delivered counterparts together shall
have the same force and effect as an original instrument as if all Parties had signed the
same instrument. Any signature page of this Amendment may be detached by any
counterpart of this Amendment without impairing the legal effect of any signatures
thereon, and may be attached to another counterpart of this Amendment identical in

form hereto, by having attached to it one or more signature pages.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to be

executed the day and year first above written.

TRINITY PUBLIC UTILITIES DISTRICT

By:
Attest: Title:
By: Address:

Title:

17
Amendment 5 to Agreement 96-SNR-00110



©W 00 N O O H W N -

N N N N NN N D DM DN A a0 & aa  aa a
0o N OO 00 A W N -2 O O 0o N O O »~p w N -~ O

7. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE:

Each individual signing this Amendment certifies that the Party represented has duly
authorized such individual to execute this Amendment that binds and obligates the
Party. The Parties agree that this Amendment may be executed by handwritten
signature or digitally signed using Adobe Sign or Adobe E-Signature. An electronic or
digital signature is the same as a handwritten signature and shall be considered valid

and acceptable.

8. EXECUTION BY COUNTERPARTS:

This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and, upon execution
and delivery by each Party, the executed and delivered counterparts together shall
have the same force and effect as an original instrument as if all Parties had signed the
same instrument. Any signature page of this Amendment may be detached by any
counterpart of this Amendment without impairing the legal effect of any signatures
thereon, and may be attached to another counterpart of this Amendment identical in

form hereto, by having attached to it one or more signature pages.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to be

executed the day and year first above written.

TURLOCK IRRIGATION DISTRICT

By:
Attest: Title:
By: Address:

Title:

18
Amendment 5 to Agreement 96-SNR-00110



© 0 N O O A~ W N =

N N N N N NN D DO b m m = @ o =
0o ~N O g b~ W N =2 O © 00 N O o0 b~ wWwN -~ O

7. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE:

Each individual signing this Amendment certifies that the Party represented has duly
authorized such individual to execute this Amendment that binds and obligates the
Party. The Parties agree that this Amendment may be executed by handwritten
signature or digitally signed using Adobe Sign or Adobe E-Signature. An electronic or
digital signature is the same as a handwritten signature and shall be considered valid

and acceptable.

8. EXECUTION BY COUNTERPARTS:

This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and, upon execution
and delivery by each Party, the executed and delivered counterparts together shall
have the same force and effect as an original instrument as if all Parties had signed the
same instrument. Any signature page of this Amendment may be detached by any
counterpart of this Amendment without impairing the legal effect of any signatures
thereon, and may be attached to another counterpart of this Amendment identical in

form hereto, by having attached to it one or more signature pages.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to be

executed the day and year first above written.

BUREAU OF RECLAMATION

By:
Attest: Title:
By: Address:

Title:

19
Amendment 5 to Agreement 96-SNR-00110



RESOLUTION 20-50

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING AMENDMENT 5 TO CONTRACT 96-SNR-00110

(reference Staff Report #168:20)

WHEREAS, the Agreement for the Funding and Operation and Maintenance for Central Valley Project
Power Facilities (O&M Funding Agreement or Contract 96-SNR-00110) was established to allow Central Valley
Project (CVP) customers the ability to provide advanced funding for specific operations, maintenance, and
capital projects related to CVP facilities, and such funds are used to ensure CVP facilities are maintained to
enhance reliability for delivery of Base Resource products to NCPA Members; and

WHEREAS, NCPA'’s authority to act on behalf of Pool Members' (or Assigning Members) is provided
through the Assignment Administration Agreement (AAA Agreement), and certain actions taken by NCPA on
behalf of the Pool Members, including the actions recommended herein, requires prior Commission
authorization pursuant to an affirmative vote of all Assigning Members; and

WHEREAS, Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 will modify Section 10 of Contract 96-SNR-
00110, in which the rules and responsibilities of the O&M Funding Agreement Governance Board are
described; and

WHEREAS, Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 will provide clarity regarding the process used by
the O&M Funding Agreement Governance Board for filling vacancies within a defined customer group, if a
customer group fails to elect or appoint a new member to fill a vacancy as further described in Contract 96-
SNR-00110; and

WHEREAS, NCPA’s administrative costs for processing Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 will
be allocated to Members in accordance with approved cost allocation methodologies as described in the NCPA
annual budget; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
adopts Resolution 20-50 approving Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110, and authorizes the General
Manager of NCPA to execute Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110, on behalf of NCPA, including any
non-substantive modifications to Amendment 5 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 approved by NCPA’s General
Counsel.

1 The Pool Members include the Cities of Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Healdsburg, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto and Ukiah, and
the Port of Oakland and Plumas Sierra Rural Electric Cooperative. ,



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020, by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY

NCPA Resolution 20-50 -2-



A PUBLIC AGENCY

PA

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: August 19, 2020
COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  August 27, 2020

SUBJECT: NorCal Power Services LLC — Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement -
for Electrical Maintenance Related Services; Applicable to the following projects: All Northern
California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power
Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Joel Ledesmaf_f\ / METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department: Combustion Turbines

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members Cityof Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [
San Franci;gt;iga_lyr:r::; U City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC [
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [J Port of Oakland []
City of Gridley [] City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD [J
City of Healdsburg [ City of Santa Clara [ Other []

If other, please specify

SR: 178:20



NorCal Power Services LLC — 5 Year MTGSA
August 27, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Resolution 20-57 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-
Task General Services Agreement with NorCal Power Services LLC for electrical maintenance
related services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned
and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

BACKGROUND:

Electrical maintenance related services are required from time to time for the operation and
maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA. NorCal was the low bidder on a
recent project and due to timing we had to move forward with the next low bidder in which we
already had an agreement with. NCPA desires to enter into a multi-task enabling agreement with
NorCal Power Services LLS so established terms and conditions are in place should this vendor
be the successful bidder on future projects. Execution of this enabling agreement will also
increase the pool of qualified and proven vendors for these types of services. NCPA currently
has agreements in place with Electrical Maintenance Consultants and Hart High Voltage for
similar services.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000 over five years.
Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following
NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from as many qualified providers as
possible. Bids are awarded to the vendor providing the best overall value to NCPA. NCPA will
issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the
service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical

environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

SR: 178:20



NorCal Power Services LLC — 5 Year MTGSA
August 27, 2020
Page 3

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on August 5, 2020, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on August 10, 2020, and was approved.

Respectfully submitted,

Q A I

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):
e Resolution
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement with NorCal Power Services LLC

SR: 178:20



RESOLUTION 20-57

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH NORCAL POWER
SERVICES LLC

(reference Staff Report #178:20)

WHEREAS, electrical maintenance related services are required from time to time for the operation and
maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), NCPA
Members, the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members; and

WHEREAS, NorCal Power Services LLC is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with NorCal Power
Services LLC to provide such services as needed at all NCPA facilities, NCPA Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA
Member facilities in an amount not to exceed $500,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
NorCal Power Services LLC, with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for electrical maintenance related services, for use at all
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



vi
%M@ﬁA

AHKTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
NORCAL POWER SERVICES LLC

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement (‘Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and NorCal Power Services LLC, a sole
proprietorship with its office located at 3917 Auburn Folsom Road, Loomis, CA 95650
(“Contractor”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of , 2020
(“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section 1.

SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this

Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5)
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to
provide the Work set forth herein.

Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may
include Work directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or SCPPA members.

Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be
completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the
Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does
not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-026
Northern California Power Agency and NorCal Power Services LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019



Section 2.

agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT

TO EXCEED FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($500,000.00) for the Work, which shall
include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee
schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a
guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of
potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

21

2.2

2.3

2.4

Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and -
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period,;

Work performed,;

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

At Agency’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the
applicable time entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the
name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with
supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Atin: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor.

Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement.

Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-026
Northern California Power Agency and NorCal Power Services LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 2 of 22



2.5

Section 3.

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days
after completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at

its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform

the Work.

Section 4.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this

Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

41

4.2

Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall
maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.2.1 Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shaill maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per each accident, with
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-026
Northern California Power Agency and NorCal Power Services LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 3 of 22



4.3

4.4
4.5

Professional Liability Insurance. Contractor shall maintain professional liability
insurance appropriate to Contractor's profession performing work in connection
with this Agreement in an amount not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000)
and two million dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate covering the Contractor's errors
and omissions. Any deductible or self-insured retention shall not exceed two
hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000.00) per claim. Such insurance shall be
on a “claims-made” basis, subject to the following conditions: (1) the retroactive
date of the policy shall be on or before the Effective Date of this Agreement;

(2) the policy shall be maintained for at least five (5) years after completion of the
Services and, if requested by Agency, evidence of coverage shall be provided
during this period; and (3) if, within five (5) years of completion of the Services,
coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-
made policy form with a retroactive date prior to the Effective Date of this
Agreement, Consultant shall purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a
minimum of five (5) years after completion of the Services and, if requested by
Agency, provide evidence of coverage during this period.

Pollution Insurance. Not Applicable.

All Policies Requirements.

4.5.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2 and in Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in
regard to work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

4.5.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits maintained by the Contractor.

4.5.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs
Work for Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to
this Agreement, Contractor shall provide the certificates of insurance and
policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.5.1, naming the specific
Agency member, SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to
be performed.

4.5.5 Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which
any insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the
payment of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-026
Northern California Power Agency and NorCal Power Services LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 4 of 22



4.6

Section 5.

may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. In addition, the
Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Contractor, its
employees, agents and subcontractors.

Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsibie for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are
and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent
contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

5.1

5.2

5.3

Section 6.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration.
Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities,
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any acts or omissions
by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by
the sole or gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement
be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then
the exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency.

Transfer of Title. Not Applicable.
STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

6.1

Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant
to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by
which Contractor accomplishes Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement.
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law,
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-026
Northern California Power Agency and NorCal Power Services LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 5 of 22



not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitiement to any contribution to
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for
PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement
is based upon Contractor’s estimated costs of providing the Work, including
salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of Contractor.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Contractor’s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Contractor.

6.2 Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall
be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with
respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-026
Northern California Power Agency and NorCal Power Services LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 6 of 22



6.4

6.5

6.6

Section 7.

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute
Exhibit C.

Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at
the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D.

Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or
more Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types
of construction, repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall
execute Exhibit E and/or similar documentation as to compliance.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the
work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.

Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants
that it is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to
perform Work consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section
1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a
similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work
as provided in the California Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in
performing the Work. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770
and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general
prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is to be
performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem
wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-026
Northern California Power Agency and NorCal Power Services LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 7 of 22



Section 8.

the Work is to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker
needed to perform the project; and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem
wages are on file at the Agency and will be made available on request.
Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must comply with all
applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance of the
Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend;
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the
State of California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any
worker or any other third party with regard thereto.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group
3, Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding
Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on
the web at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.

Contractor shall provide a certified copy of its payroll, on forms to be determined
by the Agency and consistent with the Labor Code, within ten (10) days of the
Contractor’s receipt of Agency’s written request therefor. Contractor’s failure to
timely comply with this provision may subject the Contractor to penalties
pursuant to state law.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774
and 1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty
to Agency $200.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid.
less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial
Relations for such work or craft in which such worker is employed for any Work
done under the Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under
Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular,
Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and pursuant to
Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker
by the Contractor.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

8.1

8.2

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause‘
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Contractor.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however,
may condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to
Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by both of the Parties.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-026
Northern California Power Agency and NorCal Power Services LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 8 of 22



8.3

8.4

Section 9.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section
4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,
and any other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by
Contractor; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work
that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would
have paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the
Work.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

9.1

9.2

9.3

Records Created as Part of Contractor’s Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that,
unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Contractor’'s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Contractor under this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-026
Northern California Power Agency and NorCal Power Services LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 9 of 22



part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under this Agreement.

9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as Confidential Information in accordance with this section.

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) Confidential
Information to the other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know
in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-026
Northern California Power Agency and NorCal Power Services LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 10 of 22



Section 10.

destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’'s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

PROJECT SITE.

10.1

10.2

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed,
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency; if
applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced
in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons
and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work at a
Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools,
equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to
Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be
solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of
any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work,
whether owned, leased or rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be
responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost,
stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Equipment,
tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without
permission, is at Contractor’s sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to
have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by
Agency or, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be solely as an accommodation and neither
Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability therefor. Contractor shall
assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired
automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools,
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project
site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and
in good condition.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-026
Northern California Power Agency and NorCal Power Services LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 11 of 22



10.3

Section 11.

1.1

11.2

11.3

Section 12.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency
and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as
referenced in Section 1.4, for the performance of Work.

WARRANTY.

Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law
or public policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in
design and workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations
including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency
may have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be
obligated at its own expense to perform, all further Work which may be required
to correct any deficiencies which result from Contractor’s failure to perform any
Work in accordance with the standards required by this Agreement. If during the
term of this Agreement or the one (1) year period following completion of the
Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used or provided by
Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in material and/or
workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon any
reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's
satisfaction.

Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance,
provided by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material
used in the Work.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain,

and enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program
intended to ensure safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall
include all requisite components of such a program under Federal, State and local regulations
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4.

121

12.2

Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to
safely perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may
be encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and
material handling equipment.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-026
Northern California Power Agency and NorCal Power Services LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 12 of 22



12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

Section 13.

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware
of and will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall
be required to comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the
Agreement. Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may resuit
in cessation of work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. It is
also expressly acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for
any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section
12.

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the
Agency site safety representative copies of all written accident reports, and
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of
its employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall
conduct occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of
exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental
conditions. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site
safety representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous
wastes, if any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be
subject to actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the
Agency a Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for
spill containment and clean-up, emergency contact information including
regulatory agencies and spill sampling and analysis procedures. Hazardous
Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks owned or leased by the
Contractor.

If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA
member (collectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to
Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency
under Sections 12.1, 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof.

MISCELLANEQUS PROVISIONS.

13.1

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-026
Northern California Power Agency and NorCal Power Services LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 13 of 22



Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

13.2 Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

13.3 Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

13.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

13.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

13.6 Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of
location, would place Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 et seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 et seq.

13.7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Joel
Ledesma, Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the
Agency’s representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

13.8 Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:
NorCal Power Services LLC
Attention: Aaron Stone
3917 Auburn Folsom Road
Loomis, CA 95650
Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-026
Northern California Power Agency and NorCal Power Services LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 14 of 22



13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action
specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq.

13.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Contractor’s Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

13.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

13.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the
drafting party shall not apply hereto.

13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.
However, should Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this section only “Member”)
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Work relating to
such Member.

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE

m

i

i

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-026
Northern California Power Agency and NorCal Power Services LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 16 of 22



The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY NORCAL POWER SERVICES LLC

Date Date

RANDY S. HOWARD, AARON STONE,
General Manager Owner

Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-026
Northern California Power Agency and NorCal Power Services LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019
Page 17 of 22



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

NorCal Power Services LLC ("Contractor") shall provide electrical maintenance related services
as requested by the Northern California Power Agency ("Agency") at any facilities owned or
operated by Agency, NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA) or
SCPPA Members.

Services to include, but not be limited to the following:

Protection relay testing

NERC PRC and MOD standards compliance services

Substation and generation electrical equipment maintenance and testing

Limited repair capabilities of substation and generation electrical equipment

Power system studies

Protection relay upgrades

OSisoft Pl support

Emerson Ovation and ABB Bailey DCS support

General combined cycle power plant troubleshooting including process equipment and
instrumentation

e Engineering

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-026
Northern California Power Agency and NorCal Power Services LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 18 of 22



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set
forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated
amount of expenses is as follows:

Travel time = $50/hr

Vehicle miles charge = current year federal mileage rate

Electrical equipment field testing w/specialized test equipment = $170/hr straight time
Protective relay testing = $170/hr straight time

Protective relay programming = $150/hr straight time

On-site troubleshooting = $150/hr straight time

Licensed Professional Engineer = $200/hr straight time

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the
time services are requested.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-026
Northern California Power Agency and NorCal Power Services LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 19 of 22



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of

NorCal Power Services LLC

(Company name)
for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by thé California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-026
Northern California Power Agency and NorCal Power Services LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 20 of 22



NOT APPLICABLE
EXHIBIT D
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart | and has conducted employee background
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to
time,

(Company name)
for hazardous materials delivery to:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-026
Northern California Power Agency and NorCal Power Services LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 21 of 22



NOT APPLICABLE
EXHIBIT E

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA]
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

DATED:

It is an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project
Maintenance Labor Agreement (“Agreement” solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E)
because it has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the
Agreement), or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered
Work, or to perform Covered Work.

In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further
consideration of the promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a
copy of which was received and is hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be
bound by the terms and condition of the Agreement, together with any and all
amendments and supplements now existing or which are later made thereto.

If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally established trust agreements
designated in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the
parties to such local trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to
administer the trust funds, and hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as
if made by the undersigned.

It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this
documents, from any Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign,
award, or subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work.

Name of Employer

(Authorized Officer & Title)

(Address)

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-026
Northern California Power Agency and NorCal Power Services LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 22 of 22



A PUBLIC AGENCY

PA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: August 19, 2020
COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  August 27, 2020

SUBJECT: First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC — Five Year Multi-Task General
Services Agreement for Turbo Machinery Related Services; Applicable to the following projects:
All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California
Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Joel Ledesmjfr c7< METHOD OF SELECTION:
Assistant General Manager N/A

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department: Combustion Turbines

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members X City of Lodi [1 City of Shasta Lake

Alameda Municipal Power L[] City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah
San F'a““i;g:iga%’r:;:ﬁ 0 Cityof Palo Alto [  Plumas-Sierra REC
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [J Port of Oakland

City of Gridley [l City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD

City of Healdsburg [1  City of Santa Clara [J Other

o o o o o 0O

If other, please specify

SR:179:20



First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC — 5 Year MTGSA
August 27, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Resolution 20-58 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi--
Task General Services Agreement with First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC for
turbo machinery related services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved
by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for use at all
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

BACKGROUND:

Turbo machinery related services are required from time to time for the operation and
maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by
SCPPA Members. NCPA had a previous agreement in place with First Global Gear Services,
LLC dba FGGS, LLC, which expired. NCPA has utilized this vendor in the past, and has a good
working relationship with the vendor. NCPA desires to enter into a multi-task enabling agreement:
with First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC so established terms and conditions are in
place should this vendor be the successful bidder on future projects. Execution of this enabling
agreement will also increase the pool of qualified and proven vendors for these types of services.
NCPA does not currently have any agreements in place with similar vendors at this time.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000 over five years.
Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following
NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from as many qualified providers as
possible. Bids are awarded to the vendor providing the best overall value to NCPA. NCPA will
issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the
service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical

environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

SR: 179:20



First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC —5 Year MTGSA
August 27, 2020
Page 3

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on August 5, 2020, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on August 10, 2020, and was approved.

Respectfully submitted,

MS(M

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):
e Resolution
¢ Multi-Task General Services Agreement with First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS,

LLC

SR: 179:20



RESOLUTION 20-58

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH FIRST GLOBAL
GEAR SERVICES, LLC DBA FGGS, LLC

(reference Staff Report #179:20)

WHEREAS, turbo machinery related services are required from time to time for the operation and
maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), NCPA
Members, the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members; and

WHEREAS, First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with First Global Gear
Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC to provide such services as needed at all NCPA facilities, NCPA Members,
SCPPA, and SCPPA Member facilities in an amount not to exceed $500,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC, with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for turbo machinery related services, for
use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



NDNTHEM&P&&ENCV
MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
FIRST GLOBAL GEAR SERVICES, LLC DBA FGGS, LLC

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and First Global Gear Services, LLC
dba FGGS, LLC, a limited liability company with its office located at 115 Technology Drive, A-
201, Trumbull, CT 06611 (“Contractor”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of
, 2020 (“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section1. ¥ SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5)
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter. -

1.2  Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to
provide the Work set forth herein.

1.3  Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

1.4  Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may
include Work directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or SCPPA members.

1.5  Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be -
completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the
Contractor’s receipt of the Agency’s Purchase Order in which to respond in
writing (electronically or otherwise) that Contractor chooses, in Contractor’s sole
and absolute discretion, not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor
agrees to perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work,

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-049
Northern California Power Agency and First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019



or does not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will
have agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the
Purchase Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits. Contractor shall have no
liability to the Agency or any related party in the event that Contractor chooses
not to perform the Requested Work.

Section2. ¥ COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT
TO EXCEED FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($500,000.00) for the Work, which shall
include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee
schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a
guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of
potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

21 Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

* The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

»  Work performed,;

= The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

= At Agency’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the
applicable time entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the
name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with
supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

2.2 Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor.

2.3 Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred by
Contractor under this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-049
Northern California Power Agency and First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 2 of 20



2.4  Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator.

2.5 Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days
after completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at

its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform
the Work.

Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this
Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1 Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall
maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.21 Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per each accident, with
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-049
Northern California Power Agency and First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 3 of 20



4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. Not Applicable.

4.4 Pollution Insurance. Not Applicable.

4.5 All Policies Requirements.

4.5.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2 and in Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in
regard to work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

4.5.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits maintained by the Contractor.

4.5.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs
Work for Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to
this Agreement, Contractor shall provide the certificates of insurance and
policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.5.1, naming the specific
Agency member, SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to
be performed.

4.5.5 Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which
any insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the
payment of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that
may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. In addition, the
Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Contractor, its
employees, agents and subcontractors.

4.6 Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are
and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-049
Northern California Power Agency and First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 4 of 20



Section 5.

5.1

5.3

Section 6.

contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration.

5.2  Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably
acceptable to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials,
commissioners, officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all
losses, liabilities, claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties,
fines, costs (including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments
and causes of action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any acts
or omissions by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except
as caused by the sole or gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should
this Agreement be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code
section 2783, then the exception referenced above shall also be for the active
negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in this
Agreement, Contractor’s liability under this Section 5 shall be limited to the
insurance limits and liabilities covered by and as described in in Section 4 of this
Agreement.

Transfer of Title. Not Applicable.
STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

6.1

Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant
to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by
which Contractor accomplishes Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement.
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law,
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for
PERS benefits.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-049
Northern California Power Agency and First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 5 of 20



6.2

6.3

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement
is based upon Contractor’s estimated costs of providing the Work, including
salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of Contractor.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penaities, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Contractor’s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Contractor.

Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall
be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with
respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency'’s satisfaction.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-049
Northern California Power Agency and First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 6 of 20



6.4

Section 7.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute
Exhibit C.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the
work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.

Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants
that it is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to
perform Work consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section
1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a
similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work
as provided in the California Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in
performing the Work. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770
and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general
prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is to be
performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem
wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which
the Work is to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker
needed to perform the project; and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem
wages are on file at the Agency and will be made available on request.
Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must comply with all
applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance of the
Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the
State of California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any
worker or any other third party with regard thereto.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group
3, Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-049
Northern California Power Agency and First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 7 of 20



Section 8.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on
the web at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.
Contractor shall provide a certified copy of its payroli, on forms to be determined
by the Agency and consistent with the Labor Code, within ten (10) days of the
Contractor’s receipt of Agency’s written request therefor. Contractor’s failure to
timely comply with this provision may subject the Contractor to penalties
pursuant to state law.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774
and 1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty -
to Agency $200.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid
less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial
Relations for such work or craft in which such worker is employed for any Work
done under the Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under
Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular,
Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and pursuant to
Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker
by the Contractor.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

Termination. Either party may cancel this Agreement at any time and without
cause upon fifteen (15) days prior written notice to the other party.
Notwithstanding, Contractor cannot terminate this Agreement if Contractor has
agreed to complete a Purchase Order(s) and all work under any Purchase Order
is not yet complete.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed and costs incurred prior to termination as of the effective
date of termination; Agency, however, may condition payment of such
compensation upon Contractor delivering to Agency any or all records or
documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by both of the Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor .
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach. If Contractor materially breaches any of the terms of this
Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 4, Agency’s
remedies shall include, but not be limited to the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-049
Northern California Power Agency and First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 8 of 20



Section 9.

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,
and any other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by
Contractor; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work
that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would
have paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the
Work.

If the Agency breaches any of the terms of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
be entitled to payment for work completed, costs reasonably incurred, and costs
to demobilize should Contractor have started work.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

9.1

9.2

9.3

Records Created as Part of Contractor’s Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that,
unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Contractor's Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Contractor under this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-049
Northern California Power Agency and First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 9 of 20



9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used
' herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret

information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as Confidential Information in accordance with this section.

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) Confidential
Information to the other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know
in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-049
Northern California Power Agency and First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 10 of 20



subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

Section 10. PROJECT SITE.

10.1 Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed,
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency; if
applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced
in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons
and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon final completion of the Work
at a Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all
tools, equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to
Contractor's Work.

10.2 Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be
solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of
any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work,
whether owned, leased or rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be
responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost,
stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Equipment,
tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without
permission, is at Contractor’s sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to
have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by
Agency or, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be solely as an accommodation and neither
Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability therefor except as a result of the
active negligence or intentional misconduct of the Agency or the entity for which
Contractor is performing the Work. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired automobiles, trucks or other
motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools, supplies, materials or other
property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project site. All materials and
supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and in good condition.

10.3 Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency
and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as
referenced in Section 1.4, for the performance of Work.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-049
Northern California Power Agency and First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 11 of 20



Section 11.

WARRANTY.

1.1

11.2

11.3

Section 12.

Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law
or public policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in
design and workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and reguiations
including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency
may have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be
obligated at its own expense to perform, all further Work which may be required
to correct any deficiencies which result from Contractor’s failure to perform any
Work in accordance with the standards required by this Agreement. If during the
term of this Agreement or the one (1) year period following completion of the
Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used or provided by
Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in material and/or
workmanship or other breach of this Agreement by Contractor, Contractor shall,
upon any reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to
Agency's satisfaction.

Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance,
provided by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material
used in the Work.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain,

and enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program
intended to ensure safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall
include all requisite components of such a program under Federal, State and local regulations
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4.

121

12.2

12.3

Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to
safely perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may
be encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and
material handling equipment.

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware
of and will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-049
Northern California Power Agency and First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 12 of 20



124

12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

Section 13.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall
be required to comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the
Agreement. Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result
in cessation of work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. Itis
also expressly acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for
any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section
12.

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the
Agency site safety representative copies of all written accident reports, and
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of
its employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall
determine if health monitoring and/or sampling is needed and if so, conduct
occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of exposure
of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental conditions.
Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site safety
representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous
wastes, if any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be
subject to actions including removal from Work.

If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA
member (collectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to
Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency
under Sections 12.1, 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

13.1

13.2

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-049
Northern California Power Agency and First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 13 of 20



13.3

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

13.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

13.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

13.6 Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of
location, would place Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 et seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 ef seq.

13.7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Joel
Ledesma, Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the
Agency’s representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

13.8 Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC
Attention: Marco Amaral
115 Technology Drive, A-201
Trumbull, CT 06611
Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:
Randy S. Howard
General Manager
Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678
With a copy to:
Jane E. Luckhardt
General Counsel
Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-049

Northern California Power Agency and First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 14 of 20



13.9

13.10

13.11

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Contractor agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

13.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action
specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq.

13.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this

Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-049
Northern California Power Agency and First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 15 of 20



(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Contractor's Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

13.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

13.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the
drafting party shall not apply hereto.

13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.
However, should Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this section only “Member”)
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Work relating to
such Member.

13.16 Force Majeure. As used herein, an “Event of Force Majeure” shall mean those
events that are beyond the control of Contractor, including events of war or
terrorism, floods, labor disputes or stoppages, earthquakes, declared states of
emergency or public health emergency (including without limitation epidemics
and/or pandemics), iliness, government mandated quarantine or shutdown,
adverse weather conditions not reasonably anticipated, and other acts of God.
Notwithstanding the foregoing and for the avoidance of doubt, the following shall
not be considered events of Force Majeure: economic hardship; lack of money
or credit; loss of profit or loss fo return on investment; changes in commodity
prices and the price of raw materials, fuel and supplies; changes in labor costs,
wages and benefits; changes in exchange rates; seller’s inability to perform and
complete the work for the Purchase Order price; and labor disputes between the
Contractor and its work force.

Contractor shall not be in default hereunder if it is unable to fulfill or is delayed in
fulfilling any of its obligations hereunder by reason of any Events of Force
Majeure. Nonetheless, Contractor acknowledges NCPA and NCPA's Members
are critical infrastructure industries where work continues during many declared
states of emergency and public health emergencies including the recent COVID
19 pandemic and declared state of emergency. Nonetheless, Contractor agrees
Contractor must make its own determination regarding the safety of its
employees and the worksite and whether Contractor is interested in working
during those types of conditions.

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-049
Northern California Power Agency and First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 16 of 20



The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY FIRST GLOBAL GEAR SERVICES, LLC
DBA FGGS, LLC

Date Date

RANDY S. HOWARD, MIKE SCHMIDT,
General Manager Field Service Manager
Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-049
Northern California Power Agency and First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019
Page 17 of 20



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC ("Contractor") shall provide turbo machinery
related services as requested by the Northern California Power Agency ("Agency") at any
facilities owned or operated by Agency, NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power
Authority (SCPPA) or SCPPA Members.

Services to include, but not be limited to the following:

e Maintenance on pumps, motors, gearbox, fluid couplings, turbo gear units, variable
speed drives on various hydro, geothermal and turbine equipment.

Drive train alignment check and correction, as required.

Walk down of drive train inspecting for oil leaks, broken or missing parts.

Review of operation history and alarm 1 trip history.

Interview operators to collect information on any operational issues

Perform customer spare parts evaluation

Operate drive train at several speeds and perform full spectrum analysis

Compile OAT recordings of transitional operation to analyze machine control and identify
any possible resonances occurring during operation.

e Perform modal analysis of complete drive train (Currently in development)

Reports:

Alignment certification

Recommended repairs 1 parts replacements

Vibration analysis, including both relative and seismic analysis
Recommended stocking level for customer owned spare parts
Modal analysis of complete drive train (Currently in- development)
Recommendation for future service requirements.

Vorecon Only:

» Horsepower estimate. (Speed, torque and guide vane percentage from Voith operating
map utilized to estimate actual power applied to the machine.) Graph maintained for
future trending.

e Report on internal labyrinth condition based on torque converter operation.

Graph showing system operating/lubricating oil pressures. Graph maintained for future
trending.

On-Site Diagnostics & Overhauls:
¢ Factory trained and authorized technicians
e Tooling delivered to site
e Voith Spare Parts

Muiti-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-049
Northern California Power Agency and First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 18 of 20



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES
Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set

forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated
amount of expenses is as follows: )

2020 FGGS Field Service Rates:

A. Buyer shall be billied for all services at the following rates:

FGGS Enginesring Representative Unkted States | Alaskn and Hawell | | Instasatons®
Labor Rates: (8 -Hour Day) in USD $1680/day $1760/day $1984/Day

Weekday (Mon-Fri) | $210.00Mhour $220.00/hour $248.00/hour

Weekday Hours Over 8 | $348.00/hour $366.00/hour $413.00/hour

Saturday, Sunday, and Holidays | $315.00Mour $330.00/hour $372.00/hour

Saturday, Sunday, and Holidays Hours Over 8 | $378.00/hour $396.00/hour $451.00/hour

*advise location and service duration for final FGGS Rates

* Laser alignment services available at the above rates +10%. Additional equipment mobilization charges may apply

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the
time services are requested.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-049
Northern California Power Agency and First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019
Page 19 of 20



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of

First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC

(Company name)
for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-049
Northern California Power Agency and First Global Gear Services, LLC dba FGGS, LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 20 of 20



A PUBLIC AGENCY

A‘THERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: August 19, 2020
COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  August 27, 2020

SUBJECT: Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC — First Amendment to Five Year Multi-Task
General Services Agreement for Water Treatment Related Services; Applicable to the following
projects: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Joel Ledesm / METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department: Combustion Turbines

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members City of Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake [

Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc L[] City of Ukiah [J
San F’a""i;z:ig"‘%’r:;:; O  CityofPaloAlto [  Plumas-SierraREC [J
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [

City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD [

City of Healdsburg [1  City of Santa Clara [] Other [

If other, please specify

SR: 180:20



Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC — First Amendment to 5 Year MTGSA
August 27, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Resolution 20-59 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First
Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Evoqua Water Technologies,
LLC for water treatment related services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, extending the expiration date from September 1, 2020
to November 1, 2020, with no change to the not to exceed amount or other contract terms, for
continued use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or
by SCPPA Members.

BACKGROUND:

Water treatment related services are required from time to time for the operation and
maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by
SCPPA Members.

NCPA entered into a five year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Evoqua Water
Technologies LLC effective September 1, 2015. This agreement is expiring on September 1,
2020. NCPA requested competitive bids specifically for the water treatment services required for
the CT facilities. Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC was the winning bidder. The negotiation
process for the new agreement is taking more time than anticipated. This First Amendment will
extend the expiration date from September 1, 2020 to November 1, 2020 which will allow for
finalizing negotiations. This agreement is still available for use at any facility owned and/or
operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,400,000 over the existing
five year term, through November 1, 2020. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions
of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from as many qualified providers as
possible. Bids are awarded to the vendor providing the best overall value to NCPA. NCPA will
issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the
service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical

environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

SR: 180:20



Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC — First Amendment to 5 Year MTGSA
August 27, 2020
Page 3

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on August 5, 2020, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on August 10, 2020, and was approved.

Respectfully submitted,

Qm,ﬂ( ¢ ¥
RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (3):
e Resolution
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC
e First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Evoqua Water
Technologies, LLC

SR: 180:20



RESOLUTION 20-59

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
WITH EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES, LLC

(reference Staff Report #180:20)

WHEREAS, water treatment related services are required from time to time for the operation and
maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), NCPA
Members, the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members; and

WHEREAS, Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA entered into a five year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Evoqua Water
Technologies LLC effective September 1, 2015; and

WHERAS, This agreement is expiring on September 1, 2020; and

WHEREAS, NCPA requested competitive bids specifically for the water treatment services required for
the CT facilities. Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC was the winning bidder. The negotiation process for the
new agreement is taking more time than anticipated; and

WHEREAS, NCPA now seeks to extend the expiration date from September 1, 2020 to November 1,
2020 to allow additional time for negotiations of a new agreement; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to the Multi-Task General
Services Agreement with Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC, with any non-substantial changes as approved by
the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,400,000, for continued use at all facilities owned and/or
operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote
on roll call;

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



A PUBLIC AGENGY
/ NORTHERN CALIFORN!A POWER AGENCY

FIRST AMENDMENT TO MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES LLC

This First Amendment (“Amendment”) to Multi-Task General Services Agreement is entered into by
and between the Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”) and Evoqua Water Technologies
LLC (“Contractor”) (collectively referred to as “the Parties”) as of , 2020.

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement dated
effective September 1, 2015, (the “Agreement”) for Contractor to provide water treatment services
at the CT Facilities and at any other facilities owned and/or operated by the Agency, by the
Agency’s members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or by SCPPA
Members ; and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to extend the term of the
Agreement from the original expiration date of September 1, 2020 to a new date of November 1,
2020; and

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.2 all changes to the Agreement must be in writing
and signed by all the Parties; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Section 1.1—Term of Agreement is amended and restated to read in full as follows:

The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and shall end when Contractor
completes the Work described in Exhibit A, or no later than November 1, 2020, whichever is
shorter.

2. This Amendment in no way alters the terms and conditions of the Agreement except as
specifically set forth above.

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE

1/

7/

i

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2015-014
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies LLC
Template 6-8-18

Page 1 of 2



Date: Date:

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES LLC

RANDY S. HOWARD, ROD MCNELLY,
General Manager Vice President / GM-GIS
Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2015-014
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies LLC

Template 6-8-18 Page 2 of 2



O Y P S o

MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES LLC

This agreement for general services (“Agreement’) is made by and between the Northemn
California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 Commerce Drive,
Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Evoqua Water Technologies LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company, with an office located at 181 Thorn Hill Road, Warrendale, PA 15086 (“Contractor”) (together
sometimes refemed to as the “Parties”) as of q f i { , 2015 (“Effective Date") in Roseville,
California.

Section1. SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement,
Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of setvices and/or goods described in the Scope of
Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work"). :

11  Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and
shall end upon the later of five (5) years from the (i) Effective Date or (ji) the date this
Agreement was signed by Agency.

1.2  Standard of Performance. Confractor shall perform the Work in the manner and

according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the profession in which

Contractor is engaged and for which Confractor is providing the Work. Contractor
represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to provide the Work set forth
herein.

1.3  Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to perform

the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole and reasonable discretion, at any time
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such personnel,
Contractor shall, promptly upon receiving written notice from Agency of such request,
reassign such personnel.

14  Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to have
Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order.
The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be performed ("Requested Work"),
may include a not-to-exceed cap or monetary cap on Requested Work and all related
expenditures authorized by that Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the
Requested Work shall be completed.

Section 2. COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees fo pay Confractor an amount NOT TO
EXCEED ONE MILLION FOUR HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($1,400,000.00) for the Work, which shall
include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee schedule,
attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency
will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this
Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

Northem Califomia Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies LLC. ,

6/25/12 Contract No. GS-VEN-2015-014
1926708.1 :



21  Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month during the
term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and reimbursable costs
incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

Work performed,;

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;
At Agency'’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time
enfries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the name of the person doing
the work, the hours spent by each person, a brief description of the work, and
each reimbursable expense, with supporting documentation;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under the
Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and subcontractor of
Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable

22  Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices received,
for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred. Agency
shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all of the -
requirements above to pay Contractor.

23  Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all federal, state
and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this Agreement; provided,
however, Agency shall pay all sales and use taxes levied by any properly consfituted
governmental authority upon the Work as invoiced by Contractor.

24  Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform any Work or
incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of a Purchase
Order from the Agency’s Contract Administrator.

25  Timing for Submittal of Final invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days after
completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the Requested Work. In
the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for any amounts due within the
ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed fo have waived its right to collect its final
payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northem Califomia Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. Page 20f 20

6/25/12
1926708.1



Section 3.

Section 4.

4.1

4.2

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at its sole
cost and expense, provide all tools and equipment that may be necessary to perform the Work.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this Agreement,
Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of insurance listed below and
shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for the period covered by this Agreement.

Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall maintain
Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance for any
and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor with limits of not less than one
million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.2.1

422

Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial general
fiability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including products liability,
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, for bodily
injury, death, personal injury and broad form property damage which may arise out
of the operations of Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage
shall be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence” basis covering comprehensive General
Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of ho more than $750,000;
provided, however, that Contractor’s self-insured retention or deductible may
exceed this amount if Contractor provides to Agency at least ninety (80) days'

written notice of the amount of the self-insured retention or deductible amount prior ‘

to the effective date of such amount. No endorsement shall be attached limiting
the coverage. '

Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability insurance

form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement covering any loss or

liability, including the cost of defense of any action, arising from the operation,
maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1), whether or not owned by the
Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per each accident, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no
more than $500,000; provided, however, that Contractor's self-insured retention or
deductible may exceed this amount if Contractor provides to Agency at least
ninety (90) days' written notice of the amount of the self-insured retention or
deductible amount prior to the effective date of such amount. This insurance shall
provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and mobile equipment fo
the extent coverage may be excluded from general liability insurance.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern Califomia Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. Page 3 of 20

6/25/12
1926708.1

g



43
4.4

4.5

4.6

Section 5.
5.1

423 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth above
may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies as long as in
combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Professional Liability Insurance. Intentionally left blank.

All Policies Requirements.

4.4.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this Agreement,
Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of Insurance that
demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance provisions contained herein
and (2) policy endorsements to the policies referenced in Section 4.2, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in regard to
work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

44.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall provide
at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any reduction in scope or
amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to Agency of the policies referenced
in Section 4.

Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer of
Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any loss. Contractor
agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of
subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Contractor, its employees, agents -
and subcontractors.

Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring that all
equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the petformance of Work are operated,
provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensues they are and remain covered by the
policies referenced in Section 4 during this Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that
all workers involved in the provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents
or independent confractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers'
compensation insurance required by applicable faw during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and endorsements
required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from liability under this
indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause
shall apply to any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies
shall have been determined to apply. By execution of this Agreement, Contractor

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

Northem California Power Agency and Evogqua Water Technologies, LLC. Page 4 of 20

6/25/12
1926708.1

er



5.2

Section 6.

6.1

acknowledges and agrees to the provisions of this section and that it is a material element
of consideration.

Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend (with counsel reasonably acceptable to
Agency) and hold Agency harmless from any claim, cause of action or liability incurred by
Agency as a result of third party claims for (i) bodily injury, (i) death or (iij) damage to
tangible property, to the extent any of the foregoing are caused by Contractor’s
negligence. For the avoidance of doubt, claims of an employee of Agency are deemed
third party claims. Contractor shall have the sole authority to direct the defense of and
settle any such indemnified claim, Confractor’s indemnification is conditioned on Agency
providing (i) Contractor, within a commercially reasonable time following its receipt, with
notice of any claim brought to the attention of Agency that Agency knows or reasonably
should know is an indemnifiable claim under this Section 5.2 and (i) reasonable
cooperation in the defense of any claim.

For the avoidance of doubt, this Section 5.2 (Indemnification) shall not affect direct claims
or actions by Agency against Contractor, including but not limited to claims for damage to
Agency property or property at a Project site..

STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an employee
of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only insofar as the results of
Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant to Section 1; otherwise, Agency
shall not have the right to control the means by which Contractor accomplishes Work
rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Nofwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal
policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance fo the contrary, Contractor and any of its
employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not
qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any

compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but not limited -

to eligibility to enroll in the Califomia Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) as an
employee of Agency and entitlement o any contribution to be paid by Agency for employer
contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of any
employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Contractor or its
employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penaities and
interest on such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of Agency.
Contractor and Agency acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by Agency to
Contractor under this Agreement is based upon Contractor’s estimated costs of providing
the Work, including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of
Contractor.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northemn California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. Page 50f 20

6/25/12
1926708.1



R

6.2  Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor shall have no
authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any capacity whatsoever as an
agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this Agreement
to bind Agency fo any obligation whatsoever.

6.3  Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates performance by
Contractor and is based upon a determination of Confractor's unique professional
competence, experience, and specialized professional knowledge. A substantial
inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement was and is the reputation and
competence of Contractor. Confractor may not assign this Agreement or any interest
therein without the prior written approval of the Agency, which such approval shall not-be
unreasonably withheld or delayed. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the ,
Work, other than to the subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval
of the Agency (such approval not to be unreasonably withheld). Where written approval is
granted by the Agency, Contractor shall supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in
performing the Work and shall be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as
if Contractor itself had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to
subcontractors shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement -
with respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all
subcontractors performing any work shall be fully insured in all respects and to the same
extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency's satisfaction.

"6.4  Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the Agency,
Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit C.

Section 7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

71  Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement,
excluding any conflicts of law rules that may require application of the |laws of any other
state or country.

7.2  Compliance with Applicable Laws. Confractor and its subcontractors and agents, if any,
shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the Work hereunder.

7.3  Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents to Agency that Contractor and its
employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will maintain at their sole
expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, permits, qualifications, and
approvals of whatever nature that are legally required of Contractor (or its employees,
agents and subcontractors, as the case may be) to practice their respective professions.

7.4  Work Requiring Payment of Prevailing Wages. If applicable, in accordance with
California Labor Code Section 1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem
wages for work of a similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed,

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern Califomnia Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. - Page 6 of 20

6/25112
1926708.1



Section 8.

8.1

8.2

8.3

84

Section 9.
9.1

and not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem Wages for holiday and overtime
work fixed as provided in the Califomia Labor Code shall be paid to all workers engaged in
performing the Work.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause upon ten
(10) days prior written notice to Contractor. In the event of termination, Contractor shall be
entitled to compensation for Work satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of
termination; Agency, however, may condition payment of such compensation upon

Contractor delivering to Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section

9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the
Parties. '

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of the terms

of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 4, Agency’s
remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

84.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and any
other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement;

843 Retaina différent contractor to complete the Work not finished by Contractor;
and/or

84.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work that is
unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would have paid
Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the Work.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

Records Created as Part of Contractor's Performance. All reports, data, maps,

models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications,

records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that
Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the matters
covered hereunder shall be the property of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees fo

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. Page 7 of 20 .

6/25/12
1926708.1

L



9.2

9.3

9.4

deliver those documents to the Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and
Contractor agree that, unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release
to any non-parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Contractor’s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all records or other
documents evidencing or relafing to charges for Work or expenditures and disbursements
charged to the Agency under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3) years from the
date of final payment to Contractor under the Agreement or for any longer period required
by law.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this Agreement
requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit, and/or
copying at any fime during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of the
Agency. Under California Govemnment Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds
expended under this Agreement exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the
request of Agency or as part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after
final payment under the Agreement. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, Contractor
shall not be required to divulge information of a proprietary nature.

Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.41 Confidential Information. The term “Confidential Information®, as used herein,
shall mean any and all confidential or proprietary information, whether written,
recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, where such Confidential Information is
made available in a tangible medium of expression and marked in a prominent
location as confidential or proprietary. Confidential Information shall not include
information that: (a) was already known fo the Receiving Party (as such term is
defined in Section 9.4.2) or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was
disclosed to Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without reverse
engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was not marked as
Confidential Information in accordance with this Section 9.4.1.

94.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this Agreement,
either Party may disclose ("the Disclosing Party”) Confidential Information fo the
other Party ("the Receiving Party"). The Receiving Party: (a) shall hold the
Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in confidence; and (b) shall take all
reasonable steps to prevent any unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer
or disclosure of such Confidential Information.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern Califomia Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. Page 8 0f 20 -

6/25112
1926708.1

G.E



Section 10.
10.1

10.2

9.4.3

9.44

Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following disclosures of
Confidential Information are allowed. 'Receiving Party shall endeavor to provide
prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any permitted disclosure made pursuant
to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. Disclosing Party may seek a profective order,
including without limitation, a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest
such permitted disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek
such remedies at its sole expense. Neither Party shall have any liability for such
permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or other

representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know in connection |

with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, govemment or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the Califomnia

Public Records Act.

Handling of Confidential Information. Conclusion of Agreement. Receiving
Party shall retumn to Disclosing Party, or destroy, Confidential Information
(including all copies thereof) upon termination of this Agreement, if requested by
Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Receiving Party
may retain copies of such Confidential Information, subject to the confidentiality
provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival purposes in its computer system; (b)
in its legal department files; and (c) in files of Receiving Party's representafives

where such copies are necessary to comply with applicable law. Receiving Party ‘

shall not disclose the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information to any person
other than those of the Receiving Party’s employees, agents, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this Agreement.

PROJECT SITE.

Project Site Locations. The Project site at which Contractor may perform Work under

this Agreement shall include any facilities owned and/or operated by the Agency, by the

Agency's members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (:"SCPPA"), or by
SCPPA members.

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant areas, all -

buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is fo be performed, including any access
roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner as to cause a minimum of
interference with Agency's operations and the operations of other contractors at the
Project site and take reasonable precautions to protect all persons and property thereon

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. Page 8 of 20

6/25/12
1926708.1°

GF .



103

10.4

Section 11.

111

11.2

from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work at a Project site, Contractor shall
leave such Project site in broom-clean condition and free of all tools, equipment, waste
materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to Contractor's Work.

Contractor’s Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be solely
responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of any equipment,
tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work, whether owned, leased or
rented. Excluding any willful vandalism or damage caused by Agency or its contractors,
Agency will not be responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may

be lost, stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Equipment, tools, -
supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without permission, is at
Contractor's sole risk. Agency may assume that anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed has been abandoned. Any
transportation furnished by Agency shall be solely as an accommodation and Agency shall
have no liability therefor. Excluding any willful vandalism or damage caused by Agency or
its contractors, Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned,
non-owned and hired automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any
equipment, tools, supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on

the Project site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be
sufficient for performance of the Work.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely responsible for
its use of any equipment and property owned and/or provided by Agency, its members,
SCAPA, or its members for the performance of Work.

WARRANTY.

Nature of Work. Confractor warrants to Agency that the Work shall be carried out in a
timely and workmanlike manner, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in accordance
with Prudent Industry Practices. Agency’s warranty from Confractor is ninety (90) days
from the date the Work is provided. The term “Prudent Industry Practices,” as used in this
Agreement, means those methods, techniques, standards and practices which, at the time
they are employed and in light of the circumstances known or believed to exist at the time,
are deemed as reasonably prudent in the industrial water treatment industry as practiced

in the United States with respect fo the services which are the subject of this Agreement.

Deficiencies in Work. In the event of Confractor’s failure to perform any Work in
accordance with the standards required by Section 11.1 of this Agreement, then upon the
earlier of (i) Contractor’s discovery of such failure or (i) Agency's written notice to '
Contractor of such failure, Contractor shall be obligated, at its expense and as Agency's
sole remedy, to either repair or replace the Work at Contractor’s sole option, as long as

any repaired or replacement Work meets the design specifications of the original Work. If
Contractor determines that any warranty claim is not, in fact, covered by this warranty,

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. Page 10 of 20

6/25/12
1926708.1

GF.



1.3

Section 12.

Agency shall pay Contractor its then customary charges for any additionally required work.
Contractor's warranty is conditioned on Agency's (a) operating and maintaining any
equipment associated with the Work in accordance with Contractor's written instructions,
(b) not making any unauthorized repairs or alterations in Contractor’s equipment which
affect the Work and (c) not being in default of any payment obligation o Contractor.
Contractor's warranty does not cover damage caused by Agency’s negligent operation of
any equipment associated with the Work, chemical action or abrasive material or misuse
which has damaged the equipment associated with the Work (unless caused by
Contractor), or improper instaliation (unless installed by Contractor).

Exclusive Warranty. NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY, THE
WARRANTIES SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION ARE CONTRACTOR'S SOLE AND
EXCLUSIVE WARRANTIES, AND CONTRACTOR MAKES NO OTHER WARRANTIES
OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY
WARRANTY OF PERFORMANCE, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR PURPOSE
OR WARRANTIES ARISING BY CUSTOM OR TRADE USAGE.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain, and

enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program intended to ensure
safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall include all requisite components of

such a program under Federal, State and local regulations and shall comply with all Agency site programs.

121

12.2

123

124

Contractor is responsible for performing job hazard assessments as necessary to safely
perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety fraining and
personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may be
encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified training
records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for proper maintenance
and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and material handling equipment.

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware of and
will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance of the
Contractor performing the Work. Contractor and its subcontractors shall be required to
comply with the written safety and health obligations as established in the Agreement. .
Non-compliance with such safety, health, or fire requirements may result in cessation of
Work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. It is also expressly
acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be due from Agency fo
Contractor under this Agreement at any time when or for any work performed when
Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section 12.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between '
Northern Califomia Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. Page 11 0f 20

6/25/12
1626708.1

G.F



12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

129

Section 13

13.1

13.2

13.3

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety representative.
Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the Agency site safety
representative copies of all written accident reports, and coordinate with Agency if further
investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions fo protect the health of its
employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall determine
the need for, and conduct, occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine
levels of exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental
conditions. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site safety
representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous wastes, if
any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee, who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be subject to
actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the Agency a

Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for spill containment and ‘

clean-up, emergency contact information including regulatory agencies and spill sampling
and analysis procedures. Hazardous Materials to include diesel fuel used for trucks
owned or leased by the Contractor.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action for
declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this Agreement, the prevailing
party shall be entitled fo reasonable attorneys' fees in addition to any other relief to which
that party may be entitled. The court may set such fees in the same action orin a
separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this
Agreement, the Parties agree that frial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the United States District Court for
the Eastem District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this

_Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so

adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in whole or in part of any
provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this
Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. Page 12 0f 20

6/25/12
1926708.1



134

13.5

13.6

13.7

13.8

13.9

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of this
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term
of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of
and shalf apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work
performed pursuant o this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any
financial interest in this Agreement that would violate California Govemment Code
Sections 1090 et seq.

Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer, Assistant |

General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency’s representative. All
correspondence shall be directed to or through the representative.

Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

Evoqua Water Technologies LLC
Attention: Branch Manager
1440 Venture Lane

Turlock, CA 95380

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Michael F. Dean

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
Meyers Nave

555 Capitol Mall, Suite 1200
Sacramento, CA 95814

Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the first page of

a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page of consfruction

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northem California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. Page 13 of 20

6125112
1026708.1

G.F-



13.10

13.11

drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional responsible for
the report/design preparation.

Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including Exhibits A through C attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and Contractor
and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or
oral, with respect to the subject matter hereof. Exhibits A through C attached hereto are
incorporated by reference herein.

Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that cannot be
settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and Contractor agree to resolve
the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive level
representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, to
resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement by
negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, the Parties
shall refer any remaining disputes to non-binding mediation to expedite
the resolution of the dispute.

13.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen (15)
days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as mediator, shall be
commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be concluded within fifteen
(15) days from the commencement of the mediation.

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process. For clarity, each Party shall be
responsible for costs and expenses of its personal attorneys, witnesses
and specialists.

13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition to this
Agreement and must be exhausted prior to either Party initiating legal
action. This alternative dispute resolufion process is not intended to nor
shall be construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action
specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq.

13.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement

and the Exhibits hereto, the Agreement shall control.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern Califomia Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. Page 14 of 20

6/25112
1926708.1

C.F.



13.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which '

shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement.

13.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent opportunity to
participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with legal counsel. Therefors,
the usual construction of an agreement against the drafting party shall not apply hereto.

13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the
Parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.

Section14  LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING ELSE TO THE
CONTRARY, AND EVEN IF ANY REMEDIES PROVIDED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT FAIL OF THEIR
ESSENTIAL PURPOSE, NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, LIQUIDATED, PUNITIVE OR OTHER INDIRECT DAMAGES, EXCEPT THAT
CONTRACTOR MAY BE LIABLE FOR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES TO THE EXTENT CAUSED BY
CONTRACTOR'S GROSS NEGLIGENCE. CONTRACTOR'S TOTAL LIABILITY ARISING AT ANY TIME
IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT SHALL IN ANY EVENT BE LIMITED TO THE TOTAL '
COMPENSATION PROVIDED IN SECTION 2, OR THE AMOUNT AND TYPES OF INSURANCE
REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 4 OF THIS AGREEMENT, WHICHEVER IS GREATER. THE
LIMITATIONS PROVIDED IN THIS SECTION APPLY WHETHER THE LIABILITY IS BASED ON
CONTRACT, TORT, STRICT LIABILITY OR ANY OTHER THEORY.

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. Page 150f 20

6/25/12
1926708.1

G.F,



The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES LLC
Date 67’/1 /'5 Date /"Uﬁ (1, Z215
AT0H
QM S [ Ld Meiidy /
RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager Red }e.Nelly , \ice President /6M ~ o
Authorized Signatory .

Attest: %
istant Shdetary of o8

Approved as fo Form:

Assistant General Counsel

2386170.11

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. Page 160f20
6/25/12
1926708.1



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

Evoqua Water Technologies LLC (“Contractor”) shall provide condensate polisher resin regeneration, Di
mixed bed vessel rental & regeneration, RO & UF membrane cleaning, and other water treatment support
services as requested by the Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”).

Services fo include, but not be limited to the following:

1. SemiceCalis - ProvdeNormal {aithin 7 © 10 days} and Emengency Service failtin 48 hours} calls at e
bileble.rates estabiished in EXhlit B

2 Lodi Enesgy Cerder, 12745 N. Thomion Road, Lodi, CA 95242
a Provide condensaie polsher vesin regenerafion senites per e speciicalion below. The resin s

o be regenerated in ihe hydregen cycle.
i Condensals polisher foed water cheracteriiics:
Parameter Feed watar Uit
Sodium <3 ugfl |
Chioride <3 ugfl |
Sulfaze <3 ugll |
Phosphate <3 gl |
SHica <18 ugfl |
Specdific Conductivity <80
Ammonia f2s NH3) <5 mgfl |
Totzl Organic Carbon <368 ugfl
Temperature Range, normal FOIRD 'F
Temperature - pesk during
bymass 150 Tor 3060 min E
Tol lron <f2 mgfL
§. Trasted Waier Specificafion
Parameser Feed water Uit
Sodi <1 _ugfl |
Chioride <1 ugil |
Suifeqe <t g |
Phosphate <t ugill
Sifica <5 et |
Spedfic Condudtivity <@l uSfom
Temperature Range, notns2i ] F
Temparature - peak during
bypass 150 fizr 30-50 min F
. Provide &80 cfresin tranaport vessal as part of e serdtes.
Multi-Task General Services Agreement between .
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. Page 17 of 20
6/25/12 :
1926708.1

G ..



3. Lodi C¥2{STIG), 12745 N. Thornion Road, Lok, CAS5342
a Provide Rental of @ - 60cf Di wassels flour in Serics and four Insianiy) perthe following
specification: > %0 Meg Otwnicm resialitly & < 2D ppi Slica.

& [odi CT1, 2131 W. Turner Road, Ledi, C2 35240

a Proside Rental of B Mied Bed Bottles, Quenilty of 12, 3.5 f each per e following specification:
> 10 Meg Ohmicm resisiity §.< 20 ppb SHica.

b Provide Exchangs of DR Mired Bed Bolties. Inciucis taibar for service techmitian in gerform
Exchangs (including transporizion.

5 Alameda CT, 2800 Maln: Streef, Mameda, CA S4501

8. Provide Rental of B Mixed Bed Botties, Quaniy of 15, 3.5 of each per ¥ie following speciication:
> 10 Meg Ohmicm resisiivity & < 20 ppb Slica.
b Provide Exchange of Di Mixed Bed Boties. include talior for service fechnikian 1o parfomm
Exchange finciuding transpostation].
| 6. Additional Support Services:

a. OffSite Cleaning of RO membrancs
b CF Site Cleaning of UF membranss.
C. Labor to remove and install UF RO (nckede ransportation]

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northem California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LL.C.

6/25/12
1926708,

Page 18 of 20

G.F.



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES
Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set forth in

Section 2 of this Agreement. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated amount
of expenses is as follows:

IFEM #1:
»  Standard service labor $95 homr
. mmmwmmmmmmwedutmm.smsm
TEEM #2-
» Re@nuamd&mmu@adﬁm): $30.00*
* Reoial Fee off Transpost Vessel: $ 100.00 ! monihh
» Freight — Iobound: ! Ouibooad: $ 0 —inclpded in gegen foe
*Crstomer resin requires semplfng analysis by Evogua for approval fato facility
fo verify contaminants an the restn. coadlion of resins, sepambility, and degree of cross-
contaminantion of cation aad anion; resin volzme responsibility of Customer
TEEM #3:
¢ Rental fee of 4 x 60 cf DI vessel: $1.150 per srogihs
e Regeneration of each 60 of vessel: ) $ 990 each, delivered
OPTIONS:
Increase to § = 60 cf vessel, alloming for 4 stendbye add $1,130 ¢ moafh
Decrease size to 4 x 42 of DI Vessel (RECOMMENDED) $ 480 per month
Regeneraticn of each: 43 cf vessel: $ 680 each, delivered
TEEM #4: Alameda Peaker
¢ Renfal feeof 16x 3.6 cfveszels . $300 per mouth
o Exchangs Fee per 3.6 of vassel $62 each
* Exchance Service fee, fiat mie delivered o sile $ 55 per event
TEEM £5: Lodi Peaker
¢ PRenial frecf 16x 3.6 cfvensels $300 per month
¢ Exchamge Fee per 3.6 of wemsel §$62 each
e Exchange Service fae, fiat mie delivered to sifer $ 35 per event
ADDITIONAL SUPPORT SERVICES:

e Labor: See ITERS £1

o Offsite Cleaning of BO membranes { inclndes znppost labor toremove and fostall NCPA spare
membrane sef) $90 per elament (36 memiranes typical frone RO). We'll havk io cleaniag skidlom
our trocks at no charge. and reinon boxed! and hagzed for sterage for next cyelz of vse.

» Offaite Clegniog of TF membranes { incindes smpport Eabor to remove 2ud fnstall NCPA spare
memibrane set) $00 per ebzmer {72 memitvanes typicall for one UF). We'll hanl to cleaning skid on
our trecks at oo dhacge and relnon boxed! and bagged for stoarage for next cyele of nse.

o UV Bulbe, shouid be replaced every 8000 hoars 657 254am Aqufioe 3098 wi 24 bulbs
total ... $685T exh

* UV Quartz slezves shoold be replared every 24000 howes.  60™ Agpafine 3198 w24
sleevss...... STLES each:

+ Carvidse Filters 21 sovad swdl 307 lonz by houstog = 84 per change. ... micron Poly sprm.

. cantridges with gashet. part £ PCROFIMS. .o oo e § 498 por element, cases of 12

+* Miscallaneons Pars, If requested, mom standerd ftennse  Caet plus 1395,

Rates for work to be performed at NCPA Member/SCPPA locations will be proposed at the time

work is needed.
“NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related costs in

excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern Califomia Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. Page 19 of 20

6/25112
1826708.1

GF.



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

Reod MC-—/V‘B//); , Viee Prec'dent /GM -GS
(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title) |
do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity

and employment history of all employees of
El/o‘g va Water ﬁcAn 6 /f/qﬁe.__g LiC

(Company name)

for contract work at
LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the

above-named project. M 7% /l/ a% //VIDIJ

(Signatute of officer or agent)

A
Dated this /9 day of 4:/67‘-4’6 20! 5

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT
SECURITY PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE
FOR REVIEW BY THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE
PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Evogua Water Technologies, LLC. Page 20 of 20

6/25/12
1926708.1

=



Linda Stone :

From: Fortier, Guy M <guy.fortier@evoqua.com>
Sent: Wednesday, August 19, 2015 8:28 AM

To: Fortier, Guy M

Subject: FW: NCPA - Evoqua Service Agreement

Delegation record for file.

Guy Fortier
Lead Contract Manager
Evoqua Water Technologies LLC

Phone (847) 805-1146; Fax {(847) 805-1140; Cell (847) 682-9343
guy.fortier@evogua.com

Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2015 7:42 PM

To: Fortier, Guy M <guy.fortier@evoqua.com>

Cc: Hunsaker, Mark D <mark.hunsaker@evoqua.com>
Subject: RE: NCPA - Evoqua Service Agreement

Delegated to Mark for signature and approval.
Thanks

Rod

Sent via the Samsung Galaxy S® Il mini, an AT&T 4G LTE smartphone

-------- Original message --------

From: "Fortier, Guy M"

Date:08/18/2015 8:35 PM (GMT-05:00)

To: "McNelly, Rodney"

Cc: "Hunsaker, Mark D"

Subject: RE: NCPA - Evoqua Service Agreement

Rod,

Please see the below email as a reference for your convenience. This is the contract | mentioned to you on your way out
the door last week.

The originals have arrived and are as agreed.
Please delegate to Mark to sign on your behalf.

Thx,
Guy Fortier



Lead Contract Manager
Evoqua Water Technologies LLC
Phone (847) 805-1146; Fax (847) 805-1140; Cell {847) 682-9343

guy.fortier@evogua.com
From: McNelly, Rodney

Sent: Monday, August 03, 2015 9:46 AM

To: Fortier, Guy M <guy.fortier@evogua.com>

Cc: McNelly, Rodney <Rodney.McNelly@evogua.com>

Subject: RE: Evoqua Service Agreement

Thank you guy for the work here. Please consider this approval for proceeding per your request.

Rod McNelly

VP/GM General Industry Solutions
1501 Woodfield Road, Suite 2005
Schaumburg, IL 60173

3 SVOQUA

Office — 847-805-1150
Cell —317-908-6493

Rodney.mcnelly@evogua.com



Linda Stone I —

From: Fortier, Guy M <guy.fortier@evoqua.com>
Sent: Wednesday, August 19, 2015 8:40 AM

To: Linda Stone

Subject: RE: Multi-Task Agreement - Evoqua
Attachments: FW: NCPA - Evoqua Service Agreement

Hi Linda,

Our policy allows for delegation by internal email. The delegation for this one was part of an internal email chain, so I've
taken the last three exchanges from that chain (sufficient enough to document the delegation) and have attached in order
to provide to you for purposes of your documentation.

Regards,
Guy Fortier
Lead Contract Manager

Evoqua Water Technologies LLC
Phone {847) 805-1146; Fax (847) 805-1140; Cell (847) 682-9343

guy.fortier@evogua.com
From: Linda Stone [maiito:Linda.Stone@ncpa.com]
Sent: Wednesday, August 19, 2015 10:18 AM

To: Fortier, Guy M <guy.fortier@evoqua.com>
Subject: RE: Multi-Task Agreement - Evoqua

Hi,

Thank you for the email. I'm curious if you have any written email or other delegation document to show that your
signer has the authority to sign for your VP. If so it would be great if | could get a copy of that to attach with the *
agreement itself.

if not and it is your policy to so delegate, then I'm sure it is fine pursuant to your internal signature authority.

Thank you.
Linda
From: Fortier, Guy M [mailto:guy.fortier@evoqua.com]

Sent: Wednesday, August 19, 2015 8:04 AM
To: Linda Stone; Melissa Philpot

Cc: Malone, William D; Travis, Lloyd J
Subject: Muiti-Task Agreement - Evoqua

Linda / Melissa:

FY1 - here's a scanned copy of one of the two originals, both of which are going out in today's mail for 2-day delivery to
Linda’s attention,

In follow up to our recent correspondence and just as a reminder; our VP is out of the office this week, so | obtained his
delegation to one of his reports (who also sits in my office location). Since the originals came to us with the title of Vice
President already in place, | had our delegate sign the VP’s name and initial thereaifter with his own initials.

1



Best Regards,
Guy Fortier
Lead Contract Manager

Evoqua Water Technologies LLC
1501 E. Woodfield Rd.

Suite 200 South

Schaumburg, [L 60173

Phone (847) 805-1146; Fax (847) 805-1140; Cell (847) 682-9343

guy.fortier@evoqua.com

Confidentiality Note: This e-mail message and any attachments to it are intended onty for the named recipients and may contain legally privileged and/or
confidential information. If you are not one of the intended recipients, please do not duplicate or forward this e-mail message and immediately delete it from your

computer. ;

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally
privileged information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review,
use or disclosure is prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications
Privacy Act. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the °

communication.



4 PUBLIC ASENCY

NCPA

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

August 17, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

SUBJECT: Approval of CY 2021 Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Capacity Pool

Rates

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

August 27, 2020

//'\ —
FROM: Tony Zimmer / /"/

AGM, Power Management N/A
Division: Power Management

Department: Power Management

If other, please describe:

METHOD OF SELECTION:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

City of Biggs
City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

O

XK KR 0O X

X

City of Lodi

X

X

City of Lompoc

City of Palo Alto

X

City of Redding

City of Roseville

o O 0O

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

]

X X

X

o O

SR: 183:20



CY 2021 NCPA Capacity Pool Rates
August 27, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

NCPA staff recommends that the Commission approve and adopt the Local Area, System, and
Flexible Resource Adequacy capacity rates proposed herein for use in the NCPA Capacity Pool,
as further described in Pooling Schedule 4, during the 2021 Resource Adequacy compliance
year.

BACKGROUND:

The NCPA Capacity Pool was developed and incorporated into the Second Amended and
Restated Pooling Agreement to provide a mechanism for Pool Members' to voluntarily transact
Local Area, System, and Flexible Resource Adequacy capacity in an efficient manner through
the NCPA All Resources Bill. In accordance with Pooling Schedule 4, Section 3.8, an ad hoc
group of Pool Members is to be organized to develop and propose Local Area, System, and
Flexible Resource Adequacy capacity rates to the Commission for approval, and pending such
approval, the rates adopted will be used to price Local Area, System, and Flexible Resource
Adequacy capacity transactions executed in the NCPA Capacity Pool.

DISCUSSION:

An ad hoc group of Pool Members was organized to develop Local Area, System, and Flexible
Resource Adequacy capacity rates to be used in the NCPA Capacity Pool during the 2021
Resource Adequacy compliance year?. The ad hoc group of Pool Members used a combination
of formal and informal market price surveys to develop a negotiated rate for Local Area, System
and Flexible Resource Adequacy capacity to be used within the NCPA Capacity Pool. NCPA, on
behalf of the Pool Members, is seeking Commission approval of the proposed Local Area,
System, and Flexible Resource capacity rates for use in the NCPA Capacity Pool during the
2021 Resource Adequacy compliance year.

CAPACITY RATES:

The following Local Area, System, and Flexible Resource Adequacy capacity rates have been
developed for use in the NCPA Capacity Pool during the 2021 Resource Adequacy compliance
year:

e Local Area Capacity Rate:
o $6.00/kW-Month (May 2021 — September 2021)
o $5.50 / kW-Month (January 2021 — April 2021 and October 2021 — December
2021)
e System Capacity Rate:
o $5.50 / kW-Month (May 2021 — September 2021)
o $5.00 / kW-Month (January 2021 — April 2021 and October 2021 — December
2021)

T NCPA Pool Members include cities Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Healdsburg, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, and
Ukiah, and Plumas-Sierra Rural Electric Cooperative, and the Port of Oakland.

2 The 2021 Resource Adequacy compliance year is coincident with the 2021 calendar year, but includes
data submittals and demonstrations that will be filed with the CAISO in 2020.

SR: 183:20



CY 2021 NCPA Capacity Pool Rates
August 27, 2020
Page 3

¢ Flexible Capacity Rate:
o $0.50 / kW-Month (January 2021 — December 2021)

FISCAL IMPACT:

Work associated with developing the NCPA Capacity Pool Local Area, System, and Flexible
Resource Adequacy capacity rates was undertaken pursuant to approved Power Management
budget categories, and costs associated with this effort are allocated in accordance with
approved cost allocation methodologies as described in the NCPA annual budget.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation presented herein was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on August 5,

2020, and was recommended for Commission approval.

Respectfully submitted,

WJ\& l‘!(”“'\

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachment: Resolution 20-60

SR: 183:20



RESOLUTION 20-60

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
CY 2021 NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY CAPACITY POOL RATES

(reference Staff Report #183:20)

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Capacity Pool was developed and
incorporated into the Second Amended and Restated Pooling Agreement to provide a mechanism for Pool
Members' to voluntarily transact Local Area, System, and Flexible Resource Adequacy capacity in an efficient
manner through the NCPA All Resources Bill; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Pooling Schedule 4, Section 3.8, an ad hoc group of Pool Members is
to be organized to develop and propose Local Area, System, and Flexible Resource Adequacy capacity rates
to the Commission for approval, and pending such approval, the rates adopted will be used to price Local
Area, System, and Flexible Resource Adequacy capacity transactions executed in the NCPA Capacity Pool;
and

WHEREAS, an ad hoc group of Pool Members was organized to develop Local Area, System, and
Flexible Resource Adequacy capacity rates to be used in the NCPA Capacity Pool during the 2021 Resource
Adequacy compliance year?; and

WHEREAS, the ad hoc group of Pool Members used a combination of formal and informal market price
surveys to develop a negotiated rate for Local Area, System, and Flexible Resource Adequacy capacity to be
used within the NCPA Capacity Pool, and NCPA, on behalf of the Pool Members, is seeking Commission
approval of the proposed Local Area, System, and Flexible Resource capacity rates for use in the NCPA
Capacity Pool during the 2021 Resource Adequacy compliance year; and

WHEREAS, the following Local Area, System, and Flexible Resource Adequacy capacity rates have
been developed for use in the NCPA Capacity Pool during the 2021 Resource Adequacy compliance year:

e Local Area Capacity Rate:

o $6.00 / kW-Month (May 2021 — September 2021)

o $5.50 / kW-Month (January 2021 — April 2021 and October 2021 — December 2021)
e System Capacity Rate:

o $5.50 / kW-Month (May 2021 — September 2021)

o $5.00 / kW-Month (January 2021 — April 2021 and October 2021 — December 2021)
e Flexible Capacity Rate:

o $0.50 / kW-Month (January 2021- December 2021)

WHEREAS, work associated with developing the NCPA Capacity Pool Local Area, System, and
Flexible Resource Adequacy capacity rates was undertaken pursuant to approved Power Management budget
categories, and costs associated with this effort are allocated in accordance with approved cost allocation
methodologies as described in the NCPA annual budget; and

' NCPA Pool Members include cities Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Healdsburg, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, and Ukiah, and
Plumas-Sierra Rural Electric Cooperative, and the Port of Oakland.

2 The 2021 Resource Adequacy compliance year is coincident with the 2021 calendar year, but includes data submittals
and demonstrations that will be filed with the CAISO in 2020.



WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power
Agency approve and adopt the Local Area, System, and Flexible Resource Adequacy capacity rates proposed
herein for use in the NCPA Capacity Pool, as further described in Pooling Schedule 4, during the 2021
Resource Adequacy compliance year.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the foliowing vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY

NCPA Resolution 20-60 -2-



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

August 19, 2020
COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  August 27, 2020

SUBJECT: Use of Excess 2009A Geothermal Debt Reserve Fund to Cover Any FY2020
Geothermal Settlement Shortfall

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

P
FROM: Monty Hanks( \ \V* METHOD OF SELECTION:
Assistant General
Manager/CFO NA
Division: Administrative Services

Department. Accounting & Finance

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members [J City of Lodi City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power City of Lompoc City of Ukiah
San F’a“"i;‘;:i'za%’r:::; 0 Cityof PaloAlto [®  Plumas-Sierra REC
City of Biggs City of Redding [J Port of Oakland [
City of Gridley X City of Roseville Truckee Donner PUD [
City of Healdsburg City of Santa Clara X Other

If other, please specify Turlock

SR: 188:20



Use of Geothermal Bond Reserve Funds for FY20 Annual Settlements
August 19, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff is recommending the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Commission approve
Resolution 20-61 authorizing staff to use available excess 2009A Geothermal debt reserve fund
monies to cover any FY2020 annual settlement shortfall related to the Geothermal project.

BACKGROUND:

When the 2009A Geothermal bonds were issued, $3.5 million of the proceeds were deposited
into a Debt Service Reserve Fund. This amount is generally calculated as the equivalent of
“maximum annual debt service” which provides the bondholders additional security and the
intent is to use these funds for the final year of debt service payments. In 2016, staff refunded a
portion of the 2009A bonds and then with the eventual final 2009A bond payment in FY2020,
the funds in this debt service reserve were released to operations.

During FY2020, the Geothermal project was met with unexpected events and unplanned
expenses due to the Kincade fire, installation of the shoo-fly jumper, intertie, and increased
vegetation management. Staff provided many updates throughout the year and were given )
Commission authority to use approximately $450k of these excess debt service reserve funds.
Now that the fiscal year has concluded, the Geothermal project is estimated to have a shortfall
of approximately $2 million. Staff is recommending using the remaining excess debt service
reserve funds as part of the annual settlements process to avoid the project participants from
covering any shortfall related to the Geothermal project. After final settlements, any remaining
funds would then be refunded.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The recommended action should be sufficient to cover the estimated FY2020 shortfall and
therefore will not have a fiscal impact to the project participants. Once the final settlements are
completed, any remaining funds will then be refunded through NCPA'’s annual settlement
process.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Finance Committee and was recommended for
Commission approval.

spectfully submitted,

S -

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments:
- Resolution 20-61

SR: 188:20



RESOLUTION 20-61

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AUTHORIZING THE USE OF AVAILABLE EXCESS 2009A GEOTHERMAL
DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUNDS IN THE FY2020 GEOTHERMAL
SETTLEMENT SHORTFALL

(reference Staff Report #188:20)

WHEREAS, when the 2009A Geothermal bonds were issued, $3.5 million of the
proceeds were deposited into a Debt Service Reserve Fund; and

WHEREAS, the intent is to use these funds for the final year of debt service payments
but In 2016, a portion of the 2009A bonds were refunded and then with the eventual final
2009A bond payment in FY2020, the funds in this debt service reserve were released to
operations; and

WHEREAS, during the fiscal 2020 year, the Geothermal project was met with
unexpected events and unplanned expenses due to the Kincade fire, installation of the shoo-
fly jumper, intertie, and increased vegetation management; and

WHEREAS, the Geothermal project is estimated to have a FY2020 shortfall of
approximately $2 million; and

WHEREAS, the remaining excess debt service reserve funds will be used as part of
the annual settlements process to avoid the project participants from covering any shortfall
related to the Geothermal project; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect
change in the physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section
21065 the California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern
California Power Agency authorizes to use the available excess 2009A Geothermal debt
reserve fund monies to cover any FY2020 annual settlement shortfall related to the
Geothermal project. Once the final settlements are completed, any remaining funds will then
be refunded through NCPA'’s annual settlement process.



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020, by
the following vote on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY

NCPA Resolution 20-61 -2-



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: August 19, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

SUBJECT: NCPA Hydroelectric Wildfire Mitigation Project Request for Additional Funds;

August 27, 2020

Applicable to the following projects: NCPA Hydroelectric Facility

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

Assistant Ge

Department. Hydroelectric

Division: Generation Services

FROM: Joel Ledesm:?' METHOD OF SELECTION:
eral Manager

Competitive Pricing Process

If other, please describe:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

City of Biggs
City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

O

X

X O 0O 0O

Cityof Lodi [X City of Shasta Lake

City of Lompoc City of Ukiah
City of Palo Alto X Plumas-Sierra REC
City of Redding [ Port of Oakland
City of Roseville X Truckee Donner PUD
City of Santa Clara X Other

If other, please specify

X O

X

O 0O 0O

SR: 181:20




NCPA Hydroelectric 230KV Wildfire Mitigation Project Request for Additional Funds
August 27, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Amendment to Resolution 20-18 authorizing additional funds for the NCPA
Hydroelectric Wildfire Mitigation Project, increasing the total not to exceed amount of this
project from $3,000,000 to $3,250,000, delegating authority to the General Manager or his
designee to award bids, execute agreements, and to issue purchase orders for the updated
project amount, authorizing use of up to $250,000 from the Hydroelectric Maintenance Reserve
Fund, and acknowiedging that the Hydro Maintenance Reserve Fund will need to be replenished
in future budget years.

BACKGROUND:

Design and construction of the first circuit of the Collierville-Bellota 230 kV line was completed in
1988. The second circuit was added around 1991. Both circuits utilized first-generation EPDM
polymer insulators. When the Collierville-Bellota 230 kV was put into service, manufacturers did
not typically recommend corona rings on 230 KV lines, as this was a practice normally reserved
for extra high voltage (345 kV and above). Since then, operational experience, EPRI testing, and
advanced product research laboratory testing has indicated a need for corona rings at the line
end of 230 kV polymer insulators.

In September 2019, NCPA contracted with Power Engineers to prepare a Wildfire Risk Mitigation
Report and Recommendations. Part of the Collierville-Bellota 230 kV line crosses through
CalFire Tier Il Fire Hazard Severity Zone. In consideration of the age of the insulators, observed
failures, and changing design standards, Power Engineers recommended that the approximately -
30 year old EPDM polymer-type insulators be replaced with new silicon polymer insulators with
corona rings, along with other hardware modifications.

The Hydroelectric Wildfire Mitigation Project was approved by the NCPA Commission on
February 20, 2020 (SR: 127:20; Reso: 20:18), with a budget of not to exceed $3,000,000.

After competitive bidding, a contract was awarded to Wilson Construction for $2,654,877.39 and
construction started in July 2020. Subsequent on-tower observations and design engineer
recommendations resulted in NCPA increasing the scope of work and issuing several
corresponding change orders. As of July 28, 2020, a total of $2,948,294.52 has been committed
for the project, leaving authorized funds of $51,705.48 as remaining contingency.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The NCPA Hydroelectric Wildfire Mitigation Project was originally approved by Resolution 20:18
with a budget not-to-exceed $3,000,000, with funds coming from existing Hydroelectric Capital
Development Reserve collections. The NCPA Commission acknowledged that additional Capital
Development Reserve collections would be proposed in future Hydro Project budgets to refund
the Capital Development Reserve account (as needed) for the upcoming McKays Sediment
Removal project.

SR: 181:20



NCPA Hydroelectric 230KV Wildfire Mitigation Project Request for Additional Funds
August 27, 2020
Page 3

To-date, the following amounts have been committed for the Project:

Scope
Base Contract Insulator & Damper Replacement $ 2,654,877.39
CCO#1 OHGW Bonding Assembly Replacement $ 29,480.04
CCO#2 Jumper Replacements & Detailed Inspection Reports $  141,160.00
CCO #3 Tower 50A Weights $ 28,159.33
CCO#4 Guy Tightening & Rub Post Replacements 3 94.617.76
Total (as of 8/5/20) $2,948,294.52
Remaining Contingency: $ 51,705.48

No other issues have been identified, and there are no additional forecasted costs at this time;
however, the contractor has not yet had line workers on each structure, so unknown issues could
be discovered before construction concludes. In consideration of the criticality of the project, the
potential severity of the impending fire season, and the accelerated construction schedule, staff
is recommending authorizing the use of up to $250,000 from the Hydro Maintenance Reserve
Fund if needed.

SELECTION PROCESS:

On February 4, 2020, NCPA released a Notice Inviting Bids for the Collierville-Bellota 230KV
Insulator Replacement Project (Wildfire Mitigation Project). Seven (7) potential bidders
expressed interest and attended the mandatory pre-bid meeting and site visit. On March 4,
2020, NCPA received six (6) bids:

$ 2,654,877.39 Wilson Construction
$ 2,895,168.00 Summitline

$ 3,257,869.00 Rokstadpower

$ 3,394,252.00 Michels Pacific

$ 3,947,330.00 Sturgeon

$ 5,306,062.00 ILB

Declined to Bid Par

Wilson Construction was determined to be the lowest responsive, responsible bidder and was
awarded the project.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

CEQA Guidelines section 15301 states that a project is categorically exempt from CEQA review
when the project “consists of the operation, repair, maintenance ... or minor alteration of existing
public or private structures, facilities, mechanical equipment, or topographical features, involving
negligible or no expansion of use beyond that existing at the time of the lead agency’s
determination.” There is no reasonable possibility that maintaining the Collierville-Bellota 230 kV
line will result in a significant impact on the environment. A Notice of Exemption for this type of
work was approved by the NCPA Commission and filed with Calaveras County on March
27, 2014.

SR: 181:20



NCPA Hydroelectric 230KV Wildfire Mitigation Project Request for Additional Funds
August 27, 2020
Page 4

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on August 5,
2020, and was recommended for Commission approval.

pectfully submitted,

Mg [+~

NDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (1):
e Resolution

SR: 181:20



AMENDED RESOLUTION 20-18

AMEND RESOLUTION 20-18 OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL FUNDS FOR THE NCPA HYDROELECTRIC
WILDFIRE MITIGATION PROJECT

(reference Staff Report #127:20 and 181:20)
WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) owns and operates the Collierville-Bellota 230 kV line; and

WHEREAS, the NCPA Hydroelectric Wildfire Mitigation Project was approved by the NCPA Commission on February 20,
2020 (SR: 127:20; Reso: 20:18) with a budget of not to exceed $3,000,000; and

WHEREAS, based on actual bid responses and current estimated costs, the new forecasted budget to complete the
project is $3,250,000; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks approval to increase the not to exceed amount for this project from $3,000,000 to $3,250,000,
and authorize the use of up to $250,000 from the NCPA Hydroelectric Maintenance Reserve Fund for the increased project cost;
and

WHEREAS, CEQA Guidelines section 15301 states that this project is categorically exempt from CEQA review because
the project “consists of the operation, repair, maintenance ... or minor alteration of existing public or private structures, facilities,
mechanical equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no expansion of use beyond that existing at the time of
the lead agency’s determination.”; and

WHEREAS, a Notice of Exemption for this type of work was approved by the NCPA Commission and filed with
Calaveras County on March 27, 2014; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency approves the
request for additional funds for the Hydroelectric Wildfire Mitigation Project, increasing the total not to exceed amount of this
project from $3,000,000 to $3,250,000, delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee to award bids,
execute agreements, and to issue purchase orders for the updated project amount, authorizing use of up to $250,000 from the
Hydroelectric Maintenance Reserve Fund, and acknowledging that the Hydro Maintenance Reserve Fund will need to be
replenished in future budget years.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda

San Francisco BART
Biggs

Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto

Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville

Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



A PUBLIC AGENCY

A’!’HERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: August 19, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  August 27, 2020

SUBJECT: Lodi Energy Center Turbine Restoration Reconciliation; Applicable to the

following projects: Lodi Energy Center

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

FROM: Joel Ledesm METHOD OF SELECTION:
Assistant Ge?e(ral Manager N/A
Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:
Department. Combustion Turbines
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members [ City of Lodi City of Shasta Lake [J
Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc X City of Ukiah X
San F’anci;‘;:i'z?r:;g; X  CityofPaloAlto [  Plumas-Sierra REC [X
City of Biggs City of Redding [1 Port of Oakland [1
City of Gridley City of Roseville [0 Truckee Donner PUD [
City of Healdsburg City of Santa Clara X Other
If other, please specify City of Azusa, CDWR
Modesto Irrigation, PWRPA

SR: 182:20

2\



Lodi Energy Center Turbine Reconciliation
August 27, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Amendment to Resolution 20-21 authorizing additional funds for the Lodi Energy
Center Turbine Restoration Project, increasing the total not to exceed amount of this project
from $50,700,000 to $51,200,000, delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee
to award bids, execute agreements, and issue purchase orders for the updated project amount,
authorize the use of up to $400,000, the balance of which will come from FY20 budget and/or
from the LEC Maintenance Reserve Fund, and acknowledging that the LEC Maintenance
Reserve Fund will need to be replenished in future budget years, should those funds be

needed.

BACKGROUND:

On January 16, 2020 at 3:54 a.m. the Lodi Energy Center experienced a sudden failure on the
combustion turbine. Prior to this failure, the LEC had been operating steady state at 260 MW for
about two hours, and had been online for about two days. The length of time between the first
sign of problems and the unit trip was about two seconds.

On February 19, 2020, a special PPC meeting was held authorizing the repair of the turbine.
That authorization contained the following funding sources; $50,000,000 from insurance
proceeds and $800,000 from Maintenance Reserve. The expenditures from Maintenance
Reserve were broken down into the following categories; $500,000 for insurance deductible and
$300,000 for additional work.

The Lodi Energy Center Turbine Restoration Project was approved in the February 20, 2020
Commission Meeting (SR: 130:20; Reso: 20-21), with a budget of not to exceed $3,000,000.

During the March 9, 2020 PPC meeting, it was brought the participants attention that the
deductible previously approved was incorrect. While the deductible for Property Damage is
$500,000, the deductible required by insurance policy for damage to the turbine/generator units
is $1,000,000. Work continued with the understanding that this would be reconciled in the
future.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The Project work scope came in $100,000 less than budgeted, therefore only $400,000 is
needed.

Funding for this increase will come from the following sources. Early review of the fiscal year
appears to indicate that based on collections received and the projected costs, there is sufficient
funds in the FY20 budget to cover the costs. Should the funding fall short, the balance will be
funded from the Maintenance Reserve.

SELECTION PROCESS:
During the initial procurement of LEC equipment, NCPA employed a Public Works bidding
process. NCPA awarded the contract for the LEC equipment to Siemens as a result of that

bidding process. NCPA requested the initial bid for the equipment for LEC include both the
equipment and a long term maintenance agreement. NCPA evaluated both the equipment

SR: 182:20



Lodi Energy Center Turbine Reconciliation
August 27, 2020
Page 3

pricing and the maintenance agreement prior to awarding the contract. NCPA purchased the
equipment from Siemens as part of the initial bid and entered into the LTMA with Siemens.
Under the terms of the LTMA, Siemens is required to perform the work on the gas turbine in
order to preserve the warranty even though the gas turbine rotor is non-program part under the
LTMA.

No further work is being performed. This Staff Report seeks to reconcile prior authorizations
with actual results.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This project was reviewed by the Air District and the California Energy Commission. It is
expected that these activities are categorically exempt under Class 1 and 2 from the provisions .
of the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Section 15301 (b) and 15302 (c) of the
CEQA Guidelines. A Notice of Exemption was approved by the NCPA Commission on
September 27, 2013 for this class of work and was filed in San Joaquin County.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:
The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant

Committee on August 10, 2020, and was approved.

Respectfully submitted,

g‘”ﬁ& NN

General Manager

Attachments (1):
e Resolution

SR: 182:20



AMENDED RESOLUTION 20-21

AMEND RESOLUTION 20-21 OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL FUNDS FOR THE LODI ENERGY CENTER
TURBINE RESTORATION PROJECT

(reference Staff Report #130:20 and 182:20)

WHEREAS, on January 16, 2020, at 3:54 a.m. the Lodi Energy Center experienced a sudden failure on the
combustion turbine. Prior to this failure, the LEC had been operating steady state at 260 MW for about two hours, and had
been online for about two days. The length of time between the first sign of problems and the unit trip was about two
seconds; and

WHEREAS, the LEC is under a long term contract with Siemens for work on the machine. This LTMA includes
warranty provisions which are dependent upon the nature and part that might fail. This warranty coverage is limited to
$1,000,000 per incident. in addition, the language in the agreement requires that Siemens perform any work thought to be
a warranty claim and all service on the turbine regardless of whether the required work involves non-program or program
parts or the warranty may be voided. If the work is subsequently discovered to be a valid warranty claim, Siemens will credit
the cost back to NCPA; and

WHEREAS, the Lodi Energy Center Turbine Restoration Project was approved in the February 20, 2020
Commission Meeting (SR: 130:20; Reso: 20-21), with a budget of not to exceed $3,000,000; and

WHEREAS, during the March 9, 2020 PPC meeting, it was brought the participants attention that the deductible
previously approved was incorrect. While the deductible for Property Damage is $500,000, the deductible required by
insurance policy for damage to the turbine/generator units is $1,000,000. Work continued with the understanding that this
would be reconciled in the future; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks approval to increase the not to exceed amount of this project from $50,700,000 to
$51,200,000, and authorize the use of up to $400,000 from the LEC Maintenance Reserve Fund for the increased project
cost; and

WHEREAS, this project was reviewed and approved by the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District (“Air
District”) and the California Energy Commission. It is expected that these activities are categorically exempt under Class 1
and 2 from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Section 15301 (b) and 15302 (c) of the
CEQA Guidelines. A Notice of Exemption was approved by the NCPA Commission on September 27, 2013, for this class
of work and was filed in San Joaquin County; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency approves
the request for additional funds for the Lodi Energy Center Turbine Restoration Project, increasing the total not to exceed
amount of this project from $50,700,000 to $51,200,000, and delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee
to award bids, execute agreements, and issue purchase orders for the updated project amount, and authorizes the use of
up to $400,000, the balance of which will come from FY20 budget and/or from the LEC Maintenance Reserve Fund, and
acknowledges that the LEC Maintenance Reserve Fund will need to be replenished in future budget years, should those
funds be needed.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner




Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY

NCPA Resolution 20-21 -2-



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: August 19, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  August 27, 2020

SUBJECT: NCPA Geothermal Plant 1 Fire System Modernization Project; Applicable to the

following projects: NCPA Geothermal Facility.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

A

FROM: Joel Ledesma D{ METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager Competitive Pricing Process
Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department: Geothermal

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

If other, please specify

All Members [ City of Lodi City of Shasta Lake

Alameda Municipal Power City of Lompoc City of Ukiah
San F“"“;‘;‘l’oiﬁ’r:n’:; 0  CityofPaloAlto [0  Plumas-Sierra REC
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland

City of Gridley City of Roseville Truckee Donner PUD

City of Healdsburg X  City of Santa Clara [ Other

X O

X

o o O

SR: 189:20



NCPA Geothermal Plant 1 Fire System Modernization Project
August 27, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 20-62 authorizing the NCPA Geothermal Plant 1 Fire System
Modernization Project and delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee to award
bids, execute agreements, and to issue purchase orders for the project in accordance with NCPA
purchasing policies and procedures, without further approval by the Commission, for a total
project not to exceed amount of $1,800,000, including approval for $1,000,000 of the project
budget to come from the Maintenance Reserve fund.

BACKGROUND:

The fire protection system at NCPA’s Geothermal Plant 1 is malfunctioning, unserviceable,
unsupported by the manufacturer, and is no longer considered reliable. The Plant 1 fire
protection system is critical to the safety of NCPA personnel and the preservation of plant
equipment in the event of a fire. NCPA staff is seeking approval for a full replacement of the fire
protection system in Plant 1, which includes the following:

Complete Plant 1 fire protection system modernization engineering and design.
Replacement of the main Fire Alarm and Control Panel.

Replacement of fire pump controls.

Replacement of malfunctioning smoke and thermal detection devices.

Replace of Halon system with clean agent system.

In July 2020, a Request for Proposal was released with bids due on July 16, 2020. NCPA
received only one bid, which was much higher than our engineering estimate.

To ensure competitiveness, Geo staff updated the scope, and reached out to additional qualified
vendors. With the updated scope and vendor feedback, the engineers estimate and contingency
cost were updated. The updated projects costs are listed below, with increases of an additional
$498,751 project cost, $69,625 in contingency, and $31,624 in CEC DCBO costs, from the
original budget totaling $1,200,000.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The Plant 1 Fire System Modernization Project forecast is shown below. Purchase orders
referencing the terms and conditions of any agreements executed for work related to this project
will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures. Below is a breakdown of
the project cost:

Contractor’s Proposed Project Cost = $1,330,375

30% Contingency = $389,625

CEC Reviews and Inspections = $80,000

Not to Exceed Project Authorization Total= $1,800,000

The project will be funded through the following sources:
e FY2021 Capital Project Budget = $800,000
e Maintenance Reserve = $1,000,000

SR: 189:20



NCPA Geothermal Plant 1 Fire System Modernization Project
August 27, 2020
Page 3

SELECTION PROCESS:

In accordance with NCPA’s procurement policies and procedures, NCPA has solicited bids to
perform the work required for this Project. Bids by qualified providers are being evaluated, and
awarded to the lowest cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and
availability of the services needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This maintenance activity is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act as a Class 1
Existing Facilities exemption (Title 14 California Code of Regulations Section 15301[b]). NCPA
filed a Notice of Exemption that covers this activity with both Lake and Sonoma Counties. Thus,
no environmental review of this action is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

At its July 7, 2020 meeting, the Facilities Committee recommended approval of the project with a
not to exceed of $1,200,000, including approval of $320,000 for the project budget from the
Maintenance Reserve Fund. As a result of insufficient competitive bids, this item was pulled
from the July 23, 2020 Commission Consent Calendar.

Since then, the total project budget has been updated to reflect a revised scope. This revised
recommendation was not reviewed by the Facilities Committee because they are not scheduled
to meet until September 2, 2020. Because of the urgency to award this project, it is being
presented directly to the Commission.

Respecitfully submitted,

o

NDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (1):
e Resolution 20-62

SR: 189:20



RESOLUTION 20-62

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING THE NCPA GEOTHERMAL PLANT 1 FIRE SYSTEM MODERIZATION
PROJECT

(reference Staff Report #189:20)

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) operates and maintains on behalf of the
project owners a Geothermal Facility near Middletown, CA, consisting of two power plants; and

WHEREAS, the fire system at NCPA’s Geothermal Plant 1 is malfunctioning, unserviceable,
unsupported by the manufacturer, and no longer considered reliable. The Plant 1 fire protection system is
critical to the safety of NCPA personnel and the preservation of plant equipment in the event of a fire; and

WHEREAS, the replacement, upgrade, and modernization of the existing fire protection system will
protect and sustain Plant 1 for many years into the future; and

WHEREAS, this maintenance activity is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act as a
Class 1 Existing Facilities exemption (Title 14 California Code of Regulations Section 15301[b]). NCPA filed a
Notice of Exemption that covers this activity with both Lake and Sonoma Counties. Thus, no environmental
review of this action is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
approves the NCPA Geothermal Plant 1 Fire System Modernization Project, and delegates authority to the
General Manager or his designee to award bids, execute agreements, and to issue purchase orders for the
project in accordance with NCPA purchasing policies and procedures, without further approval by the
Commission, for a total project not to exceed amount of $1,800,000, including approval for $1,000,000 of the
project budget to come from the Maintenance Reserve fund.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



	Draft_Minutes_07232020
	Item_3_Support_Services_Program_Status_Report_AUG_20_2020
	Item_5_AUG_5_2020_FAC_Committee_Meeting_Minutes
	Item_10_JUL_31_2020_Financial_Report
	Item_11_Treasurer's_Report_Mo_Ended_JUL_31_2020
	Item_12_Disposal_of_NCPA_Surplus_Property
	Item_13_Debt_and_Interest_Rate_Management_Report_JUN_30_2020
	Item_14_Approval_of_Amendment_5_Contract_96-SNR-00110
	Item_15_NorCal_Power_Services_LLC_Five_YR_MTGSA
	Item_16_First_Global_Gear_Services_LLC_Five_YR_MTGSA
	Item_17_Evoqua_Water_Technologies_LLC_First_Amendment_Five_YR_GSA
	Item_18_CY_2021_NCPA_Capacity_Pool_Rates
	Item_19_Geothermal_Debt_Reserve_Fund_Use_of_Excess_2009A
	Item_20_NCPA_Hydroelectric_Wildfire_Mitigation_Project_Additional_Funds_Request
	Item_21_LEC_Turbine_Restoration_Reconcilliation
	Item_22_NCPA_Geothermal_Plant_1_Fire_System_Modernization_Project

